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Date: 21.08.2024

To,

The Manager,

Listing Department,

BSE Limited,

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001

Scrip Code - 530259

Dear Sir/Madam,

VENU.1!4?t !VWJP1 tG7J7?

Sub: Submission of Notice of 40’h Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with the Annual Report of the

Company fortheFinancial Year 2023-2024.

Re: Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In furtherance to our letter dated 09t^August, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 30 read

with PartA ParaA of Schedule III and Regulation 34 (1) (a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, Please find

enclosed herewith the Company's Annual Report for Financial Year 2023-2024 along with the Notice

relating to 40th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders (AGM Notice) schedule to be held on

Thursday, 19th September, 2024 at 1.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC")/ Other Audio Visual

Means ("OAVM") in accordance with the circulars/notifications issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs

and the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia ("SEBI") to transact the businesses as setforth in the Notice

dated 09t^August, 2024 convening the AGM (“Notice”).

The aforesaid documents are being sent electronically to only those members whose e-mail IDs are

registered with the Company/Depositories.

Copy ofaforesaid Notice and Annual Report Company's website at https://isocI.in/ and shall be available

at link below mentioned link.

1. Notice of 40’h AGM https://isocl.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Notice-of-40th-AGM.pdf

2. Annual Report isocl.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Annual-Report-23-24-1.pdf

 

 

Date: 21.08.2024 

To, 
The Manager, 
Listing Department, 
BSE Limited, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001 
Scrip Code - 530259  

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Submission of Notice of 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with the Annual Report of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024.  
Re: Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In furtherance to our letter dated 09th August, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 30 read 
with Part A Para A of Schedule III and Regulation 34 (1) (a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, Please find 
enclosed herewith the Company’s Annual Report for Financial Year 2023-2024 along with the Notice 
relating to 40th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders (AGM Notice) schedule to be held on 
Thursday, 19th September, 2024 at 1.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual 
Means ("OAVM") in accordance with the circulars/notifications issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI”) to transact the businesses as set forth in the Notice 
dated 09th August, 2024 convening the AGM (“Notice”). 
 
The aforesaid documents are being sent electronically to only those members whose e-mail IDs are 
registered with the Company/Depositories.  
 
Copy of aforesaid Notice and Annual Report Company’s website at https://isocl.in/ and shall be available 
at link below mentioned link.  
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1. Notice of 40th AGM https://isocl.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Notice-of-40th-AGM.pdf 
2. Annual Report isocl.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Annual-Report-23-24-1.pdf 
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The other details for the AGM are given below:

1. Cut-off Date for e- 12th September, 2024

Voting

2. Book Closure Date Friday, 13*h September, 2024, to Thursday, 19*h September, 2024 (both

days inclusive)

3. Commencement of Monday, 16th September, 2024 (9.00 a.m.)

e-Voting

4. End of e-Voting Wednesday, 18th September, 2024 (5.00 p.m.)

5. Service Provider's www.evotineindia.com

website

Kindly take on record the same.

Thanking You,

Yours Faithfully,

For Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

(Rashmi Sharma)

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer

Membership No.A34765

Encl: as above

CC:

1. M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Limited, 17'h Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalai Street, Fort Mumbai

— 400001.

2. M/s. National Securities Depository Limited,4*h Floor, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound,

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013.

3. M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 23 R.N. Mukherjee Road,5'h Floor, Kolkata —700001.

 

 

 

The other details for the AGM are given below: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1. Cut-off Date for e-
Voting 

12th September, 2024 

2. Book Closure Date Friday, 13th September, 2024, to Thursday, 19th September, 2024 (both 
days inclusive) 

3. Commencement of 
e-Voting 

Monday, 16th September, 2024 (9.00 a.m.) 

4. End of e-Voting Wednesday, 18th September, 2024 (5.00 p.m.) 
5. Service Provider’s 

website 
www.evotingindia.com 

 

Kindly take on record the same. 

Thanking You, 
 
Yours Faithfully, 
For Inter State Oil Carrier Limited 
 
 
(Rashmi Sharma) 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No. A34765 
 
Encl: as above 
 
CC:  

1. M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Limited, 17th Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort Mumbai 
– 400001. 

2. M/s. National Securities Depository Limited, 4th Floor, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013. 

3. M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 23 R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata – 700001. 
 
 

 



INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

113, Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing, 5’" Floor, Kolkata — 700016

Tel: +91 33 4067 5183, Fax: +91 33 2229 0085

Website: https://isocI.in/, E-mail: infotOisocI.in

NOTICE OF 40”ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the Members ofInter State Oil Carrier Limited (“the Company”) that the 40“

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) ofthe Company will be held on Thursday, 19
t
"September, 2024 at1.00

p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) facility or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to

transact the following business:

ORDlNARYBUDNESS:

1. Adoption ofFinancial Statements.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements ofthe Company forthefinancial

year ended on 31“ March, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the

Auditors thereon.

2. Re-appointmentofMr.SanjayJain (DIN: 00167765), asa Director of the Company.

To appointa Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765), who retires by rotation at the

meeting and being eligible, offers himselfforre-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Appointment ofMr.SiddhantJain (DIN: 07154500) asa Directorofthe Company.

Toconsider and if deemed fit, to pass with orwithout modification(s), the following Resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVEDTHATpursuant tothe provisions of Sections 152, 161 and all other applicable provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder [including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof forthe time being in force], relevant provisions of the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 (including any amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof, for the time being

in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company, and on the recommendation of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr.Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500), was appointed by

the Board ofDirectors as an Additional Director of the Companywith effect from 02’
d
May, 2024 and

who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the

Company hasreceiveda notice in writing froma Member under Section 160(1) of the Companies

Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director be and is hereby appointed asa

Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation with effect fromthedate ofthis meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHERTHATtheBoard ofDirectors of the Company beandis hereby authorized to do

all such acts, things, deeds and matters which areconnected therewith or incidental thereto and

take all necessary steps, including to make, sign, file and submit such forms, applications, letters,

documents etc., as may be necessary, properorexpedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”

4. Appointment ofMr.SiddhantJain (DIN: 07154500), asa WholeTime Directorofthe Company.

Toconsider, and if thought fit, to pass, with orwithout modification(s) the following Resolution asa

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT based on the recommendation and approval of the Nomination and
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TH 
NOTICE OF 40 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

thNo�ce is hereby given to the Members of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited (“the Company”) that the 40  
th 

Annual General Mee�ng (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on Thursday, 19 September, 2024 at 1.00 
p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) facility or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to 
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adop�on of Financial Statements.

 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
styear ended on 31  March, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765), as a Director of the Company.

 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765), who re�res by rota�on at the 
mee�ng and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500) as a Director of the Company.

 To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on as an 
Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 152, 161 and all other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder [including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force], relevant provisions of the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 (including any amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof, for the �me being 
in force) and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, and on the recommenda�on of the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500),  was appointed by 

nd
the Board of Directors as an Addi�onal Director of the Company with effect from 02  May, 2024 and 
who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Mee�ng and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a no�ce in wri�ng from a Member under Sec�on 160(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company, liable to re�re by rota�on with effect from the date of this mee�ng.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 
all such acts, things, deeds and ma�ers which are connected therewith or incidental thereto and 
take all necessary steps, including to make, sign, file and submit such forms, applica�ons, le�ers, 
documents etc., as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this Resolu�on.”

4. Appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500), as a Whole Time Director of the Company.

 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s) the following Resolu�on as a 
Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT based on the recommenda�on and approval of the Nomina�on and 



IN ER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company andpursuant

to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, and 203 read with ScheduleV and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder [including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof forthe time being in force] and pursuant to applicable

provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof, for

the time being in force) and such other approvals, as may be necessary, the consent ofthe Members

oftheCompany be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN:

07154500) as Whole Time Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, fora period of3

years commencing from 02" May, 2024 to 01" May, 2027, which shall be, upon the terms and

conditions including remuneration as setout in the Explanatory Statement and agreement entered

into between theCompanyandMr.Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500) submitted tothis meeting, which

agreement be and is hereby specifically approved.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding the profits in any financial year, the Company will pay

to Mr. Siddhant Jain the remuneration as per the explanatory statement to this notice as minimum

remuneration fora period of3 yearsfrom thedate ofappointment.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard of Directors or any Committee thereof, be and is hereby

authorized to alter, modify or revise from time to time, the said terms and conditions of

appointment and remuneration of Mr. Siddhant Jain in such manner as may be considered

appropriate and in the best interests of the Company andasmay be permissible at law upon the

terms and conditions setout in the Explanatory Statement.”.

“RESOLVED FURTHERTHATtheBoard ofDirectors of the Company beandis hereby authorized to do

all such acts, things, deeds and matters which areconnected therewith or incidental thereto and

take all necessary steps, including to make, sign, file and submit such forms, applications, letters,

documents etc., as may be necessary, properorexpedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”

5. Re-appointmentofMr.Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846) asIndependent Director.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, and other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule IVof the Act and the

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof forthe time being in force) and SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations) as amended from time to

time and the Articles of Association of the Company andon recommendations ofNomination and

Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, Mr.Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846)

who holds the office of Independent Director up to 29” November, 2024 and being eligible, offers

himself for re-appointment and who has submitteda declaration confirming the criteria of

independence in accordance with the Act and the Listing Regulations and who is eligible for re-

appointment fora second term under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made

thereunder and Listing Regulations be and is hereby re-appointed as Independent Director of the

Company tohold office fora further period of5 years with effect from 30” November, 2024 till 29”

November, 2029and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHERTHATtheBoard ofDirectors of the Company beandis herebyauthorized to do
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Remunera�on Commi�ee, Audit Commi�ee and Board of Directors of the Company and pursuant 
to the provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197, 198, and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder [including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force] and pursuant to applicable 
provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (including any amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof, for 
the �me being in force) and such other approvals, as may be necessary, the consent of the Members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the  appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 
07154500) as Whole Time Director of the Company, liable to re�re by rota�on, for a period of 3 

nd st
years commencing from 02  May, 2024 to 01  May, 2027, which shall be, upon the terms and 
condi�ons including remunera�on as  set out in the Explanatory Statement and agreement entered 
into between the Company and Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500) submi�ed to this mee�ng, which 
agreement be and is hereby specifically approved.” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding the profits in any financial year, the Company will pay 
to Mr. Siddhant Jain the remunera�on as per the explanatory statement to this no�ce as minimum 
remunera�on for a period of 3 years from the date of appointment.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any Commi�ee thereof, be and is hereby 
authorized to alter, modify or revise from �me to �me, the said terms and condi�ons of 
appointment and remunera�on of Mr. Siddhant Jain in such manner as may be considered 
appropriate and in the best interests of the Company and as may be permissible at law upon the 
terms and condi�ons set out in the Explanatory Statement.”.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 
all such acts, things, deeds and ma�ers which are connected therewith or incidental thereto and 
take all necessary steps, including to make, sign, file and submit such forms, applica�ons, le�ers, 
documents etc., as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this Resolu�on.”

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846) as Independent Director.

 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s) the following Resolu�on as 
Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 150, 152, and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule IV of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force) and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (the Lis�ng Regula�ons) as amended from �me to 
�me and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and on recommenda�ons of Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee and Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846) 

th
who holds the office of Independent Director up to 29  November, 2024 and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment and who has submi�ed a declara�on confirming the criteria of 
independence in accordance with the Act and the Lis�ng Regula�ons and who is eligible for re-
appointment for a second term under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder and Lis�ng Regula�ons be and is hereby re-appointed as Independent Director of the 

th thCompany to hold office for a further period of 5 years with effect from 30  November, 2024 �ll 29  
November, 2029 and whose office shall not be liable to re�re by rota�on.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 

2
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all such acts, things, deeds and matters which areconnected therewith or incidental thereto and

take all necessary steps, including to make, sign, file and submit such forms, applications, letters,

documents etc., as may be necessary, proper orexpedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”

6. Approval forRelated PartyTransactions.

To consider, and if thought it, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as

an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any,

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made thereunder (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof forthe time being in force) and applicable regulations of

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time totime), if any, and as approved by theAudit Committee

and Board of Directors of the Company, consent and approval of the Members oftheCompany be

andis hereby accorded toone or more contract(s)/ arrangement(s) /transaction(s)/ agreement(s)

entered into or to be entered into from time to time with the related part1es of the Company as

mentioned in the explanatory statement, up to the maximum amounts and other terms and

conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement annexed tothis Notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THATtheBoard of Directors of the Company beandis hereby, authorised to

do or cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any queries, difficulties,

doubts that may arise with regard to any transaction with the related party and execute such

agreements, documents and writings and to make such flings, as may be necessary or desirable for

the purpose ofgiving effect to this Resolution, including delegation of powers, in the best interest of

the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard, be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the

powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer, or Company Secretary or any

other Officer(s)/ Authorised Representative(s) of the Company, todo all such acts and take such

steps, as may be considered necessary orexpedient, to give effect to the aforesaid Resolution(s)”.

“RESOLVED FURTHERTHATall actions taken by the Board orany person so authorized by the Board,

in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing Resolutions, be

and are herebyapproved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.”

Registered Office:

113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing, 5“ Floor,

Kolkata —700016

Dated: The 9” day of August, 2024

By Order ofthe Board

ForInter State Oil Carrier Limited

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary

(Membership No.: A34765)
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all such acts, things, deeds and ma�ers which are connected therewith or incidental thereto and 
take all necessary steps, including to make, sign, file and submit such forms, applica�ons, le�ers, 
documents etc., as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this Resolu�on.”

6. Approval for Related Party Transac�ons. 

 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on as 
an Ordinary Resolu�on: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force) and applicable regula�ons of 
the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 (as amended from �me to �me), if any, and as approved by the Audit Commi�ee 
and Board of Directors of the Company, consent and approval of the Members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to one or more contract(s) / arrangement(s) / transac�on(s) / agreement(s) 
entered into or to be entered into from �me to �me with the related par�es of the Company as 
men�oned in the explanatory statement, up to the maximum amounts and other terms and 
condi�ons as detailed in the explanatory statement annexed to this No�ce.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby, authorised to 
do or cause to be done all such acts, ma�ers, deeds and things and to se�le any queries, difficul�es, 
doubts that may arise with regard to any transac�on with the related party and execute such 
agreements, documents and wri�ngs and to make such filings, as may be necessary or desirable for 
the purpose of giving effect to this Resolu�on, including delega�on of powers, in the best interest of 
the Company.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the 
powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer, or Company Secretary or any 
other Officer(s) / Authorised Representa�ve(s) of the Company, to do all such acts and take such 
steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to the aforesaid Resolu�on(s)”.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all ac�ons taken by the Board or any person so authorized by the Board, 
in connec�on with any ma�er referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing Resolu�ons, be 
and are hereby approved, ra�fied and confirmed in all respects.”

Registered Office:
113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

thSouth Wing, 5  Floor,
Kolkata –700016

thDated: The 9  day of August, 2024

By Order of the     Board
For Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

Rashmi Sharma
Company Secretary

    (Membership No. : A34765)
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NOTES:

1. Pursuant to General Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,

No.20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13,2021, No. 21/2021 dated December

14,2021, No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, No. 10/2022 dated December 28,2022 and No.09/2023

dated September 25,2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively 'MCA Circulars'),

the Company is convening the 40“ Annual General Meeting ('AGM') through Video Conferencing

('VC')/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM’), without the physical presence of the Members ata

commonvenue.

Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), vide its Circulars dated May 12,2020,

January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 7, 2023 and other applicable circulars

issued in this regard (collectively 'SEBI Circulars'), have provided relaxations from compliance with

certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

('Listing Regulations').

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), the Listing

Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 40’" AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM on

Thursday, 19”September, 2024 at1.00 p.m. (IST). The proceedings ofthe AGM will be conducted at

the Registered Office of the Company at113Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing S“Floor Kolkata -

700016, which shall be the deemedvenue oftheAGM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,a member entitled to attend and vote atthe

AGM is entitled to appointa proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need notbea

memberoftheCompany. Since this40”AGM is being held pursuant tothe MCACircular No. 14/2020

dated April 08, 2020 through VC/OAVM, physical attendance ofMembers hasbeen dispensed with.

Accordingly, the facility for appointment ofproxies by the Members toattend and cast vote forthe

Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route

map ofAGM are not annexed tothis Notice.

3. As per the provisions of Clause 3.A. II. of the General Circular No.20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the

matters of Special Business as appearing at Item Nos.3 to6 of the accompanying Notice, are

considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of this Notice.

4. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out

material facts concerning the business with respect to Item Nos.3 to6 of the Notice are annexed

hereto.

5. The relevant details pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial

Standards-2 ('SS-2'), on General Meeting issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

('ICSI'), in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment areannexed hereto. Requisite

declarations have been received from Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment.

6. Institutional Members/Corporate Members (i.e. otherthan Individuals/ HUF/ NRIetc.) intending to

authorize its representatives to attend the meeting through VC/ OAVM and/ or to vote thereat

through e-Voting/ Remote e-Voting, on its behalf, are required to senda certified copy oftheBoard/

its Governing Body's Resolution/ Authorization (scanned copy in .pdf/.jpg format only), pursuant to

Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 or upload it on the e-Voting portal. The said Resolution/

Authorisation may be sent by e-mail through the registered e-mail address to the Scrutinizer at

pcs.partner@yahoo.com witha copy marked totheCompany's e-mail id info@isocl.in in pursuance

ofSection 112 and Section 113 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, representatives ofthe Members such as

the President of India or the Governor ofa State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM
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NOTES:

1. Pursuant to General Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
No.20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 
14, 2021, No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and No.09/2023 
dated September 25, 2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collec�vely 'MCA Circulars'), 

th
the Company is convening the 40  Annual General Mee�ng ('AGM') through Video Conferencing 
('VC')/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM'), without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue.

 Further, the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), vide its Circulars dated May 12, 2020, 
January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 7, 2023 and other applicable circulars 
issued in this regard (collec�vely 'SEBI Circulars'), have provided relaxa�ons from compliance with 
certain provisions of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 
('Lis�ng Regula�ons').

 In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), the Lis�ng 
thRegula�ons and MCA Circulars, the 40  AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM on 

th 
Thursday, 19 September, 2024 at 1.00 p.m. (IST). The proceedings of the AGM will be conducted at 

ththe Registered Office of the Company at 113 Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing 5  Floor Kolkata - 
700016, which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a member en�tled to a�end and vote at the 
AGM is en�tled to appoint a proxy to a�end and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a 

thmember of the Company. Since this 40  AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circular No. 14/2020 
dated April 08, 2020 through VC/OAVM, physical a�endance of Members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members to a�end and cast vote for the 
Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form, A�endance Slip and route 
map of AGM are not annexed to this No�ce.

3. As per the provisions of Clause 3.A. II. of the General Circular No.20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the 
ma�ers of Special Business as appearing at Item Nos. 3 to 6 of the accompanying No�ce, are 
considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of this No�ce.

4. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, se�ng out 
material facts concerning the business with respect to Item Nos. 3 to 6 of the No�ce are annexed 
hereto. 

5. The relevant details pursuant to Regula�on 36(3) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Secretarial 
Standards-2 ('SS-2'), on General Mee�ng issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India 
('ICSI'), in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment are annexed hereto. Requisite 
declara�ons have been received from Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment.

6. Ins�tu�onal Members / Corporate Members (i.e. other than Individuals/ HUF/ NRI etc.) intending to 
authorize its representa�ves to a�end the mee�ng through VC/ OAVM and/ or to vote thereat 
through e-Vo�ng/ Remote e-Vo�ng, on its behalf, are required to send a cer�fied copy of the Board/ 
its Governing Body's Resolu�on/ Authoriza�on (scanned copy in .pdf/ .jpg format only), pursuant to 
Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 or upload it on the e-Vo�ng portal. The said Resolu�on/ 
Authorisa�on may be sent by e-mail through the registered e-mail address to the Scru�nizer at 
pcs.partner@yahoo.com info@isocl.in with a copy marked to the Company's e-mail id  in pursuance 
of Sec�on 112 and Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representa�ves of the Members such as 
the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can a�end the AGM/EGM 
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through VC/OAVM andcast theirvotesthrough e-Voting.

7. Members canjoin the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15minutes before and after the scheduled time

of the commencement oftheMeeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The

facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000

Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders

holding 2% or moreshareholding), Promoter/ PromoterGroup, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key

Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the

AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. The detailed instructions for

joining the Meeting through VC/OAVM form part of the Notes to this Notice. The Members will be

able to viewtheproceedings on the CDSLe-Votingwebsiteatwww.evotingindia.com.

8. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted forthe

purpose ofreckoning the quorum underSection 103 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

9. In compliance with provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Notice of the 40“ AGM along with

Annual Report for FY 2023-24 ofyour Company hasbeen sent via Electronic Mode (E-mail) to the

Members whose E-mail ID was made available to us by the Depositories. We request the Members

toregister/ update their e-mail address with their Depository Participant, in case they have not

already registered/ updated thesame.

10. In terms of the MCA Circulars and the relevant SEBI Circulars, the Company is sending this AGM

Notice along with the Annual ReportforFY 24 in electronic form onlytothose Members whose email

addresses are registered with the Company/ RTA/ NSDL and/or CDSL, (NSDL and CDSL collectively

'Depositories'). The Company shall send the physical copy ofthe Annual Report for FY 24 only to

those Members who specifically request forthe same atinfo@isocl.in or in mentioning their Folio

numbers/DP IDand Client ID. The Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report forFY 24 have

been uploaded on thewebsite ofthe Companyathttps://isocl.in/the websites of BSE Limited ('BSE')

at www.bseindia.com, on which the equity shares of the Company arelisted and on the website of

CDSLatwww.evotingindia.com.

11. Book Closure:In accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Rule 10 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to

Regulation 42 of Listing Regulations the Register of the Members andShare Transfer Books ofthe

Company will remain closed from Friday, 13“ September, 2024, to Thursday, 19“ September, 2024

(both days inclusive) for the purpose ofAGM.

12. Members, who areholding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one

account/folio are requested to intimate to the Company orRTA, the details of such folios together

with the share certificates along with the requisite KYC documents forconsolidating their holdings in

one folio. Requests forconsolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form.

13. SEBI vide its notihcation dated January 24,2022 hasamended Regulation 40 ofthe Listing Regulation

which has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and

transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. In view ofthe same andto

eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization.

Members areadvised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form. Members can

contact the CompanyortheCompany's RTAfor assistance in this regard. In terms ofRegulation 40(1)

of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in

dematerialised form with effect from 1"ApriI, 2019.
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through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-Vo�ng.

7. Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a�er the scheduled �me 
of the commencement of the Mee�ng by following the procedure men�oned in the No�ce. The 
facility of par�cipa�on at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 
Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoter/ Promoter Group, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to a�end the 
AGM without restric�on on account of first come first served basis. The detailed instruc�ons for 
joining the Mee�ng through VC/OAVM form part of the Notes to this No�ce. The Members will be 
able to view the proceedings on the CDSL e-Vo�ng website at www.evo�ngindia.com.

8. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Sec�on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

9. In compliance with provisions of Sec�on 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18 of the 
thCompanies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, No�ce of the 40  AGM along with 

Annual Report for FY 2023-24 of your Company has been sent via Electronic Mode (E-mail) to the 
Members whose E-mail ID was made available to us by the Depositories. We request the Members 
to register / update their e-mail address with their Depository Par�cipant, in case they have not 
already registered / updated the same.

10. In terms of the MCA Circulars and the relevant SEBI Circulars, the Company is sending this AGM 
No�ce along with the Annual Report for FY 24 in electronic form only to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/ RTA/ NSDL and/or CDSL, (NSDL and CDSL collec�vely 
'Depositories'). The Company shall send the physical copy of the Annual Report for FY 24 only to 
those Members who specifically request for the same at info@isocl.in or in men�oning their Folio 
numbers/DP ID and Client ID. The No�ce convening the AGM and the Annual Report for FY 24 have 
been uploaded on the website of the Company at  the websites of BSE Limited ('BSE') h�ps://isocl.in/
at , on which the equity shares of the Company are listed and on the website of www.bseindia.com
CDSL at www.evo�ngindia.com.

11. Book Closure:In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with  
Rule 10 of the Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to 
Regula�on 42 of Lis�ng Regula�ons the Register of the Members and Share Transfer Books of the 

th th
Company will remain closed from Friday, 13  September, 2024, to Thursday, 19  September, 2024 
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM.

12. Members, who are holding shares in physical form, in iden�cal order of names, in more than one 
account/folio are requested to in�mate to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together 
with the share cer�ficates along with the requisite KYC documents for consolida�ng their holdings in 
one folio. Requests for consolida�on of share cer�ficates shall be processed in dematerialized form. 

13. SEBI vide its no�fica�on dated January 24, 2022 has amended Regula�on 40 of the Lis�ng Regula�on 
which has mandated that all requests for transfer of securi�es including transmission and 
transposi�on requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. In view of the same and to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerializa�on. 
Members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form. Members can 
contact the Company or the Company's RTA for assistance in this regard. In terms of Regula�on 40(1) 
of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, as amended, securi�es of listed companies can be transferred only in 

st
dematerialised form with effect from 1  April, 2019. 
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14. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MlRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/

P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in

dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities

certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate;

endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certihcate; consolidation of securities

certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Further, SEBI vide its circular No.

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/65 dated May 18,2022 hassimplified the procedure

and standardized the format ofdocuments fortransmission of securities. Accordingly, Members are

requested to make service requests by submittinga duly filled and signed Form ISR-4 and ISR-5 as the

case may be, the format of which is available on the Company's website under the weblink at

https://isocI.in/forms-downloads/. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only

after the folio is KYC Compliant.

15. SEBI HAS MANDATED SUBMISSION OF PAN BY EVERY PARTICIPANT IN THE SECURITIES MARKET.

MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM ARE, THEREFORE, REQUESTED TO SUBMIT

THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES INPHYSICAL

FORMAREREQUESTEDTOSUBMITTHEIR PAN DETAILSTO THE COMPANY'S RTA.

16. Members canavail of the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them in physical form

pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital

and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the facility for making nomination is available to the Members in

respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination, are

requested to register the same bysubmitting Form No.SH-13. Ifa Member desires to opt-out or

cancel the earlier nomination and recorda fresh nomination, the Member maysubmit the same in

form ISR-3 or form SH-14asthecase may be.The said forms can be downloaded from theCompany's

website undertheweblink athttps://isocI.in/forms-downloads/. Members arerequested to submit

the said form totheir respective DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and tothe RTA in

case the shares are held in physical form, quoting theirfolio number.

17. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under

Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which directors are

interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection by

the Members during the 40"AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice convening the 40” AGM

and related Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and annexures thereto

(Collectively referred to as “Notice”) will also be available for inspection, only in electronic mode by

theMembers from the date of circulation of the Notice up to the date of AGM i.e. Thursday, 19”

September, 2024 at1.00 P.M. (IST). Members seeking to inspect such documents cansend an e-mail

to addressing CompanySecretary at info@isocl.in.

18. In case ofjoint holders attending the AGM, theMember whose name appears asthe first holder in

the orderofnamesaspertheRegister of Members oftheCompany will be entitled to vote.

19. To support the 'Green Initiative,' Members who have not yetregistered their e-mail addresses are

requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form

and with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent oftheCompany in case the shares are held by them

in physical form.

20. Members arerequested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email

address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations,

powerofattorney, bank details such as, nameofthebank and branch details, bank account number,

MICRcode, IFSC code, etc.:
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14. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/ 
P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securi�es in 
dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securi�es 
cer�ficate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securi�es cer�ficate; 
endorsement; sub-division/spli�ng of securi�es cer�ficate; consolida�on of securi�es 
cer�ficates/folios; transmission and transposi�on. Further, SEBI vide its circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/65 dated May 18, 2022 has simplified the procedure 
and standardized the format of documents for transmission of securi�es. Accordingly, Members are 
requested to make service requests by submi�ng a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4 and ISR-5 as the 
case may be, the format of which is available on the Company's website under the weblink at 
h�ps://isocl.in/forms-downloads/. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only 
a�er the folio is KYC Compliant.

15. SEBI HAS MANDATED SUBMISSION OF PAN BY EVERY PARTICIPANT IN THE SECURITIES MARKET. 
MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM ARE, THEREFORE, REQUESTED TO SUBMIT 
THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL 
FORM ARE REQUESTED TO SUBMIT THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THE COMPANY'S RTA.

16. Members can avail of the facility of nomina�on in respect of shares held by them in physical form 
pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the facility for making nomina�on is available to the Members in 
respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomina�on, are 
requested to register the same by submi�ng Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt-out or 
cancel the earlier nomina�on and record a fresh nomina�on, the Member may submit the same in 
form ISR-3 or form SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from the Company's 
website under the weblink at h�ps://isocl.in/forms-downloads/. Members are requested to submit 
the said form to their respec�ve DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in 
case the shares are held in physical form, quo�ng their folio number.

17. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
Sec�on 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which directors are 
interested, maintained under Sec�on 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspec�on by 

th ththe Members during the 40  AGM. All documents referred to in the No�ce convening the 40  AGM 
and related Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and annexures thereto 
(Collec�vely referred to as “No�ce”) will also be available for inspec�on, only in electronic mode by 

ththe Members from the date of circula�on of the No�ce up to the date of AGM i.e. Thursday, 19  
September, 2024 at 1.00 P.M. (IST). Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an e-mail 
to addressing Company Secretary at .info@isocl.in

18. In case of joint holders a�ending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in 
the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be en�tled to vote. 

19. To support the 'Green Ini�a�ve,' Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are 
requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form 
and with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company in case the shares are held by them 
in physical form. 

20. Members are requested to in�mate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 
address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nomina�ons, 
power of a�orney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, 
MICR code, IFSC code, etc.:
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a. For shares held inelectronic form: totheir Depository Participants (“DPs”)

b. For shares held in physical form: to the Company/RTA in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms

pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/SECFATF/P/CIR/2023/169 dated October

12,2023. To mitigate unintended challenges on account offreezing of folios, SEBI vide its Circular

No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17,2023, has done away with

the provision regarding freezing of folios not having PAN, KYC, and Nomination details.

21. Members arerequested to:

• exercise due diligence and notify the Company ofany change in address or demise of any

Memberassoon aspossible.

• not leave their de-mat account(s) dormant forlong. Periodic statement of holdings should be

obtained from theconcerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time

totime.

• quotetheirfolio numbers/Client ID/DP IDin all correspondence;

• to kindly get their equity shares converted into demat/electronicformtogetinherent benefits of

dematerialisation and also considering that physical transfer of equity shares/ issuance ofequity

shares in physical form have been disallowed by SEBI.

• to get in touch with any Depository Participant having registration with SEBI to opena Demat

account. Members may also visit website of depositories viz. National Securities Depository

Limited at https://nsdI.co.in/faqs/faq.php or Central Depository Services (India) Limited at

https://www.cdslindia.com/Investors/open-demat.html for further understanding the demat

procedure.

22. Members holding physical shares may kindly note that if they have any dispute against the Company

ortheregistrar and share transfer agent(RTA) on delay or default in processing the request, they may

fi Ie for arbitration with the stock exchanges in accordance with SEBI Circular No.:

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/ClR/2022/76dated May 30,2022.

23. In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated 31 July 2023, as

further amended by theCorrigendum cum Amendment Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-

1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated4 August 2023 and the Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-

3/P/CIR/2023/195, the SEBI has establisheda common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR

Portal”) for Resolution ofdisputes arising in the Indian Securities Market.

Memberscanusethis mechanism only afterthey have lodged their grievance with the Company and

SEBI SCORESsystem and arenot satisfied with the outcome.

Formore details, please see the following weblink ofthe Stock Exchange:

BSE: https://bsecrs.bseindia.com/ecompIaint/frmInvestorHome.aspx?f=a9GN

24. Members may note that as per SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37

dated May 7, 2024, it is mandatory forall holders of physical securities in listed entities to update

their KYC and choice of Nomination with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ('RTA’), in case they

have notupdated thesame.

Forthe purpose ofupdation of KYC and choice of Nomination, Members arerequested to send the

necessary forms (ISR-1, ISR-2 and SH-13) along with the necessary attachments mentioned in the

said Forms to Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 23,R N Mukherjee Road, 5“ Floor, Kolkata —

700001.
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 a. For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Par�cipants (“DPs”) 

 b. For shares held in physical form: to the Company/RTA in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms 
pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/SECFATF/P/CIR/2023/169 dated October 
12, 2023. To mi�gate unintended challenges on account of freezing of folios, SEBI vide its Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17, 2023, has done away with 
the provision regarding freezing of folios not having PAN, KYC, and Nomina�on details.

21. Members are requested to:

 l exercise due diligence and no�fy the Company of any change in address or demise of any 
Member as soon as possible. 

 l not leave their de-mat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be 
obtained from the concerned Depository Par�cipant and holdings should be verified from �me 
to �me.

 l quote their folio numbers/Client ID/DP ID in all correspondence;

 l to kindly get their equity shares converted into demat/electronic form to get inherent benefits of 
dematerialisa�on and also considering that physical transfer of equity shares/ issuance of equity 
shares in physical form have been disallowed by SEBI.

 l to get in touch with any Depository Par�cipant having registra�on with SEBI to open a Demat 
account. Members may also visit website of depositories viz. Na�onal Securi�es Depository 
Limited at  or Central Depository Services (India) Limited at h�ps://nsdl.co.in/faqs/faq.php
h�ps://www.cdslindia.com/Investors/open-demat.html for further understanding the demat 
procedure.

22. Members holding physical shares may kindly note that if they have any dispute against the Company 
or the registrar and share transfer agent (RTA) on delay or default in processing the request, they may 
file for arbitra�on with the stock exchanges in accordance with SEBI Circular No.: 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/76 dated May 30, 2022.

23. In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated 31 July 2023, as 
further amended by the Corrigendum cum Amendment Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-
1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated 4 August 2023 and the Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-
3/P/CIR/2023/195, the SEBI has established a common Online Dispute Resolu�on Portal (“ODR 
Portal”) for Resolu�on of disputes arising in the Indian Securi�es Market. 

 Members can use this mechanism only a�er they have lodged their grievance with the Company and 
SEBI SCORES system and are not sa�sfied with the outcome. 

 For more details, please see the following weblink of the Stock Exchange: 

 BSE: h�ps://bsecrs.bseindia.com/ecomplaint/frmInvestorHome.aspx?f=a9GN

24. Members may note that as per SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 
dated May 7, 2024, it is mandatory for all holders of physical securi�es in listed en��es to update 
their KYC and choice of Nomina�on with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ('RTA'), in case they 
have not updated the same. 

 For the purpose of upda�on of KYC and choice of Nomina�on, Members are requested to send the 
necessary forms (ISR-1, ISR-2 and SH-13) along with the necessary a�achments men�oned in the 

th
said Forms to Maheshwari Datama�cs Private Limited, 23, R N Mukherjee Road, 5  Floor, Kolkata – 
700001.

https://nsdl.co.in/faqs/faq.php%20
https://www.cdslindia.com/Investors/open-demat.html%20
https://bsecrs.bseindia.com/ecomplaint/frmInvestorHome.aspx?f=a9GN
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25. Voting through electronic means

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of

Listing Regulations, 2015 asamended and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and

May 05,2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the

business to be transacted at the AGM to Members holding shares as on Thursday, 12'"September,

2024 (End of Day) being the Cut-off date fixed for determining voting rights of Members, entitled to

participate in e-Voting process. For this purpose, the Company hasentered into an agreement with

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means,

astheauthorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes bya member using remote e-Voting

as well as the e-Voting system on the date ofthe AGM will be provided by CDSL.

A. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 40“ AGM

THROUGHVC/OVAMAREAS UNDER:

Step1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual Shareholders

holding shares in demat mode.

Step2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of Shareholders holding shares in physical

modeandNon-Individual Shareholders in demat mode.

a. The remote e-Voting period commences on Monday, 16°September, 2024 (9.00 a.m.)and ends

on Wednesday,1
t

September, 2024 (5.00 p.m.). During this period Shareholders of the

Company, holding shares either in physical form orin dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date

(record date) of Thursday, 12“September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-Voting

module shall be disabled by CDSLforvoting thereaker.

b. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would notbe entitled to vote at

the meeting.

C. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020,under

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-Voting facility

to its Shareholders, in respect of all Shareholders' Resolutions. However, it has been observed

that the participation by the public Non-Institutional Shareholder's/Retail Shareholders is ata

negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-Voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-Voting facility to listed

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance ofmultiple user IDs

and passwords bytheShareholders.

In orderto increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant toa public consultation, it has been

decided to enable e-Voting to all the demat account holders, by way ofa single login credential,

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account

holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not

only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating

in e-Voting process.
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25. Vo�ng through electronic means

 Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013,  read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regula�on 44 of  
Lis�ng Regula�ons, 2015 as amended and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and 
May 05, 2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Vo�ng to its Members in respect of the 

th 
business to be transacted at the AGM to Members holding shares as on Thursday, 12 September, 
2024 (End of Day) being the Cut-off date fixed for determining vo�ng rights of Members, en�tled to 
par�cipate in e-Vo�ng process. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilita�ng vo�ng through electronic means, 
as the authorized e-Vo�ng's agency. The facility of cas�ng votes by a member using remote e-Vo�ng 
as well as the e-Vo�ng system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

th
 A. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 40  AGM 

THROUGH VC/OVAM ARE AS UNDER:

 Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Vo�ng system in case of individual Shareholders 
holding shares in demat mode. 

 Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Vo�ng system in case of Shareholders holding shares in physical 
mode and Non-Individual Shareholders in demat mode.

th a. The remote e-Vo�ng period commences on Monday, 16  September, 2024 (9.00 a.m.)and ends 
th

on Wednesday, 18  September, 2024 (5.00 p.m.). During this period Shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 

th (record date) of Thursday, 12 September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-Vo�ng 
module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo�ng therea�er.

 b. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the mee�ng date would not be en�tled to vote at 
the mee�ng.

 c. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020,under 
Regula�on 44 of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, listed en��es are required to provide remote e-Vo�ng facility 
to its Shareholders, in respect of all Shareholders' Resolu�ons. However, it has been observed 
that the par�cipa�on by the public Non-Ins�tu�onal Shareholder's/Retail Shareholders is at a 
negligible level. 

 Currently, there are mul�ple e-Vo�ng service providers (ESPs) providing e-Vo�ng facility to listed 
en��es in India. This necessitates registra�on on various ESPs and maintenance of mul�ple user IDs 
and passwords by the Shareholders.

 In order to increase the efficiency of the vo�ng process, pursuant to a public consulta�on, it has been 
decided to enable e-Vo�ng to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login creden�al, 
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Par�cipants. Demat account 
holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 
only facilita�ng seamless authen�ca�on but also enhancing ease and convenience of par�cipa�ng 
in e-Vo�ng process.
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Step1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Votinesvstem in case of individual shareholders

holding shares in demat mode.

d. In terms oiSEBIcircular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242datedDecember9, 2020on e-Voting

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode are

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail Id in their demat

accounts in ordertoaccess e-VotingfaciIity.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method fore-Voting and 40“ AGM for Individual

Shareholders holding securities in DematmodeCDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of

shareholders

Individual

Shareholders

holding securities in

Demat mode with

CDSL Depository

Login Method

1. Users who have opted forCDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach

e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users who to login

Easi/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdsIindia.com and

click on login icon and New System Myeasi Tab and then useyour existing

my easi username and password.

2. After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting

option foreligible companies where thee-Voting is in progress as per the

information provided by the Company. On clicking the e-Voting option,

the user will be able to see e-Voting page ofthee-Voting service provider

forcasting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting and voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links

provided to access the system ofall e-Voting service providers, so thatthe

usercan visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available

at www.cdsIindia.com and click on login and New System Myeasi Tab and

then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing

Demat Account Number and PAN froma e-Voting link available on

www.cdsIindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by

sending OTP on registered Mobile and e-mail as recorded in the Demat

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where thee-Voting is in progress and also able to directly

access the system ofall e-Voting service providers.
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Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Vo�ng system in case of individual shareholders 
holding shares in demat mode.

d. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo�ng 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

th
 Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Vo�ng and 40  AGM for Individual 

Shareholders holding securi�es in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securi�es in 
Demat mode with 
CDSL Depository

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through 
their exis�ng user id and password. Op�on will be made available to reach 
e-Vo�ng page without any further authen�ca�on. The users who to login 
Easi/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login icon and New System Myeasi Tab and then use your exis�ng 
my easi username and password.

2. A�er successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng 
op�on for eligible companies where the e-Vo�ng is in progress as per the 
informa�on provided by the Company. On clicking the e-Vo�ng op�on, 
the user will be able to see e-Vo�ng page of the e-Vo�ng service provider 
for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual 
mee�ng and vo�ng during the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Vo�ng service providers, so that the 
user can visit the e-Vo�ng service providers' website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available 
at www.cdslindia.com and click on login and New System Myeasi Tab and 
then click on registra�on op�on.

4. Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN from a e-Vo�ng link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authen�cate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile and e-mail as recorded in the Demat 
Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be able to see the e-
Vo�ng op�on where the e-Vo�ng is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Vo�ng service providers.
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Type of

shareholders

Individual
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Login Method

Shareholders

holding securities in i.

demat mode with

NSDL Depository

Individual

Shareholders

A.

2.

3.

4.

5.

B.

1.

2.

3.

c.

1.

2.
(holding securities

in demat mode)

login through their 3.

Depository

Participants (DPs)

NSDLIDeASfacility

If you are already registered, follow the below steps:

Visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https://eservices.nsdI.com/either ona Personal Computer

orona mobile.

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial

Owner” icon under“Login”which is available under“lDeAS” section.

A new screen will open. You will need toenter your User IDand Password.

After successful authentication,you will be able to see e-Voting services.

Click on “Access to e-Voting” appearing on the left-hand side under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.

Click on options available against Company name or e-Voting service

provider — NSDL andyou will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting and e-Voting during the meeting.

If you are not registered, follow the below steps

a. Option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdI.com.

b. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at https://eservices.

nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.isp

c. Please follow steps given above in points 1-5.

e-VotingwebsiteofNSDL

Open web browser and type the following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdI.com/ either ona personal computerorona mobile phone.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon

“Login”which is available under'SharehoIder/Member'section.

A new screen will open. You will need toenteryour User ID(i.e. yoursixteen

digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP anda

Verification Code asshown on thescreen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name ore-Voting service provider name

andyouwill be redirected to e-Voting service provider website forcasting

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting&
voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below forseamless

voting experience.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your DP registered with NSDL/CDSLfore-Voting facility.

Once logged-in, you will be able to see the e-Voting option. Once youclick

on Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after

successful authentication,wherein you can seee-Votingfeature.

Click on options available against Company name or e-Voting service

provider — NSDL andyouwill be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDLfor
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting and e-Voting during the meeting. After successful authentication,

you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on Company name ore-Voting service provider name

andyouwill be redirected to e-Voting service provider website forcasting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting&

voting during the meeting.
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Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securi�es in 
demat mode with 
NSDL Depository

A. NSDL IDeAS facility
 If you are already registered, follow the below steps :
1. Visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL:  either on a Personal Computer h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/
or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” sec�on.

3. A new screen will open. You will need to enter your User ID and Password. 
A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng services.

4. Click on “Access to e-Vo�ng” appearing on the le�-hand side under e-
Vo�ng services and you will be able to see e-Vo�ng page.

5. Click on op�ons available against Company name or e-Vo�ng service 
provider – NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Vo�ng website for 
cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual 
mee�ng and e-Vo�ng during the mee�ng.

 If you are not registered, follow the below steps
 a. Op�on to register is available at .h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com
 b. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at h�ps://eservices. 

nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
 c. Please follow steps given above in points 1-5.
B.  e-Vo�ng website of NSDL
1. Open web browser and type the following URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng. 

nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile phone.
2. Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' sec�on.
3. A new screen will open. You will need to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verifica�on Code as shown on the screen. A�er successful authen�ca�on, 
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng 
your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng. 

C. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code men�oned below for seamless 
vo�ng experience.

1. You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account 
through your DP registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility.

2. Once logged-in, you will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on. Once you click 
on Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site a�er 
successful authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e-Vo�ng feature.  

3. Click on op�ons available against Company name or e-Vo�ng service 
provider – NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for 
cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual 
mee�ng and e-Vo�ng during the mee�ng. A�er successful authen�ca�on, 
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Vo�ng page. Click on Company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng 
your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securi�es 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Par�cipants (DPs)

https://eservices.nsdl.com/%20
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Important note: Memberswho areunable to retrieve User ID/Password areadvised to use Forget User ID

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk forIndividual Shareholders holding securities in demat modeforanytechnical issues related to

login through Depository i.e. CDSLand NSDL.

Login Type

Securities held with CDSL

Securities held with NSDL

Helpdesk Details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

CDSL helpdesk by sendinga request at

helpdesk.evotine@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.

1800 22 55 33

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

NSDL helpdesk by sendinga request at

evotine@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990

and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Votingsvstem in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode

andnon-individual shareholders in demat mode.

e. Login method fore-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Physical shareholders and

iii.

iv.

V.

Vi.

PAN

shareholders otherthan individual holding in Dematform.

The shareholders should logon tothe e-Voting website www.evotingindia.com

Click on ”Shareholders” module.

Now Enteryour User ID

• ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

• For NSDL:8 Character DP IDfollowed by8 Digits Client ID,

• Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in dematform and had logged on towww.evotingindia.com andvoted

on an earlier e-Voting ofany company, then yourexisting password is to be used.

If you are a hrst-time userfollow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding

shares in Demat.

Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both dematshareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have notupdated their PAN with the Company/Depository

Participant are requested to use the sequence numbersent by Company/RTA

orcontact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

D€'taib recorded in yourdemataccount orin the company records in orderto login.

OFDate ofBirth • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please

(D B) enterthe member id/foIio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

Login Type Helpdesk Details

Securi�es held with CDSL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33

Securi�es held with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at                       
evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Vo�ng system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode 
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.
 e. Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for Physical shareholders and 

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

 i. The shareholders should log on to the e-Vo�ng website www.evo�ngindia.com
 ii. Click on “Shareholders” module.
 iii. Now Enter your User ID
  l    For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
  l    For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
  l���Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.
 iv. Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on Login.

 v. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to  and voted www.evo�ngindia.com
on an earlier e-Vo�ng of any company, then your exis�ng password is to be used. 

 vi. If you are a first-�me user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 
shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
l     Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Par�cipant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA 
or contact Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
l If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

Dividend Bank 

Details
 or Date of Birth 
(DOB)
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f. After enteringthese details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT”tab.

g. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

However, Shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders forvoting for Resolutions of

any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-

Votingthrough CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended nottoshare your password with any

other person and take utmost care to keepyour password confidential.

h. For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only fore-Voting on the

Resolutions contained in this Notice.

i. Click on the EVSN fortherelevant”INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITED” on which you choose tovote.

j. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same theoption

“YES/NO” forvoting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent

tothe Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

k. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish toviewtheentire Resolution details.

l. After selecting the Resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.A confirmation box

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on

“CANCEL” and accordingly modifyyourvote.

m. Onceyou“CONFIRM”your vote on the Resolution, you will not be allowed to modifyyourvote.

n. You can also takea print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

O. Ifa demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User IDand the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password and enterthe details as prompted bythesystem.

p. There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available

to scrutinizer for verihcat1on.

q. Additional Facilitv for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians— ForRemoteVoting onlv

• Non-Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

• A scanned copy ofthe Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-

mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdsIindia.com.

• After receiving the login detailsa Compliance User should be created using the admin login and

password. The Compliance Userwould be able to link the account(s) forwhich theywish tovote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically and can be delink in case of

any wrong mapping.

• It is Mandatory that,a scanned copyoftheBoard Resolution and Power ofAttorney(POA) which

they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the

system forthe scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively, Non-Individual Shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company atthee-mail address viz;

pcs.partner@yahoo.com (Scrutinizer e-mail id) and at info@isocl.in (Company e-mail id), if they

have voted from individual tab and not uploaded same in the CDSL e-Voting system forthe

scrutinizer to verify the same.

B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM andE-VOTING

DURING MEETING AREASUNDER:
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f. A�er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

g. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selec�on screen. 
However, Shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Crea�on' menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for vo�ng for Resolu�ons of 
any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-
Vo�ngthrough CDSL pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confiden�al.

h. For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-Vo�ng on the 
Resolu�ons contained in this No�ce.

i. Click on the EVSN for the relevant “INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED” on which you choose to vote.

j. On the vo�ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the op�on 
“YES/NO” for vo�ng. Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. The op�on YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that you dissent to the Resolu�on.

k. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the en�re Resolu�on details.

I. A�er selec�ng the Resolu�on, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirma�on box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

m. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the Resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

n. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” op�on on the Vo�ng page.

o. If a demat account holder has forgo�en the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image 
verifica�on code and click on Forgot Password and enter the details as prompted by the system.

p. There is also an op�onal provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available 
to scru�nizer for verifica�on.

q. Addi�onal Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians – For Remote Vo�ng only

 l Non-Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to  and register themselves in the  “Corporates” module.www.evo�ngindia.com

 l A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the stamp and sign of the en�ty should be e-
mailed to .helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com

 l A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 l The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automa�cally and can be delink in case of 
any wrong mapping.

 l It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of A�orney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the 
system for the scru�nizer to verify the same.

 l Alterna�vely, Non-Individual Shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolu�on/ 
Authority le�er etc. together with a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scru�nizer and to the Company at the e-mail address viz;  
pcs.partner@yahoo.com info@isocl.in (Scru�nizer e-mail id) and at  (Company e-mail id), if they 
have voted from individual tab and not uploaded same in the CDSL e-Vo�ng system for the 
scru�nizer to verify the same.

 B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM and E-VOTING 
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

www.evotingindia.com%20
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
pcs.partner@yahoo.com%20
info@isocl.in%20
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a. The procedure forattending the AGM and Remote e-Voting on the day ofthe AGM is same asthe

instructions mentioned abovefore-Voting.

b. The link for VC/OAVM toattend meeting will be available where theEVSN ofCompany will be

displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above fore-Voting.

c. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.

However, theywill not be eligible to vote atthe AGM.

d. Shareholders areencouraged tojoin the Meetingthrough Laptops/ IPads forbetter experience.

e. Further Shareholders will be required to allow Camera and useInternet witha good speed to

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

f. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their

respective network. It is therefore recommended to useStable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

g. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may

register themselves asa speaker by sending their request in advance atleast7 days prior to the

date of the meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, e-mail id,

mobile number atinfo@isocl.in. However, it is requested to raise the queries precisely and in

short atthe time ofmeetingtoenable toanswerthesame.

h. The Shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their

queries in advance7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demataccount number/folio

number, email id, mobile number at(Company email id). These queries will be replied to by the

Company suitably by email.

i. Those Shareholders who have registered themselves asa speaker will only be allowed to express

theirviews/ask questions during the meeting.

j. Only those Shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not

casted theirvote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from

doingso, shall be eligible to vote through remote e-Voting system available during the AGM.

k. If any Votes arecast by the Shareholders through the remote e-Voting available during the AGM

and if the same Shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility,

then the votes cast by such Shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-Voting

during the meeting is available onlyto the Shareholders attending the meeting.

c. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE E-MAILADDRESS/MOBILE NO.ARE NOT REGISTERED

WITHTHECOMPANY/DEPOSITORIES

a. For Physical Shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., NameofShareholder,

scanned copy ofthe share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy ofPAN

card), AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy ofAadhaar Card) by e-mail to Company atinfo@

isocI.in and to the Registrar and ShareTransfer Agent oftheCompanyatmdpldc@vahoo.com.

b. For Demat Shareholders - Please update your e-mail id and mobile no. with your respective

Depository Participant(DP).

c. For Individual Demat Shareholders - Please update your e-mail id and mobile no. with your

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting and joining virtual

meetingthrough Depository.

Ifyou have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM and e-Votingfrom theCDSL e-Voting

System, you can write an e-mail to helpdesk.evotina@cdslindia.com or contact at tollfree no.

1800225533.
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 a. The procedure for a�ending the AGM and Remote e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM is same as the 
instruc�ons men�oned above for e-Vo�ng.

 b. The link for VC/OAVM to a�end mee�ng will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed a�er successful login as per the instruc�ons men�oned above for e-Vo�ng.

 c. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the mee�ng. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

 d. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops / IPads for be�er experience.

 e. Further Shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the mee�ng.

 f. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connec�ng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their 
respec�ve network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to 
mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

 g. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to the 
date of the mee�ng men�oning their name, demat account number/folio number, e-mail id, 
mobile number at . However, it is requested to raise the queries precisely and in info@isocl.in
short at the �me of mee�ng to enable to answer the same.

 h. The Shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their 
queries in advance 7 days prior to mee�ng men�oning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at (Company email id). These queries will be replied to by the 
Company suitably by email.

 i. Those Shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng.

 j. Only those Shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through remote e-Vo�ng system available during the AGM.

 k. If any Votes are cast by the Shareholders through the remote e-Vo�ng available during the AGM 
and if the same Shareholders have not par�cipated in the mee�ng through VC/OAVM facility, 
then the votes cast by such Shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-Vo�ng 
during the mee�ng is available only to the Shareholders a�ending the mee�ng.

C. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE E-MAIL ADDRESS/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES 

 a. For Physical Shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of Shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self-a�ested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAAR (self-a�ested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by e-mail to Company at info@ 
isocl.in mdpldc@yahoo.com and to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company at .

 b. For Demat Shareholders - Please update your e-mail id and mobile no. with your respec�ve 
Depository Par�cipant (DP). 

 c. For Individual Demat Shareholders - Please update your e-mail id and mobile no. with your 
respec�ve Depository Par�cipant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Vo�ng and joining virtual 
mee�ng through Depository.

  If you have any queries or issues regarding a�ending AGM and e-Vo�ng from the CDSL e-Vo�ng 
System, you can write an e-mail to  or contact at toll free no. helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com
1800 22 55 33.
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All grievances connected with thefacilityfor voting by electronic meansmay beaddressed toMr

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited,A Wing, 25” Floor,

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -

400013orsendan e-mail tohelpdesk.evotina@cdsIindia.comorcall tollfree no. 1800225533.

D. GENERALGUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

a. The e-Voting period commences from 9.00 a.m. on Monday, 16" September, 2024and ends at

5.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 18“ September, 2024. During this period, the Members ofthe

Company, holding shares either in physical form orin demat form, as on the cut-off date of 12"

September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. Once thevote ona Resolution is cast by the

member, themembershall not be allowed tochange it subsequently.

b. The Company hasappointed M/s. Rantu Das and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,

having office address at 73B, S. P. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700026, as the Scrutinizer for

conducting the remote e-Voting process, ina fair and transparent manner, whose e-mail address

is: pcs.partner@yahoo.com.

c. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomesa Member oftheCompany

after sending ofthe Notice and holding shares as ofthe cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and

password by sendinga request atmdpldc@yahoo.com. However, if he/she is already registered

with CDSL forremote e-Voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for

casting the vote.

d. The remote e-Voting module on thedayoftheAGM shall be disabled by the scrutinizer for voting

15 minutes afterthe conclusion ofthe Meeting.

e. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion ofvoting atthe AGM, hrst countthe votes

cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes through e-Voting and makea Scrutinizers'

report of the total votes cast in favour or against, not later than 48(forty-eight) hours of the

conclusion of the 40 "AGM, totheChairman ora person authorized by him in writing, who shall

countersign the sameanddeclare the result of the voting forthwith.

f. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's

website https://isocI.in/ and on Service Provider's website i.e. www.evotingindia.com within

two working days from theconclusion of the AGM. TheCompany shall simultaneously forward

the results to BSE Limited, wheretheshares ofthe Companyarelisted.

g. The Resolutions shall be deemed tobepassed on the date ofAnnual General Meeting, subject to

receipt of sufficient votes.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANTTO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013 INRESPECTOF

ITEM NOS.3 TO6 OF THE NOTICE.

As required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013, this Explanatory Statement contains relevant and material information as detailed

herein to enable the Memberstoconsider forapproval ofthe Resolution Nos. 3to 6.

ITEM NOS.3 & 4

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') and Audit

Committee in their meeting held on 02" May, 2024, respectively, the Board ofDirectors of the Company in

their Meeting held on 02" May, 2024, appointed Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500) as an Additional

Director of the Company with effect from 02* May, 2024 who will hold office till the date ofthis Annual

General Meeting. Taking into consideration his qualification, expertise and knowledge, the Board had also

appointed Mr.Siddhant Jain as WholeTime Director of the Companyfora period of3 years from 02* May,

2024 to1"May, 2027 subject to approval by the Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting ofthe
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  All grievances connected with the facility for vo�ng by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 
th

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25  Floor, 
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 
400013 or send an e-mail to  or call  toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com

D. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS
th

 a. The e-Vo�ng period commences from 9.00 a.m. on Monday, 16  September, 2024and ends at 
th

5.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 18  September, 2024. During this period, the Members of the 
th

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in demat form, as on the cut-off date of 12  
September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. Once the vote on a Resolu�on is cast by the 
member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

 b. The Company has appointed M/s. Rantu Das and Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretaries, 
having office address at 73B, S. P. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700026, as the Scru�nizer for 
conduc�ng the remote e-Vo�ng process, in a fair and transparent manner, whose e-mail address 
is: pcs.partner@yahoo.com.

 c. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company    
a�er sending of the No�ce and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at . However, if he/she is already registered mdpldc@yahoo.com
with CDSL for remote e-Vo�ng then he/she can use his/her exis�ng User ID and password for 
cas�ng the vote.

 d. The remote e-Vo�ng module on the day of the AGM shall be disabled by the scru�nizer for vo�ng 
15 minutes a�er the conclusion of the Mee�ng. 

 e. The Scru�nizer shall, immediately a�er the conclusion of vo�ng at the AGM, first count the votes 
cast at the mee�ng, therea�er unblock the votes through e-Vo�ng and make a Scru�nizers' 
report of the total votes cast in favour or against, not later than 48(forty-eight) hours of the 

thconclusion of the 40  AGM, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wri�ng, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the vo�ng forthwith. 

 f. The results declared along with the Scru�nizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's 
website   and on Service Provider's website i.e.  within h�ps://isocl.in/ www.evo�ngindia.com
two working days from the conclusion of the AGM. The Company shall simultaneously forward 
the results to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

 g. The Resolu�ons shall be deemed to be passed on the date of Annual General Mee�ng, subject to 
receipt of sufficient votes.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF

ITEM NOS. 3 TO 6 OF THE NOTICE.

As required under Sec�on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, this Explanatory Statement contains relevant and material informa�on as detailed 
herein to enable the Members to consider for approval of the Resolu�on Nos. 3 to 6.

ITEM NOS. 3 & 4

Based on the recommenda�ons of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee ('NRC') and Audit 
ndCommi�ee in their mee�ng held on 02  May, 2024, respec�vely, the Board of Directors of the Company in 

ndtheir Mee�ng held on 02  May, 2024, appointed Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500) as an Addi�onal 
ndDirector of the Company with effect from 02  May, 2024 who will hold office �ll the date of this Annual 

General Mee�ng. Taking into considera�on his qualifica�on, exper�se and knowledge, the Board had also 
ndappointed Mr. Siddhant Jain as Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years from 02  May, 

st2024 to 1  May, 2027 subject to approval by the Members in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng of the 
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Company ontheterms and conditions as per Agreement entered into by and between theCompany and

Mr.Siddhant Jain.

Mr. Siddhant Jain holdsa bachelor's degree and isa Chartered Financial Analyst, all level cleared. He also

holdsa degree in MBA in Finance from Indian School of Business. He hasa working experience of3.5years

in Transportation Industry and1 years' experience in Supply chain consultancy.

The Board is of the view that Mr. Siddhant Jain knowledge and experience will be of immense benefit and

value to the Company andpursuant to the recommendation oftheNRC, recommends his appointment to

theMembers.

The Company hasreceiveda Notice froma Member in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing

candidature of Mr. Siddhant Jain for the office of Director and the same is available for inspection by the

Members during business hours on all working days' till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General

Meeting in electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the same may send their request to the e-mail

address mentioned in the notestothe notice convening theAnnual General Meeting.

In terms ofSection 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Siddhant Jain holds office up to the date ofthis Annual General

Meeting and he is eligible for appointment asa Director, subject to the approval of the Shareholders.

Requisite consent, pursuant to section 152 of the Act has also been submitted by him toactas Director. He

satisfies all the conditions set out in Section 196(3) and Part-I of ScheduleV tothe Act forbeing eligible for

appointment. Mr. Siddhant Jain is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms ofSection

164 of the Act, as amended from time to time and has also confirmed that he has not been debarred by

SEBI from accessing the capital market as well as from holding the office of Director pursuant to any

SEBI/MCA order or any other such authority and has given all the necessary declarations and confirmation

including his consenttobe appointed asa WholeTime Director.

The appointment and payment ofremuneration of Mr. Siddhant Jain shall be guided by the provisions of

the Act on such emoluments asoutlined below:

1. Basic Salary per month: R50,000/- per month with such revision as may be decided by the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and Board from time to time in the range of

R50,000/- to R80,000/- per month. The annual increment, which will be merit based, will be

effective from 1”ApriI each year (commencingfrom 1”ApriI, 2025).

2. Perquisites and Allowances: In addition to the aforesaid salary, Mr. Siddhant Jain, shall also be

entitled to the following perquisites and allowances:

• House Rent Allowance: R20,000/- per month with such revision as may be decided by the NRC

and Board from time to time in the range of R20,000/- to R40,000/- per month. The annual

increment, which will be merit based, will be effective from 1stApril each year (commencing

from 1“ApriI, 2025).

• Conveyance Allowance: R10,000/- per month, with such revision as may be decided by the NRC

and Board from time to time in the range of R10,000/- to R30,000/- per month. The annual

increment, which will be merit based, will be effective from 1”April each year (commencing

from 1”ApriI, 2025).

• Special Allowance: R46,500/- per month, with such revision as may be decided by the NRC and

Board from time to time in the range of R46,500/- to R90,000/- per month. The annual

increment, which will be merit based, will be effective from 1"April each year (commencing

from 1“ApriI, 2025).

• Leave TravelConcession: Forself and family once ina year atactuals.

• Reimbursement ofMedical Expenses forself and family atactuals.

• Expenses incurred for travelling, boarding and lodging during the Business trips and provisions
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Company on the terms and condi�ons as per Agreement entered into by and between the Company and 
Mr. Siddhant Jain.

Mr. Siddhant Jain holds a bachelor's degree and is a Chartered Financial Analyst, all level cleared. He also 
holds a degree in MBA in Finance from Indian School of Business. He has a working experience of 3.5 years 
in Transporta�on Industry and 1 years' experience in Supply chain consultancy. 

The Board is of the view that Mr. Siddhant Jain knowledge and experience will be of immense benefit and 
value to the Company and pursuant to the recommenda�on of the NRC, recommends his appointment to 
the Members.

The Company has received a No�ce from a Member in wri�ng under Sec�on 160(1) of the Act proposing 
candidature of Mr. Siddhant Jain for the office of Director and the same is available for inspec�on by the 
Members during business hours on all working days' �ll the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General 
Mee�ng in electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the same may send their request to the e-mail 
address men�oned in the notes to the no�ce convening the Annual General Mee�ng. 

In terms of Sec�on 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Siddhant Jain holds office up to the date of this Annual General 
Mee�ng and he is eligible for appointment as a Director, subject to the approval of the Shareholders. 
Requisite consent, pursuant to sec�on 152 of the Act has also been submi�ed by him to act as Director. He 
sa�sfies all the condi�ons set out in Sec�on 196(3) and Part-I of Schedule V to the Act for being eligible for 
appointment. Mr. Siddhant Jain is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Sec�on 
164 of the Act, as amended from �me to �me and has also confirmed that he has not been debarred by 
SEBI from accessing the capital market as well as from holding the office of Director pursuant to any 
SEBI/MCA order or any other such authority and has given all the necessary declara�ons and confirma�on 
including his consent to be appointed as a Whole Time Director.

The appointment and payment of remunera�on of Mr. Siddhant Jain shall be guided by the provisions of 
the Act on such emoluments as outlined below: 

1. Basic Salary per month: ₹50,000/- per month with such revision as may be decided by the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) and Board from �me to �me in the range of 
₹50,000/- to ₹80,000/- per month. The annual increment, which will be merit based, will be 

st st
effec�ve from 1  April each year (commencing from 1  April, 2025).

2. Perquisites and Allowances: In addi�on to the aforesaid salary, Mr. Siddhant Jain, shall also be 
en�tled to the following perquisites and allowances:

 l House Rent Allowance: ₹20,000/- per month with such revision as may be decided by the NRC 
and Board from �me to �me in the range of ₹20,000/- to ₹40,000/- per month. The annual 
increment, which will be merit based, will be effec�ve from 1st April each year (commencing 

st
from 1  April, 2025).

 l Conveyance Allowance: ₹10,000/- per month, with such revision as may be decided by the NRC 
and Board from �me to �me in the range of ₹10,000/- to ₹30,000/-  per month. The annual 

st
increment, which will be merit based, will be effec�ve from 1  April each year (commencing 

st
from 1  April, 2025).

 l Special Allowance: ₹46,500/- per month, with such revision as may be decided by the NRC and 
Board from �me to �me in the range of ₹46,500/- to ₹90,000/- per month. The annual 

stincrement, which will be merit based, will be effec�ve from 1  April each year (commencing 
stfrom 1  April, 2025).

 l Leave Travel Concession: For self and family once in a year at actuals.

 l Reimbursement of Medical Expenses for self and family at actuals.

 l Expenses incurred for travelling, boarding and lodging during the Business trips and provisions 
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ofcarforuseonCompany's Business atactuals.

• Other benefits: Contribution to Provident Fund and Gratuity as per Company's Scheme.

Notwithstanding anything contained therein, in case of inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the

Companyshall pay the remuneration asmentioned above astheminimum remuneration.

Mr. Siddhant Jain will not receive any sitting fees for attending Meetings ofthe Board or any Committee

thereof.

The Agreement also sets out mutual rights and obligations of the parties.A copy ofthe agreement will be

available for inspection by the Members during business hours on all working days till the conclusion of the

ensuing Annual General Meeting in electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the same may send their

request to the e-mail address mentioned in the notes tothe notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

The Company hasnotcommitted any default in payment ofduestoany bank orpublic financial institution

or any other secured creditors before the date ofappointment ofMr.Siddhant Jain. The Company hasnot

issued any Non-Convertible Debentures.A statement containing additional information as required in

ScheduleV ofthe Companies Act, 2013forms part ofthe notice.

Details of Mr. Siddhant Jain pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on

General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in

”Annexure- 1”tothe Notice.

Save and except Mr. Siddhant Jain and Mr. Sanjay Jain (Father of Mr. Siddhant Jain and Managing Director

of the Company) and their relatives, none oftheDirectors and Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company,

and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise in the aforesaid

Resolution except tothe extent oftheir shareholdings in the Company.

The Board considers that the appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain would be of immense benefit to the

Companyandthus recommendstheResolutions as set out at item nos.3 and4 for approval of Members of

theCompany.

ITEM NO.5

The Shareholders of the Company atits meeting held on Friday, the 25° September, 2020 hasapproved

appointment ofMr.Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846) as Non-Executive/Independent Director of the Company

fora period of5 (five years) w.e.f. 30“ November, 2019 to29“ November, 2024. The current term ofMr.

Sunil Shah is expiring on 29” November, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 (10) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(“Act”), an Independent Director shall hold office fora term ofup tofive consecutive years on the Board of

a Company, butshall be eligible for re-appointment foranother term ofup tofive consecutive years on

passing of Special Resolution by the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of

Independent Director and his consent forre-appointment, has recommended re-appointmentofMr.Sunil

Shah fora second term offive years from 30” November, 2024 to 29“ November, 2029 as Independent

Director on the Board oftheCompany.

The Board at its meeting held on 23’
d
May, 2024, based on the performance evaluation of Independent

Director and as recommended bytheNomination and Remuneration Committee, also considers that, given

his background, experience and substantial contributions made byhimduring his tenure, the continued

association of Mr. Sunil Shah would be beneficial to the Company andit is desirable to continue availing his

services as Independent Director. The Board therefore, proposed to re-appoint Mr. Sunil Shah as an

Independent Director of the Company, notliable to retire by rotation, fora second consecutive term offive

yearsfrom 30” November, 2024to29"November, 2029.
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of car for use on Company's Business at actuals.

 l Other benefits: Contribu�on to Provident Fund and Gratuity as per Company's Scheme. 

Notwithstanding anything contained therein, in case of inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the 
Company shall pay the remunera�on as men�oned above as the minimum remunera�on.

Mr. Siddhant Jain will not receive any si�ng fees for a�ending Mee�ngs of the Board or any Commi�ee 
thereof.

The Agreement also sets out mutual rights and obliga�ons of the par�es. A copy of the agreement will be 
available for inspec�on by the Members during business hours on all working days �ll the conclusion of the 
ensuing Annual General Mee�ng in electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the same may send their 
request to the e-mail address men�oned in the notes to the no�ce convening the Annual General Mee�ng.

The Company has not commi�ed any default in payment of dues to any bank or public financial ins�tu�on 
or any other secured creditors before the date of appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain. The Company has not 
issued any Non-Conver�ble Debentures. A statement containing addi�onal informa�on as required in 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the no�ce.

Details of Mr. Siddhant Jain pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on 
General Mee�ngs (“SS-2”), issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in 
“Annexure- 1” to the No�ce.

Save and except Mr. Siddhant Jain and Mr. Sanjay Jain (Father of Mr. Siddhant Jain and Managing Director 
of the Company) and their rela�ves, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, 
and their rela�ves are, in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise in the aforesaid 
Resolu�on except to the extent of their shareholdings in the Company.

The Board considers that the appointment of Mr. Siddhant Jain would be of immense benefit to the 
Company and thus recommends the Resolu�ons as set out at item nos. 3 and 4 for approval of Members of 
the Company.

ITEM NO. 5
th

The Shareholders of the Company at its mee�ng held on Friday, the 25  September, 2020 has approved 
appointment of Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846) as Non-Execu�ve/Independent Director of the Company 

th th
for a period of 5 (five years) w.e.f. 30  November, 2019 to 29  November, 2024. The current term of Mr. 

thSunil Shah is expiring on 29  November, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 149 (10) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”), an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of up to five consecu�ve years on the Board of 
a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment for another term of up to five consecu�ve years on 
passing of Special Resolu�on by the Company.

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, on the basis of the report of performance evalua�on of 
Independent Director and his consent for re-appointment, has recommended re-appointment of Mr. Sunil 

th th
Shah for a second term of five years from 30  November, 2024 to 29  November, 2029 as Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company.

rd
The Board at its mee�ng held on 23  May, 2024, based on the performance evalua�on of Independent 
Director and as recommended by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, also considers that, given 
his background, experience and substan�al contribu�ons made by him during his tenure, the con�nued 
associa�on of Mr. Sunil Shah would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to con�nue availing his 
services as Independent Director. The Board therefore, proposed to re-appoint Mr. Sunil Shah as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to re�re by rota�on, for a second consecu�ve term of five 

th thyears from 30  November, 2024 to 29  November, 2029.
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Mr.Sunil Shah has also given declaration to the Board, under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013

(“the Act”) and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(“the SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time totime, that he meets thecriteria of independence

as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as

amended from time totime. In terms ofRegulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, Mr. Shah hasconfirmed

that he is not aware ofany circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that

could impair or impact his ability to discharge his duties as Independent Director of the Company. He hasalso

confirmed that he is not debarred from holding office of Independent Director/ Director by virtue of any SEBI

order or any other statutory authority, pursuant to Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated 20.06.2018

issued by BSE Ltd., pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment/ re-appointment of

Director/Independent Director. He is also not disqualified from being re-appointed as Independent Directors

in terms ofSection 164 of the Act. He has also confirmed that he is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of

the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”), as amended from

time to time, with respect to his registration with the Databank of Independent Directors maintained with

Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. He has also given his consent to act as Independent Director of the

Companyfora further period of5 years, in compliance with Section 149(10) ofthe Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Sunil Shah isa person of integrity, possesses the relevant expertise/

experience and also fulfils the conditions specihed underthe relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

read with Rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 forhis re-appointment as Non-Executive/Independent Director of the Companyandis independent of

the management oftheCompany.A copy ofdraft letter of appointment ofIndependent Director, setting out

the terms and conditions of his appointment, will be available for inspection by the Members who wish to

inspect the same may send their request to the e-mail address mentioned in the notes to the notice

convening theAnnual General Meeting.

Mr. Sunil Shah is not related to any other Director of the Company.A brief profile of Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN:

00606846), including nature of expertise, is provided in the annexure tothe Notice, pursuant to Regulation

36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Save and except of Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846), none of the other Directors and Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company, and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or

otherwise in the aforesaid Resolution except tothe extent oftheir respective shareholdings in the Company.

The Board ofDirectors recommends theSpecial Resolution setout in Item no.5 for approval ofthe Members.

ITEM NO.6

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules framed thereunder, any

Related Party Transaction requires prior approval of Shareholders through Ordinary Resolution, if the

aggregate value of transaction(s) amounts to10% ormore oftheannual turnover ofthe Company asper

last audited financial statements ofthe Company.

Further, third Proviso to Section 188(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 provides that nothing contained in sub-

section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to any transactions entered into by the

Company in the ordinary course ofbusiness otherthan transactions which arenoton an arm's length basis.

All transactions entered into by the Companywith Related Parties as mentioned in the above item no.6 are

in the ordinary course ofbusiness and are atarm's length basis. The Audit Committee hasgiven its approval

tothe below mentioned transactions.

Although approval of the Shareholders would notbe required under the provisions of Section 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, the same is being sought as an abundant

precautionary measure.

The keydetails as required under Rule 15 ofthe Companies(MeetingsofBoard and its Powers) Rules, 2014

areasbelow:
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Mr. Sunil Shah has also given declara�on to the Board, under Sec�on 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and Regula�on 25(8) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 
(“the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”), as amended from �me to �me, that he meets the criteria of independence 
as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of the Act, 2013 and Regula�on 16(1)(b) of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as 
amended from �me to �me. In terms of Regula�on 25(8) of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, Mr. Shah has confirmed 
that he is not aware of any circumstance or situa�on which exists or may be reasonably an�cipated, that 
could impair or impact his ability to discharge his du�es as Independent Director of the Company. He has also 
confirmed that he is not debarred from holding office of Independent Director/ Director by virtue of any SEBI 
order or any other statutory authority, pursuant to Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated 20.06.2018 
issued by BSE Ltd., pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment/ re-appointment of 
Director/Independent Director. He is also not disqualified from being re-appointed as Independent Directors 
in terms of Sec�on 164 of the Act. He has also confirmed that he is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”), as amended from 
�me to �me, with respect to his registra�on with the Databank of Independent Directors maintained with 
Indian Ins�tute of Corporate Affairs. He has also given his consent to act as Independent Director of the 
Company for a further period of 5 years, in compliance with Sec�on 149(10) of the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Sunil Shah is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant exper�se/ 
experience and also fulfils the condi�ons specified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rules made thereunder and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015 for his re-appointment as Non-Execu�ve/Independent Director of the Company and is independent of 
the management of the Company. A copy of dra� le�er of appointment of Independent Director, se�ng out 
the terms and condi�ons of his appointment, will be available for inspec�on by the Members who wish to 
inspect the same may send their request to the e-mail address men�oned in the notes to the no�ce 
convening the Annual General Mee�ng. 

Mr. Sunil Shah is not related to any other Director of the Company. A brief profile of Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN: 
00606846), including nature of exper�se, is provided in the annexure to the No�ce, pursuant to Regula�on 
36 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

Save and except of Mr. Sunil Shah (DIN: 00606846), none of the other Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company, and their rela�ves are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise in the aforesaid Resolu�on except to the extent of their respec�ve shareholdings in the Company. 

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolu�on set out in Item no. 5 for approval of the Members.

ITEM NO. 6

Pursuant to Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules framed thereunder, any 
Related Party Transac�on requires prior approval of Shareholders through Ordinary Resolu�on, if the 
aggregate value of transac�on(s) amounts to 10% or more of the annual turnover of the Company as per 
last audited financial statements of the Company.

Further, third Proviso to Sec�on 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that nothing contained in sub-
sec�on (1) of Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to any transac�ons entered into by the 
Company in the ordinary course of business other than transac�ons which are not on an arm's length basis.

All transac�ons entered into by the Company with Related Par�es as men�oned in the above item no. 6 are 
in the ordinary course of business and are at arm's length basis. The Audit Commi�ee has given its approval 
to the below men�oned transac�ons. 

Although approval of the Shareholders would not be required under the provisions of Sec�on 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, the same is being sought as an abundant 
precau�onary measure.

The key details as required under Rule 15 of the Companies (Mee�ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
are as below:
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No.

1.

Particulars
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Name oftheRelated Inter State Liquid Logistics

Party Limited

Details

2. Name oftheDirector 1. Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing

or KMP who is related Director.

2. Mr. Siddhant Jain, Whole Time

Director.

3. Nature of Relationship Director holds significant

influence.

4. Nature, duration, The Hire Agreement of Availing/

material terms,

monetary value and

particulars of the

contract or

arrangement

5. Any other information

relevant or important
forthe Members to

takea decision on the

proposed Resolution

rendering of logistics services as

per requirement forthe business

of the Company entered between
both the party is valid till 31“

M arch, 2025. Therefore, the

Company hasentered intoa fresh

Agreement on 9" daft of August,
2024 staring from1 April, 2025

to31”March, 2028.

Monetary value of proposed
a gg rega tet ran sactio n(s) is

expected to be R20 Crores(Rupees

Twenty Crores only) per financial

year during the tenure of the

Contract. The contract is for three
financial years commencing from

financial year 2025-2026. The

transaction shall be on arm's

length basis.

Inter State Capital Markets

Pvt. Ltd.

1. Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing

Director.

2. Mr. Siddhant Jain, Whole Time

Director.

Director holds significant

influence.

Inter State Capital Markets Pvt. Ltd.

avails the logistics services i.e.,

hiring of tankers from Inter State
0 iI C a r r ie r L i m it e d a s p e r

requirement for the business of

the Company.

The Audit Committee and the
Board in their Meeting held on

25.05.2023, respectively approved

the related party transaction fora

period of three years commencing
from 25.05.2023 to 24.05.2026

a nd in the meeting h eld o n

09.11.2023 increase the limit of

the transaction to 20 Crores
(Rupees Twenty Crores only). The

transactions entered is in the

ordinary course of business and

are atarm's length basis.
Mo netary value of proposed

a gg regatet ransa ctio n (s) is

expected to be R20 Crores (Rupees

Twenty Crores only) per financial
year during the tenure of the

Contract.

As per the Agreement entered between both the parties. The

transactions shall be in ordinary course of business and on arm's
length basis ata price prevailing as on the date ofTransaction.

The aforesaid proposed contract(s)/ transaction(s)/ arrangement(s) have been approved by the Audit

Committee and recommended bytheBoard ofDirectors of the CompanytotheMembersfortheir approval.

In Item No.6 except Mr. Sanjay Jain and Mr. Siddhant Jain and their relatives, none ofthe Directors, Key

Managerial Personnel and/ ortheir relatives, is/ are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in the

Resolution except tothe extent oftheir shareholding in the Company, if any.

The Board of Directors recommends theOrdinary Resolution as set out in Item No.6 forapproval of the

Members.
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The aforesaid proposed contract(s) / transac�on(s) / arrangement(s) have been approved by the Audit 
Commi�ee and recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company to the Members for their approval.

In Item No. 6 except Mr. Sanjay Jain and Mr. Siddhant Jain and their rela�ves, none of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and/ or their rela�ves, is/ are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in the 
Resolu�on except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on as set out in Item No. 6 for approval of the 
Members.

Par�culars Details
Sl.

No.

Name of the Related
Party

Inter State Liquid Logis�cs
Limited

Inter State Capital Markets 
Pvt. Ltd. 

1.

Name of the Director
or KMP who is related

1. Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing 
Director.
2. Mr. Siddhant Jain, Whole Time
 Director.

1. Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing
Director.
2. Mr. Siddhant Jain, Whole Time
Director.

2.

Nature of Rela�onship Director holds significant 
influence.

Director holds significant 
influence.

3.

Nature, dura�on,
material terms,
monetary value and
par�culars of the
contract or
arrangement

4. The Hire Agreement of Availing/ 
rendering of logis�cs services as 
per requirement for the business 
of the Company entered between 

st
both the party is valid �ll 31  
March, 2025. Therefore, the 
Company has entered into a fresh 

th
Agreement on 9  day of August, 

st
2024 star�ng from 1  April, 2025 

st
to 31  March, 2028. 
Monetary value of proposed 
a g g re gate  t ra n s a c � o n ( s )  i s 
expected to be ₹20 Crores (Rupees 
Twenty Crores only) per financial 
year during the tenure of the 
Contract. The contract is for three 
financial years commencing from 
financial year 2025-2026.  The 
transac�on shall be on arm's 
length basis.

Inter State Capital Markets Pvt. Ltd. 
avails the logis�cs services i.e., 
hiring of tankers from Inter State 
O i l  C a r r i e r  L i m i t e d  a s  p e r 
requirement for the business of 
the Company. 
The Audit Commi�ee and the 
Board in their Mee�ng held on 
25.05.2023, respec�vely approved 
the related party transac�on for a 
period of three years commencing 
from 25.05.2023 to 24.05.2026 
and in the mee�ng held on 
09.11.2023 increase the limit of 
the transac�on to 20 Crores 
(Rupees Twenty Crores only). The 
transac�ons entered is in the 
ordinary course of business and 
are at arm's length basis.
Monetary value of proposed 
a g g re gate  t ra n s a c � o n ( s )  i s 
expected to be ₹20 Crores (Rupees 
Twenty Crores only) per financial 
year during the tenure of the 
Contract. 

5. Any other informa�on 
relevant or important 
for the Members to 
take a decision on the 
proposed Resolu�on

As per the Agreement entered between both the par�es. The 
transac�ons shall be in ordinary course of business and on arm's 
length basis at a price prevailing as on the date of Transac�on.
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Registered Office:

113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing, 5“ Floor,

Kolkata —700016

Dated: The 9“ day of August, 2024

By Order ofthe Board

ForInter State OilCarrier Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 2024 j

Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary

(Membership No.: A34765)

Registered Office:
113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

thSouth Wing, 5  Floor,
Kolkata –700016

thDated: The 9  day of August, 2024

By Order of the     Board
For Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

Rashmi Sharma
Company Secretary

    (Membership No. : A34765)
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ANNEXURE-1

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment atthe 40“ Annual General Meeting.

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 and Secretarial Standard2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India].

NameoftheDirector

DIN

Date of Birth/Age

Date offirst appointment on the Board

Qualifications

Experience and Expertise

Terms and Conditions of appointment/

re-appointment

Listed entities from which resigned in

the past Three years

Remuneration last drawn.

Mr. Sunil Saha

00606846

09.03.1963/61 years

30.11.2019

B. Com, Chartered

Accountants,

Company Secretary,

Cost Accountant

He has an extensive

and varied

experience in

Corporate affairs,
taxation, audit,

management

information

systems in varied

sectors such as
manufacturing,

service, micro

finance, banking,

etc. He is the
partner of

Chartered

Accountant firm

SRB and Associates.
He is associated

with various NGOs

forcarrying out

social activities.

As set out in

Explanatory

Statement.

R25,000.00 per

annum during FY

2023-24 (Sitting

Fees).

Mr. Siddhant Jain

07154500

18.04.1996/28 years

02.05.2024

B. Com, CFA, MBA

He hasa working

experience of 3.5

years in

Transportation
Industry and 1 year

experience in

Supply chain

consultancy.

As set out in

Explanatory

Statement.
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NA

Mr.Sanjay Jain

00167765

23.02.1971/53 years

31.08.1994

B.Com, MBA

Mr.Sanjay Jain has

experience of more

than 31 years in

Transport Industry.

Re-appointment in

terms ofSection

152(6) of the

Companies Act,

2013.

R3 1,88,940.00 was

drawn in the FY 2023-

2024.
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[Pursuant to Regula�on 36(3) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Mee�ngs issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of 
India].
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ANNEXURE- 1

Name of the Director Mr. Sunil Saha Mr. Siddhant Jain Mr. Sanjay Jain

DIN  00606846 07154500 00167765

Date of Birth/Age 09.03.1963/61 years 18.04.1996/28 years 23.02.1971/53 years

Date of first appointment on the Board 30.11.2019 02.05.2024 31.08.1994

Qualifica�ons B. Com, Chartered B. Com, CFA, MBA B.Com, MBA
  Accountants,
  Company Secretary,
  Cost Accountant

Experience and Exper�se He has an extensive 
and varied 
experience in 
Corporate affairs, 
taxa�on, audit, 
management 
informa�on 
systems in varied 
sectors such as 
manufacturing, 
service, micro 
finance, banking, 
etc. He is the 
partner of 
Chartered 
Accountant firm 
SRB and Associates. 
He is associated 
with various NGOs 
for carrying out 
social ac�vi�es.

He has a working 
experience of 3.5 
years in 
Transporta�on 
Industry and 1 year 
experience in 
Supply chain 
consultancy.

Mr. Sanjay Jain has 
experience of more 
than  31 years in 
Transport Industry.

Terms and Condi�ons of appointment / 
re-appointment

As set out in 
Explanatory 
Statement.

As set out in 
Explanatory 
Statement.

Re-appointment in 
terms of Sec�on 
152(6) of the 
Companies Act, 
2013.

Listed en��es from which resigned in 
the past Three years

- - -

Remunera�on last drawn. ₹25,000.00 per 

annum during FY 

2023-24 (Si�ng 

Fees). 

NA ₹31,88,940.00 was 
drawn in the FY 2023-
2024. 



Name oftheDirector
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Details of remuneration sought to be

paid.

Directorship held in other listed

Companies#

Membership/Chairmanship of Commi-

ttees of other public companies (inclu-

des only Audit Committees and Stake-

holders Relationship Committee)

Shareholding in the Company

The number ofMeetings ofthe Board

attended during the FY 2023-2024.

Terms and conditions

ofappointment/re-appointment.

Relationship with other directors,

manager, and other Key Managerial

Personnel ofthe Company.

Mr. Sunil Saha

As an Independent

Director, he shall be

eligible for Sitting

Fees

5 (Five) out of5

(Five).

Re-appointment as an

Independent Director

fora term of5 consec-

u tiv e y e a r s f ro m

30.11.2024 to 29.11.-

2029.

There is no inter-se

relationship with

any other Director

of the Company.

Mr.Siddhant Jain

As mentioned in

explanatory state-

ment to item nos.

3&4

NA

App o int me nt a s

Executive/ Whole

Time Director, liable

to retire by rotation,

for a period of3

(Three) years with

effe ct fro m 02'
d

May, 2024 to 01“

May, 2027.

Mr. Siddhant Jain,

WholeTime Direc-

tor of the Company

is son of Mr. Sanjay

Jain, Managing Dir-

ector of the Com-

pany.

Mr. Sanjay Jain

Gross Remuneration

sought to be paid

R3,47,000.00 per

month.

6,87,835 (including

43,923 equity

shares in HUF) as

on 31.03.2024

5 (Five) out of5

(Five).

Re-appointment as

D irector liab Ie to

retire by rotation.

Mr. Sanjay Jain, Man-

aging Director of the

Company is Father of

M r. Sidd hant Jain,

Whole Time Director

of the Company.

# Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Government Companies
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Name of the Director Mr. Sunil Saha Mr. Siddhant Jain Mr. Sanjay Jain

Details of remunera�on sought to be 
paid.

As an Independent 
Director, he shall be 
eligible for Si�ng 
Fees

As men�oned in 
explanatory state-
ment to item nos. 
3&4

Gross Remunera�on 
sought to be paid 
₹3,47,000.00 per 
month.

Directorship held in other listed 
Companies #

- - -

Membership/Chairmanship of Commi-
�ees of other public companies (inclu-
des only Audit Commi�ees and Stake-
holders Rela�onship Commi�ee)

- - -

Shareholding in the Company - - 6,87,835 (including 
43,923 equity 
shares in HUF) as 
on 31.03.2024

The number of Mee�ngs of the Board 
a�ended during the FY 2023-2024.

5 (Five) out of 5 
(Five).

NA 5 (Five) out of 5 

(Five).

Terms and condi�ons
of appointment/re-appointment.

Re-appointment as an 
Independent Director 
for a term of 5 consec-
u � v e  y e a r s  f r o m 
30.11.2024 to 29.11.-
2029.

Appointment  as 
Execu�ve/ Whole 
Time Director, liable 
to re�re by rota�on, 
for a period of 3 
(Three) years with 

n d
effect  f rom 02  

stMay, 2024 to 01  
May, 2027.

Re-appointment as 
Director  l iable  to 
re�re by rota�on. 

Rela�onship with other directors, 
manager, and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company.

There is no inter-se 
rela�onship with 
any other Director 
of the Company.

Mr. Siddhant Jain, 
WholeTime Direc-
tor of the Company 
is son of Mr. Sanjay 
Jain, Managing Dir-
ector of the Com-
pany. 

Mr. Sanjay Jain, Man-
aging Director of the 
Company is Father of 
Mr. Siddhant Jain, 
Whole Time Director 
of the Company.  

# Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Government Companies
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ANNEXURE-2

I. STATEMENT HAVING DETAILSAS PER SECTION II OF PART II OF SCHEDULEV OF

THEACT INRESPECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS AT ITEM NOS.3 TO4 OF THE

NOTICE.

1. Nature ofindustry. The Company is inter-alia engaged in the Business of

Transportation.

2. Date or expected date of Existing Company in operation since 1984.

c o m m e n c e m e n t o f

Business.

3 In case of new companies, NotApplicable.

e x p e c I e d d a I e o f

commencement ofactivities as

p er p roj ect a p p roved by

financial institutions appearing

in the prospectus.

4. F in an cial perform an ce

based on given indicators.
Particulars

Total Income Profit before Tax Profit after Tax

(¢ in Lakhs) (Xin lakhs) (T in lakhs

2023-2024 8,524.71 165.59 86.24

2022-2023 5,408.16 (72.59) (42.58)

2021-2022 4,775.64 330.11 273.13

s. F o reig n In ves I m en ts o r None

collaborations, ifany.

II. INFORMATION ABOUTTHEAPPOINTEES, MR. SIDDHANT JAIN

SI No Particulars Mr. Siddhant Jain

1. Background Details. Mr. Siddhant Jain holdsa bachelor's degree and isa Chartered

Financial Analyst. He also holdsa degree in MBA in Finance from

Indian School of Business. He hasa working experience of 3.5

years in Transportation Industry and 1 years' experience in

Supply chain consultancy.

2. Past Remuneration. NA

3. Recognition ofawards. None

4. Job profile and his suitability. Mr. Siddhant Jain has been appointed asa Whole Time Director

of the Company to look after the day-to-day affairs of the

Company and provide guidance and supervision to Board of

Directors of the Company.

5. Remuneration Proposed. As mentioned in explanatory statement to item nos.3 & 4

6. Comparative remuneration The remuneration payable is comparable to the remuneration

profile with respect to industry, paid toa person holding similar position in other companies of

size of the Company, profile of similar size as that ofthe Company.
theposition and person.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly Mr. Siddhant Jain is son of Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director of

o r ind ire ct Iy with the theCompany. Apart from receiving remuneration as stated

Company orrelationship with above, Mr. Siddhant Jain provide tankers to the Company, the

managerial person, if any. transaction takes place atthe arms length basis and the Company

entered into an agreement with Mr. Siddhant Jain. Apart from

this Mr. Siddhant Jain does nothave any other pecuniary relationship

with the Companyorwith the managerial personnel ofthe Company.
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Sl No

1. Background Details. Mr. Siddhant Jain holds a bachelor's degree and is a Chartered 
Financial Analyst. He also holds a degree in MBA in Finance from 
Indian School of Business. He has a working experience of 3.5 
years in Transporta�on Industry and 1 years' experience in 
Supply chain consultancy.

2. Past Remunera�on. NA

5. Remunera�on Proposed.

ANNEXURE- 2

I. STATEMENT HAVING DETAILS AS PER SECTION II OF PART II OF SCHEDULE V OF 
THE ACT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS AT ITEM NOS. 3 TO 4 OF THE 
NOTICE.

1. Nature of industry. The Company is inter-alia engaged in the Business of 
Transportation.

2. Date or expected date of 
c o m m e n c e m e n t  o f 
Business.

Existing Company in operation since 1984.

3. In case of new companies, 
e x p e c t e d  d a t e  o f 
commencement of activities as 
per pro ject  approved by 
financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus.

Not Applicable.

4. Financia l  per formance 
based on given indicators. Particulars

Total Income
(` in Lakhs)

Profit before Tax
(₹ in lakhs)

Profit a�er Tax
(₹ in lakhs

 2023-2024 8,524.71 165.59 86.24
 2022-2023 5,408.16 (72.59) (42.58)
 2021-2022 4,775.64 330.11 273.13

None5. Fore ign  I nves tmen ts  o r 
collaborations, if any.

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEES, MR. SIDDHANT JAIN

Par�culars Mr. Siddhant Jain

3. Recogni�on of awards. None

4. Job profile and his suitability. Mr. Siddhant Jain has been appointed as a Whole Time Director 
of the Company to look a�er the day-to-day affairs of the 
Company and provide guidance and supervision to Board of 
Directors of the Company.

As men�oned in explanatory statement to item nos. 3 & 4

6. Compara�ve remunera�on 
profile with respect to industry, 
size of the Company, profile of 
the posi�on and person.

The remunera�on payable is comparable to the remunera�on 
paid to a person holding similar posi�on in other companies of 
similar size as that of the Company.

7. Pecuniary rela�onship directly 
o r  i n d i r e c t l y  w i t h   t h e   
Company  or rela�onship with 
managerial person, if any.

Mr. Siddhant Jain is son of Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director of 
the Company.  Apart from receiving remunera�on as stated 
above, Mr. Siddhant Jain provide tankers to the Company, the 
transac�on takes place at the arms length basis and the Company 
entered into an agreement with Mr. Siddhant Jain. Apart from 
this Mr. Siddhant Jain does not have any other pecuniary rela�onship 
with the Company or with the managerial personnel of the Company.
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III. OTHER INFORMATION:

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate Not applicable, as the Company hasposteda net profit after tax

profits. of¢86.14 Lakhs during the yearended 31“March, 2024.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be Not applicable as the Company hasadequate profits.

taken forimprovement.

3. Expected increase in producti- Not applicable as the Company hasadequate profits.

vity and profits in measurable

terms.

IV. DISCLOSURES:

The information and disclosures of the remuneration package of all Directors for FY 2023-24 have been

mentioned in the Board's Report forming part of the Annual Report under the Heading ”Remuneration to

Directors” as per the requirements ofSection II of Part II of ScheduleV oftheAct.

The Board is of the viewthat Mr. Siddhant Jain's knowledge and experience will add immense benefit and

value tothe Companyandpursuant tothe recommendationoftheNRC, recommends his remuneration as

a WholeTime Director of the Companyfora period from 02
n
‘May, 2024to01“May, 2027totheMembers

forapproval.
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III. OTHER INFORMATION:

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate 
profits.

Not applicable, as the Company has posted a net profit a�er tax 
stof ̀ 86.14 Lakhs during the year ended 31  March, 2024.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be 
taken for improvement.

Not applicable as the Company has adequate profits.

3. Expected increase in produc�-
vity and profits in measurable 
terms.

Not applicable as the Company has adequate profits.

IV. DISCLOSURES:

The informa�on and disclosures of the remunera�on package of all Directors for FY 2023-24 have been 
men�oned in the Board's Report forming part of the Annual Report under the Heading “Remunera�on to 
Directors” as per the requirements of Sec�on II of Part II of Schedule V of the Act.

The Board is of the view that Mr. Siddhant Jain’s knowledge and experience will add immense benefit and 
value to the Company and pursuant to the recommenda�on of the NRC, recommends his remunera�on as 

nd tha Whole Time Director of the Company for a period from 02  May, 2024 to 01  May, 2027 to the Members 
for approval.
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Particulars

Name oftheCompany

Contact details

Date and Time ofAGM

AGM EVSN

Cut-off date fore-Voting

E-Voting Start Date

E-Voting End Date

;l!NTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITEDj

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

INFORMATION

Link for Participation through VC/OAVM

Speaker Registration

E-mail correspondence forSpeaker Registration

KYC and Nomination Form

Registrar and Transfer Agents

ATA GLANCE

Details

Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

113, Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing, 5“ Floor, Kolkata — 700016

Tel: +91 33 2229 0588, +91 33 4067 5183

Fax: +91 33 2229 0085

E-mail: info@isocl.in

Website: https://isocI.in/

Thursday, 19“September, 2024 at1.00 p.m.

240812009

12“September, 2024

9.00 a.m. on Monday,16
t’

September, 2024

5.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 18” September, 2024

www.evotineindia.com

Atleast7 days prior to the date of the meeting

info@isocl.in

https://isocI.in/forms-downloads/

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

23,R N Mukherjee Road,

5“ Floor, Kolkata - 700001

Phone: +91 33 22482248,

Fax No: +91 33 22484787

E-mail: mdpldc@vahoo.com
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Par�culars Details

Name of the Company

Contact details

Date and Time of AGM

AGM EVSN

Cut-off date for e-Vo�ng

E-Vo�ng Start Date

E-Vo�ng End Date

Link for Par�cipa�on through VC/OAVM

Speaker Registra�on

E-mail correspondence for Speaker Registra�on

KYC and Nomina�on Form

Registrar and Transfer Agents

Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

113, Park Street, Poddar Point,
thSouth Wing, 5  Floor, Kolkata – 700016

Tel: +91 33 2229 0588, +91 33 4067 5183
Fax: +91 33 2229 0085
E-mail: info@isocl.in
Website: h�ps://isocl.in/

th Thursday, 19 September, 2024 at 1.00 p.m.

240812009

th
12  September, 2024

th9.00 a.m. on Monday, 16  September, 2024

th
5.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 18  September, 2024

www.evo�ngindia.com

Atleast 7 days prior to the date of the mee�ng

info@isocl.in

h�ps://isocl.in/forms-downloads/

Maheshwari Datama�cs Private Limited
23, R N Mukherjee Road,

th5  Floor, Kolkata - 700001
Phone: +91 33 22482248, 
Fax No: +91 33 22484787
E-mail : mdpldc@yahoo.com

INFORMATION AT A GLANCE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Ason 9“August, 2024)

Board of Directors

Managing Director

Mr. Sanjay Jain

Whole Time Director

Mr. Siddhant Jain (Appointed w.e.f 02.05.2024)

Non- Executive/ Independent Directors

Mrs. Pooja Sarda

Mr. Sunil Shah

Mr.Nand Kumar Bhatter

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Mrs. Pooja Sarda, Chairperson

Mr. Nand Kumar Bhatter, Member

Mr.Sunil Shah, Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mrs. Pooja Sarda, Chairperson

Mr. Nand Kumar Bhatter, Member

Mr.Sunil Shah, Member

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee

Mrs. Pooja Sarda, Chairperson

Mr. Siddhant Jain, Member

Mr.Sanjay Jain, Member

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Malay Das

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer

Ms. Rashmi Sharma

Auditors

Statutory Auditors

Patni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

Internal Auditor

Mr. Sudhir Kumar Jha

Secretarial Auditors

Rantu Das& Associates,

Practicing Company Secretaries

Bankers

Induslnd Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

Yes Bank Limited

Axis Bank Limited

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

23,R N Mukherjee Road,

5” Floor, Kolkata-700001

Phone: +91 33 2248 2248

FaxNo:+91 33 2248 4787

E-mail: mdpldc@vahoo.com

Website: https://www.mdpl.in

Registered Office

113, Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing, 5” Floor,

Kolkata — 700016

Tel: +91 33 2229 0588, +91 33 4067 5183

Fax: +91 33 2229 0085

E-mail: info@isocl.in

Website: https://isocI.in/
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th CORPORATE INFORMATION (As on 9 August, 2024)
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  Chartered Accountants
Whole Time Director
Mr. Siddhant Jain (Appointed w.e.f 02.05.2024)  Internal Auditor
  Mr. Sudhir Kumar Jha
Non- Execu�ve/ Independent Directors 
Mrs. Pooja Sarda Secretarial Auditors
Mr. Sunil Shah Rantu Das & Associates,
Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er Prac�cing Company Secretaries 
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Audit Commi�ee IndusInd Bank Limited   
Mrs. Pooja Sarda, Chairperson ICICI Bank Limited
Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er, Member Yes Bank Limited
Mr. Sunil Shah, Member Axis Bank Limited
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Mrs. Pooja Sarda, Chairperson Maheshwari Datama�cs Private Limited 
Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er, Member 23, R N Mukherjee Road, 

thMr. Sunil Shah, Member 5  Floor, Kolkata-700001
  Phone: +91 33 2248 2248 
Stakeholder’s Rela�onship Commi�ee Fax No: +91 33 2248 4787
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BOARD'S REPORT

TotheMembersofInter State OilCarrier Limited,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 40
t
’ Annual Report along with the Audited

Financial Statement ofAccounts oftheCompanyforthefinancial yearended on 31
t
March, 2024.

INANCALHlGHLGHTS

Summary ofFinancial Results achieved forthe financial year (FY) ended 31”March, 2024 ascompared to

previous financial year is as follows:

(Min Lakhs except per equity share data)

Particulars

Revenue from Operations (Turnover)

Other Income

Total Income

Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax (PBDIT)

Depreciation& Amortization

Finance Cost

Profit before Tax

Less: Provision for Taxation:-

Current year Tax

Deferred Tax& Earlier Year Tax

Profit for the year after Tax

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) forthe year, Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive Income fortheyear

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Net Worth

Fixed Assets

Book Value Per Share (T)

Financial Year Financial Year
2023-24 2022-23
(FY 2024) (FY2023)

8,473.59 5,382.18

51.12 26.43

8,524.71 5,408.61

745.41 470.23

407.30 376.93

172.52 165.89

165.59 (72.59)

30.94

48.41

86.24

(0.10)

86.14

499.23

1,317.88

1,817.11

2,074.80

36.40

0.07

(30.08)

(42.58)

(0.37)

(42.95)

499.23

1,231.74

1,730.97

2,387.86

34.67

Note: The above figures are extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company asper

theIndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

DIVIDEND

Witha viewtoconserve resources forfuture operations and growth theBoard has not recommended any

dividend forFY 2023-24.

TRANSFERTO RESERVES

The closing balance of the retained earnings of the Company forFY2024, after all appropriation and

adjustments was R1,317.88 lakhs. During the year under review, the Company hasnottransferred any

amounttoGeneral Reserves.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Therevenue forFY2024was R8,473.59 Lakhs, higher by 57.43 percent overthe previous year's revenue of

R5,382.18 Lakhs in FY 2023. The PAT forFY 2024 was R86.14 Lakhs registeringa growth of300.56 percent

overthe PAT off(42.95) Lakhs in FY 2023.
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BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited, 
th

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presen�ng the 40  Annual Report along with the Audited 
st

Financial Statement of Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2024. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
st

Summary of Financial Results achieved for the financial year (FY) ended 31  March, 2024 as compared to 
previous financial year is as follows:

(₹in Lakhs except per equity share data)

Par�culars       

Revenue from Opera�ons (Turnover ) 8,473.59 5,382.18

Other Income 51.12 26.43

Total Income 8,524.71 5,408.61 

Profit before Deprecia�on, Interest and Tax (PBDIT) 745.41 470.23  

Deprecia�on & Amor�za�on 407.30 376.93

Finance Cost 172.52 165.89

Profit before Tax 165.59 (72.59)

Less : Provision for Taxa�on:-

          Current year Tax                                       30.94 0.07 

          Deferred Tax & Earlier Year Tax             48.41 (30.08)

Profit for the year a�er Tax 86.24 (42.58) 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, Net of Tax (0.10) (0.37) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 86.14 (42.95) 

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Share Capital 499.23 499.23

Reserves and Surplus 1,317.88 1,231.74 

Net Worth 1,817.11 1,730.97 

Fixed Assets 2,074.80 2,387.86 

Book Value Per Share (`) 36.40 34.67 

Note:  The above figures are extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company as per 
the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS).

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources for future opera�ons and growth the Board has not recommended any 
dividend for FY 2023-24.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The closing balance of the retained earnings of the Company for FY 2024, a�er all appropria�on and 
adjustments was ₹1,317.88 lakhs. During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any 
amount to General Reserves. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

The revenue for FY 2024 was ₹8,473.59 Lakhs, higher by 57.43 percent over the previous year's revenue of 
₹5,382.18 Lakhs in FY 2023. The PAT for FY 2024 was ₹86.14 Lakhs registering a growth of 300.56 percent 
over the PAT of ₹(42.95) Lakhs in FY 2023.
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Financial Year
2023-24

(FY 2024)

Financial Year
2023-24

(FY 2024)

Financial Year
2022-23

(FY 2023)
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

In FY 2023-24, commercial vehicles witnessed the second-highest domestic sales growth in India. In FY

2023-24, the CV Industry in India is expected to witness positive volume growth of 20-30% driven by

positive demand drivers from multiple Industries and growing freight movements. As logistics providers

we set our sights on 2024 and beyond, navigating the rapidly evolving technological landscape presents

both challenges and opportunities. Adapting to the pace oftechnological change posesa challenge in

terms of workforce upskilling and infrastructure upgrades. However, these challenges come with

opportunities. Embracing automation, data analytics unlocks operational efficiencies, cost savings, and

enhanced customer experiences. Leveraging sustainable practices aligns with market demands foreco-

friendly solutions. Success in this landscape hinges on agile strategies that capitalize on technological

opportunities while mitigating associated challenges forlong-term growth and resilience.

CHANGEINNATUREOF BUSINESS, IFANY

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature ofthe business ofyourCompany.

CAPITALSTRUCTURE& CHANGESINSHARECAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is R5,30,00,000 comprising 53,00,000 Equity Shares ofR10/-

each ason 31"March, 2024. The paid-up share capital of the Company stands atR4,99,23,000 comprising

of49,92,300 Equity Shares of R10/- each ason 31“March, 2024. During the year under review, there was

no change in the capital of the Company. Further, the Company hasnotissued any sweat equity shares or

bonus shares or equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

DIRECTORSAND KEYMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL(KMPs)

Composition ofthe Board

The Company's policy is to have an appropriate mix of Executives and Independent Directors to maintain

the independence ofthe Board. As on 31" March, 2024, the Board ofDirectors of the Company comprised

of5 (five) Directors, viz.3 (three) Non-Executive/Independent Directors includinga Woman Director and2

(two) Executive Directors. The profile of all the Directors can be accessed on the Company's website at

https://isocI.in/about-us/.

Director liable to Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.

Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765), Managing Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and being

eligible, offers himselfforre-appointment.

Re-appointmentofIndependent Director

Mr. Sunil Shah, (DIN: 00606846) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 30’"

November, 2019 fora term of five years. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and after taking into account the performance evaluation, his knowledge,

expertise, experience and the substantial contribution made byhim, the Board atits meeting held on 23’°

May, 2024 hasrecommended there-appointment of Mr. Sunil Shah as an Independent Director of the

Company fora second term offive years with effect from 30” November, 2024, subject to the approval of

the members attheensuing Annual General Meeting oftheCompany andwhose office shall not be liable

to retire by rotation. The Board recommendsthere-appointmenttothe Shareholders.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

In FY 2023-24, commercial vehicles witnessed the second-highest domes�c sales growth in India. In FY 
2023-24, the CV Industry in India is expected to witness posi�ve volume growth of 20-30% driven by 
posi�ve demand drivers from mul�ple Industries and growing freight movements. As logis�cs providers 
we set our sights on 2024 and beyond, naviga�ng the rapidly evolving technological landscape presents 
both challenges and opportuni�es. Adap�ng to the pace of technological change poses a challenge in 
terms of workforce upskilling and infrastructure upgrades. However, these challenges come with 
opportuni�es. Embracing automa�on, data analy�cs unlocks opera�onal efficiencies, cost savings, and 
enhanced customer experiences. Leveraging sustainable prac�ces aligns with market demands for eco-
friendly solu�ons. Success in this landscape hinges on agile strategies that capitalize on technological 
opportuni�es while mi�ga�ng associated challenges for long-term growth and resilience.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business of your Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE & CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is ₹5,30,00,000 comprising 53,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10/- 
st 

each as on 31 March, 2024. The paid-up share capital of the Company stands at ₹4,99,23,000 comprising 
st 

of 49,92,300 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each as on 31 March, 2024. During the year under review, there was 
no change in the capital of the Company. Further, the Company has not issued any sweat equity shares or 
bonus shares or equity shares with differen�al rights as to dividend, vo�ng or otherwise.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs)

Composi�on of the Board

The Company's policy is to have an appropriate mix of Execu�ves and Independent Directors to maintain 
stthe independence of the Board. As on 31  March, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised 

of 5 (five) Directors, viz. 3 (three) Non-Execu�ve/Independent Directors including a Woman Director and 2 
(two) Execu�ve Directors. The profile of all the Directors can be accessed on the Company's website at 
h�ps://isocl.in/about-us/.

Director liable to Re�re by Rota�on 

In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152(6)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, Mr. 
Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765), Managing Director of the Company, who re�res by rota�on and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

Re-appointment of Independent Director
thMr. Sunil Shah, (DIN: 00606846) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 30  

November, 2019 for a term of five years.  Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee and a�er taking into account the performance evalua�on, his knowledge, 

rdexper�se, experience and the substan�al contribu�on made by him, the Board at its mee�ng held on 23  
May, 2024 has recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Shah as an Independent Director of the 

th
Company for a second term of five years with effect from 30  November, 2024, subject to the approval of 
the members at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng of the Company and whose office shall not be liable 
to re�re by rota�on. The Board recommends the re-appointment to the Shareholders.

https://isocl.in/about-us/
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Pursuant to the recommendation ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') and Audit

Committee ('AC') in their meeting held on 02° May, 2024, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Siddhant

Jain (DIN: 07154500) as Additional Director of the Company with effect from 02° May, 2024, in

accordance with the Articles of Association and Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. He shall hold

office uptothe date ofthe forthcoming Annual General Meeting.A notice under Section 160(1) ofthe Act,

has been received froma Member signifying her intention to propose his appointment as Director.

Further, based on the recommendation ofNRC, the Board also appointed Mr. Siddhant Jain as Executive

Director (Whole Time Director) of the Company fora period of3 years with effect from 02’
d
May, 2024,

subject to approval ofthe Shareholders in the ensuingAnnual General Meeting.

Resignation

Mr.Shanti Lal Jain resigned fromtheposition of Executive/WhoIe-time Director and also as the director of

the Companywith effect from close of business hours on 30”April, 2024duetohis ailing health. Further, in

his resignation letter, he confirmed that there was no other reason for his resignation except the ones

stated in the resignation letter.

Information regarding the directors seeking appointment/re-appointmentasrequired by Regulation 36 of

the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India ('ICSI') along with other required details forms part of the Notice of40”AnnuaI General

Meeting.

Independent Directors

In terms ofSection 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, as on 31
t
March, 2024, your company hadfollowing

Independent Directors:

• Mrs. Pooja Sarda,

• Mr. Nand Kumar Bhatter,

• Mr. Sunil Shah,

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company hasreceived declarations from all Independent Directors confirming that they meet the

criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Section 149 (6) of the Act read with the

Schedule and Rules issued thereunder as well as Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations (including any

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). There has been no

change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the Company. Further, all

Independent Directors of the Company have registered their names in the Independent Directors' Data

Bank.

The Independent Directors have complied with the Code forIndependent Directors prescribed in

Schedule IVto the Act along with the Code ofConduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel

formulated by the CompanyasperListing Regulations.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

Pursuant tothe provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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Appointment 

Pursuant to the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee ('NRC') and Audit 
nd

Commi�ee ('AC') in their mee�ng held on 02  May, 2024, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Siddhant 
nd

Jain (DIN : 07154500) as Addi�onal Director of the Company with effect from 02  May, 2024, in 
accordance with the Ar�cles of Associa�on and Sec�on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. He shall hold 
office upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Mee�ng. A no�ce under Sec�on 160(1) of the Act, 
has been received from a Member signifying her inten�on to propose his appointment as Director. 
Further, based on the recommenda�on of NRC, the Board also appointed Mr. Siddhant Jain as Execu�ve 

nd
Director (Whole Time Director) of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 02  May, 2024, 
subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng. 

Resigna�on

Mr. Shan� Lal Jain resigned from the posi�on of Execu�ve / Whole-�me Director and also as the director of 
th

the Company with effect from close of business hours on 30  April, 2024 due to his ailing health. Further, in 
his resigna�on le�er, he confirmed that there was no other reason for his resigna�on except the ones 
stated in the resigna�on le�er.

Informa�on regarding the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment as required by Regula�on 36 of 
the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Mee�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Company 

th Secretaries of India ('ICSI') along with other required details forms part of the No�ce of 40 Annual General 
Mee�ng. 

Independent Directors 
st

In terms of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, as on 31  March, 2024, your company had following 
Independent Directors:

 l Mrs. Pooja Sarda, 

 l Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er,

 l Mr. Sunil Shah,

Declara�on by Independent Directors

The Company has received declara�ons from all Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act read with the 
Schedule and Rules issued thereunder as well as Regula�on 16 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons (including any 
statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force). There has been no 
change in the circumstances affec�ng their status as Independent Directors of the Company. Further, all 
Independent Directors of the Company have registered their names in the Independent Directors' Data 
Bank. 

The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in 
Schedule IV to the Act along with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel 
formulated by the Company as per Lis�ng Regula�ons.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
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Ason31”March, 2024, yourcompanyhasfollowing KMPs:

SI. No Name ofKMPs

1. Mr. Sanjay Jain

2. Mr. Shanti Lal Jain*

3. Mr. Malay Das

4. Ms. Rashmi Sharma

Designation

Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer

*Mr. Shanti Lal Jain (DIN: 00167773) resigned from theposition of Executive/ Whole Time Director and

also as the director of the Companywith effect from close of business hours on 30
t
"April, 2024.

Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500) has been appointed as Additional Director (Executive/ Whole Time

Director) with effect from 02* May, 2024.

BOARDMEETINGS

Five Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap between thetwo meetings did

notexceed one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum was present forall the meetings.

The details of Board Meetings along with Director's attendance aregiven below:

Name of

Director(s)

Mr. Shanti Lal

Jain

Mr. Sanjay

Jain

Mrs. Pooja

Sarda

Mr. Nand

Kumar Bhatter

Mr. Sunil Shah

Category DIN

25.05.2023 11.08.2023 09.11.2023 12.02.2024 21.02.2024

Promoter and 00167773 Yes No Yes No No

Chairman

Promoter and 00167765 Yes

Managing Director

Independent/ Non- 05344423 Yes

Executive Director

Independent/ Non- 00013918 Yes

Executive Director

Independent/ Non- 00606846 Yes

Executive Director

BOARDSKILLS, EXPERTISE OR COMPETENCIES

Board Meetings Attended

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

The Board of Directors of the Company is highly structured to ensure high degree of diversity by age,

qualification, professional background, sector expertise and special skills.

The Board of Directors have, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee, identified the following core skills/expertise/competencies of Directors, as required in the

context ofCompany's business:

a. Operations

b. Finance

c. Accounts

d. Marketing

e. Management
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stAs on 31  March, 2024, your company has following KMPs:

*Mr. Shan� Lal Jain (DIN : 00167773)  resigned from the posi�on of Execu�ve / Whole Time Director and 
thalso as the director of the Company with effect from close of business hours on 30  April, 2024.

Mr. Siddhant Jain (DIN : 07154500) has been appointed as Addi�onal Director (Execu�ve / Whole Time 
nd

Director) with effect from 02  May, 2024.

BOARD MEETINGS

Five Board Mee�ngs were held during the year under review and the gap between the two mee�ngs did 
not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all the mee�ngs.

The details of Board Mee�ngs along with Director's a�endance are given below:

BOARD SKILLS, EXPERTISE OR COMPETENCIES 

The Board of Directors of the Company is highly structured to ensure high degree of diversity by age, 
qualifica�on, professional background, sector exper�se and special skills. 

The Board of Directors have, based on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee, iden�fied the following core skills/exper�se/competencies of Directors, as required in the 
context of Company's business:

 a. Opera�ons

 b. Finance

 c. Accounts

 d. Marke�ng

 e. Management

Category DIN

Mr. Shan� Lal 
Jain
Mr. Sanjay 
Jain
Mrs. Pooja
Sarda
Mr. Nand
Kumar Bha�er
Mr. Sunil Shah

00167773 Yes No No No

00167765 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

05344423 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

00013918 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

00606846 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Promoter and
Chairman
Promoter and
Managing Director
Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director
Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director
Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director

Board Mee�ngs A�ended

25.05.2023 11.08.2023 09.11.2023 12.02.2024 21.02.2024

Sl. No. Name of KMPs Designa�on

 1. Mr. Sanjay Jain Managing Director

 2. Mr. Shan� Lal Jain* Whole Time Director

 3. Mr. Malay Das Chief Financial Officer

 4. Ms. Rashmi Sharma Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Yes

Name of 
Director(s)
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Thefollowing are the details of respective core skills of Board Members ason 31”March, 2024.

Name ofDirector(s)

Mr. Shanti Lal Jain

Mr. Sanjay Jain

Mr. Nand Kumar Bhatter 00013918

Mrs. Pooja Sarda

Mr. Sunil Shah

05344423

00606846

DIN Category

00167773 Whole Time Director

00167765 Managing Director

Non-Executive/

Independent Director

Non-Executive/

Independent Director

Non-Executive/

Independent Director

Core Skills

• Operations

• Marketing

• Operations

• Management

• Accounts

• Management

• Accounts

• Finance

• Accounts

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITSCOMMITTEESAND THEDIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Listing Regulations and Nomination and Remuneration Policy of

the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and the Board has carried out the

annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors by way of individual

and collective feedback from Directors. The Independent Directors have also carried out annual

performance evaluation ofthe Chairperson, the non-independentdirectors and the Board asa whole.

Performance Evaluation forms containing criteria for evaluation of Board asa whole, Committees ofthe

Board and Individual Directors and Chairman oftheCompanywere sent to all the Directors witha request

to provide their feedback to the Company on theAnnual Performance Evaluation of Board asa whole,

Committees ofBoard, Individual Directors& Chairman oftheCompanyforthefinancial year 2023-24. The

Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their

knowledge and ability, confirm:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed

alongwith properexplanation relating to material departure, if any;

b. That such Accounting Policies have been selected and applied by them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so astogivea true and fair view ofthestate

of affairs of the Company attheendofthefinancial year and ofthe Profit and Loss of the Companyfor

that period;

c. That proper and sufficient care has been taken by them forthemaintenance ofadequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

forpreventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. That theAnnual Accounts have been prepared by them ona going concern basis;

e. That they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such

internal financial controls are adequate and areoperating effectively; and

f. That they have devised proper systems toensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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st
The following are the details of respec�ve core skills of Board Members as on 31  March, 2024. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy of 
the Company, the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (“NRC”) and the Board has carried out the 
annual performance evalua�on of the Board, its Commi�ees and individual Directors by way of individual 
and collec�ve feedback from Directors. The Independent Directors have also carried out annual 
performance evalua�on of the Chairperson, the non-independent directors and the Board as a whole.

Performance Evalua�on forms containing criteria for evalua�on of Board as a whole, Commi�ees of the 
Board and Individual Directors and Chairman of the Company were sent to all the Directors with a request 
to provide their feedback to the Company on the Annual Performance Evalua�on of Board as a whole, 
Commi�ees of Board, Individual Directors & Chairman of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Directors expressed their sa�sfac�on with the evalua�on process.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Sec�on 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and ability, confirm:

a. In the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed 
along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departure, if any;

b. That such Accoun�ng Policies have been selected and applied by them consistently and made 
judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit and Loss of the Company for 
that period;

c. That proper and sufficient care has been taken by them for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d. That the Annual Accounts have been prepared by them on a going concern basis;

e. That they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and are opera�ng effec�vely; and

f. That they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely. 

Name of Director(s) DIN Category Core Skills

Mr. Shan� Lal Jain 00167773 Whole Time Director l�Opera�ons

Mr. Sanjay Jain 00167765 Managing Director l�Marke�ng

   l�Opera�ons

Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er 00013918 Non-Execu�ve/ l�Management

   Independent Director l�Accounts

Mrs. Pooja Sarda 05344423 Non-Execu�ve/ l�Management

   Independent Director l�Accounts

Mr. Sunil Shah 00606846 Non-Execu�ve/ l�Finance

   Independent Director l�Accounts
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There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which

have occurred between the end ofthefinancial year of the Company towhich the financial statement

relates and till the date ofthis report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS,

STATUTORYAND QUASI-JUDICIALBODY

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts and tribunals, statutory and

quasi-judicial body impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations in future.

RISKMANAGEMENT

TheCompany like any other enterprise is exposed to business risk which can be internal risks as well as

external risks. Any unexpected changes in regulatory framework pertaining to fiscal benefits and other

related issues can affect our operations and profitability.A key factor in determininga Company's capacity

to create sustainable value is the ability and willingness of the Company totake risks and manage them

effectively and efficiently. However, the Company is well aware oftheabove risks and as part of business

strategy has put ina mechanism toensure that they are mitigated with timely action. The details of the

Risk Management Policy are available on the Company's website and can be accessed through the link:

https://isocI.in/code-of-conduct-policies/.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

TheCompany hasnotaccepted any deposit falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies(AcceptanceofDeposit) Rules, 2014 during the

yearunder review.

LSTINGINFORMATON

TheEquity Shares ofyour Company is listed on the BombayStock Exchange Ltd(BSE), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy

Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001andthecode is 530259. The listing fee for the FY 2024-25, has been

paid.

REGISTRARAND SHARETRANSFERAGENTFORPHYSICALAND DEMATSEGMENTS(RTA)

The Company continued appointment of M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, Phone: +91 33

2248 2248, Fax No: +91 33 2248 4787, e-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com astheRegistrar and Share Transfer

Agents oftheCompany.

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATIONNUMBER(CIN)

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal. The Corporate

Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is

L15142WB1984PLC037472.

DEMATERIALIZATIONOF SHARES

The Equity Shares of the Company areregistered with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and

Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) forhaving the facility of Dematerialization of shares and its

ISIN No. is INE003B01014.

ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the

Companies (Management andAdministration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return as on 31" March, 2024 can
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

There are no material changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statement 
relates and �ll the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS, 
STATUTORY AND QUASI-JUDICIAL BODY

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts and tribunals, statutory and 
quasi-judicial body impac�ng the going concern status and the Company's opera�ons in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company like any other enterprise is exposed to business risk which can be internal risks as well as 
external risks. Any unexpected changes in regulatory framework pertaining to fiscal benefits and other 
related issues can affect our opera�ons and profitability. A key factor in determining a Company's capacity 
to create sustainable value is the ability and willingness of the Company to take risks and manage them 
effec�vely and efficiently. However, the Company is well aware of the above risks and as part of business 
strategy has put in a mechanism to ensure that they are mi�gated with �mely ac�on. The details of the 
Risk Management Policy are available on the Company's website and can be accessed through the link: 
h�ps://isocl.in/code-of-conduct-policies/.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit falling within the purview of provisions of Sec�on 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the 
year under review. 

LISTING INFORMATION

The Equity Shares of your Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy 
Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001 and the code is 530259. The lis�ng fee for the FY 2024-25, has been 
paid.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT FOR PHYSICAL AND DEMAT SEGMENTS (RTA) 

The Company con�nued appointment of M/s. Maheshwari Datama�cs Private Limited, Phone : +91 33 
2248 2248, Fax No : +91 33 2248 4787, e-mail :  as the Registrar and Share Transfer mdpldc@yahoo.com
Agents of the Company.

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (CIN) 

The  Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies,  Kolkata,  West Bengal. The Corporate 
Iden�ty Number (CIN) allo�ed to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 
L15142WB1984PLC037472.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

The Equity Shares of the Company are registered with Na�onal Securi�es Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and 
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) for having the facility of Dematerializa�on of shares and its 
ISIN No. is INE003B01014.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) and Sec�on 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the 
st

Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return as on 31  March, 2024 can 

https://isocl.in/code-of-conduct-policies/
mdpldc@yahoo.com%20
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beaccessed on the Company's website at: https://isocI.in/annual-return-as-provided-under-section-92-

of-the-companies-act-2013/.

STATUTORYAUDITORS

In compliance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, M/s. Patni

& Co. (ICAI Firm Registration Number 320304E), Chartered Accountants, were appointed asthe Statutory

Auditor of the Company, fora first term of5 (five) consecutive years at the 38"Annual General Meeting

(AGM) held on 20" September, 2022, to hold office from the conclusion of the said meeting till the

conclusion ofthe 43’
d
AGM to be held in the year2027.

STATUTORYAUDITORS' REPORT

The Statutory Auditor's Report issued by M/s. Patni& Co., Chartered Accountants, on the financial

statements of the Company forthefinancial year ended on 31"March, 2024 forms part of this Annual

Report. There areno reservations, qualifications or adverse remarks in the Independent Auditor's Report.

The notes forming part of the accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any further clarifications

underSection 134(3)(f) of the Act.

SECRETARIALAUDITORSAND SECRETARIALAUDITREPORT

Pursuant tothe provisions of Section 204 ofthe Act, read with Rule9 ofthe Companies(Appointmentand

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had

appointed M/s. Rantu Das& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit of

the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s. Rantu Das& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries in

Form No.MR-3 is annexed tothis Report as'Annexure— I'.

The Company does not have any material subsidiary company and hence the provisions of Secretarial

Audit for material unlisted company, as notified by SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated

08.02.2019, vide which Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),

Regulations, 2015 was amended, is not applicable to yourCompany.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134(3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, the Secretarial Auditor in

their report forthe hnancial yearended onthe31“March, 2024, madethefollowing observations:

Observation 1: As per the charge list in MCA site, there aretwo charges forwhich loan has been repaid, but

no satisfaction of charges has been filed to ROC.

Explanation: The Company is continuously following up with the charge holders forNo-objection letter for

satisfaction of charge. The company shall file the form forsatisfaction of charge as soon as no-objection

letter is received fromthecharge holder.

Observation 2: Clarification on shareholding pattern for the quarter ended 31.12.2023- It was observed

from theshareholding pattern submitted by the Company forDecember 2023 quarter that in Statement

foreign ownership limits the company hasshown limits utilized% morethan approved limit %.

Explanation: BSE notified the query in company's listing centre Communication Module portal on 27“

March, 2024 and theCompany have submitted the revised Shareholding pattern for the quarter ended

31"December, 2023on 28’" March, 2024.

ANNUALSECRETARIALCOMPLIANCEAUDIT

Therequirement ofAnnual SecretarialComplianceAudit under Regulation 24A ofSEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No.: CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019
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be accessed on the Company's website at: h�ps://isocl.in/annual-return-as-provided-under-sec�on-92-
of-the-companies-act-2013/.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In compliance with Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, M/s. Patni 
& Co. (ICAI Firm Registra�on Number 320304E), Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory 

th 
Auditor of the Company, for a first term of 5 (five) consecu�ve years at the 38 Annual General Mee�ng 

th
(AGM) held on 20  September, 2022, to hold office from the conclusion of the said mee�ng �ll the 

rdconclusion of the 43  AGM to be held in the year 2027.

STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT

The Statutory Auditor's Report issued by M/s. Patni & Co., Chartered Accountants, on the financial 
st 

statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 forms part of this Annual 
Report. There are no reserva�ons, qualifica�ons or adverse remarks in the Independent Auditor's Report. 
The notes forming part of the accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any further clarifica�ons 
under Sec�on 134 (3)(f) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Act, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had 
appointed M/s. Rantu Das & Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit of 
the Company. 

The Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s. Rantu Das & Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretaries in 
Form No. MR-3 is annexed to this Report as 'Annexure – I'. 

The Company does not have any material subsidiary company and hence the provisions of Secretarial 
Audit for material unlisted company, as no�fied by SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 
08.02.2019, vide which Regula�on 24A of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regula�ons, 2015 was amended, is not applicable to your Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Secretarial Auditor in 
st

their report for the financial year ended on the 31  March, 2024, made the following observa�ons:

Observa�on 1: As per the charge list in MCA site, there are two charges for which loan has been repaid, but 
no sa�sfac�on of charges has been filed to ROC. 

Explana�on: The Company is con�nuously following up with the charge holders for No-objec�on le�er for 
sa�sfac�on of charge. The company shall file the form for sa�sfac�on of charge as soon as no-objec�on 
le�er is received from the charge holder.

Observa�on 2: Clarifica�on on shareholding pa�ern for the quarter ended 31.12.2023- It was observed 
from the shareholding pa�ern submi�ed by the Company for December 2023 quarter that in Statement 
foreign ownership limits the company has shown limits u�lized % more than approved limit %.

thExplana�on: BSE no�fied the query in company's lis�ng centre Communica�on Module portal on 27  
March, 2024 and the Company have submi�ed the revised Shareholding pa�ern for the quarter ended 

st th
31  December, 2023 on 28  March, 2024.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT

The requirement of Annual Secretarial Compliance Audit under Regula�on 24A of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No.: CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 

https://isocl.in/annual-return-as-provided-under-section-92-of-the-companies-act-2013/%20
https://isocl.in/annual-return-as-provided-under-section-92-of-the-companies-act-2013/%20
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dated 08.02.2019 was notapplicable to the Company during the year under review.

INTERNALAUDITOR

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014, Mr. Sudhir Kumar Jhaconducted the Internal Audit of the Company fortheFY2023-24. The Audit

Committee considers and reviews the Internal Audit Report submitted by the Internal Auditor ona

quarterly basis.

COSTAUDITAND MAINTENANCEOFCOSTRECORDS

Theprovisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to maintenance ofCost Records

and CostAudit are not applicable on the Company.

TO THE CENTRALGOVERNMENT

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any

instances of frauds committed in the Company byits officers or employees, tothe Audit Committee orthe

Board ofDirectors under Section 143 (12) of the Act, including rules madethereunder.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND INVESTMENTS MADE AND SECURITIES

PROVIDED

TheCompany hascomplied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made

andguarantees provided during the year under review. The details of loans, guarantees and investments

covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the notes to the

Financial Statements forthe yearended 31"March, 2024.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN ATWORKPLACE (PREVENTION,

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company haszero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopteda policy on

prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment atwork place in line with the provisions of the

Sexual Harassment ofWomen atWorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the

Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The

Company hasformed Internal Complaints Committee in compliance with the provisions of the said Act to

redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,

temporary, trainees) are covered underthis Policy.

The following is the summary ofSexual Harassment complaints received and disposed of during the year

2023-24:

Number ofcomplaints pending as on 1stApril, 2023

Number ofcomplaints received during the year

Number ofcomplaints disposed offduring the year

Number ofcomplaints pending as on 31st March, 2024

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMEFORINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

All Board members oftheCompany areafforded every opportunity to familiarize themselves with the

Company, its management, its operations and above all, the Industry perspective and issues. They are

madetointeract with senior management personnel and proactively provided with relevant news, views

and updates on the Company and sector. All the information/documents sought by them is/are also

shared with them forenablinga good understanding of the Company, its various operations and the
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dated 08.02.2019 was not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, Mr. Sudhir Kumar Jha conducted the Internal Audit of the Company for the FY 2023-24. The Audit 
Commi�ee considers and reviews the Internal Audit Report submi�ed by the Internal Auditor on a 
quarterly basis. 

COST AUDIT AND MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

The provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to maintenance of Cost Records 
and Cost Audit are not applicable on the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE 
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any 
instances of frauds commi�ed in the Company by its officers or employees, to the Audit Commi�ee or the 
Board of Directors under Sec�on 143 (12) of the Act, including rules made thereunder.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND INVESTMENTS MADE AND SECURITIES 
PROVIDED

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sec�on 186 of the Act in respect of investments made 
and guarantees provided during the year under review. The details of loans, guarantees and investments 
covered under the provisions of Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the notes to the 

st
Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2024.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on 
preven�on, prohibi�on and redressal of sexual harassment at work place in line with the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder for preven�on and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The 
Company has formed Internal Complaints Commi�ee in compliance with the provisions of the said Act to 
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy.

The following is the summary of Sexual Harassment complaints received and disposed of during the year 
2023-24:

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Board members of the Company are afforded every opportunity to familiarize themselves with the 
Company, its management, its opera�ons and above all, the Industry perspec�ve and issues. They are 
made to interact with senior management personnel and proac�vely provided with relevant news, views 
and updates on the Company and sector. All the informa�on/documents sought by them is/are also 
shared with them for enabling a good understanding of the Company, its various opera�ons and the 

Number of complaints pending as on 1st April, 2023      Nil

Number of complaints received during the year      Nil

Number of complaints disposed off during the year      Nil

Number of complaints pending as on 31st March, 2024     Nil
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industry of which it isa part. The details of the Familiarisation Programme forIndependent Directors with

the Company in respect of their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in

which Company operates, business model of the Company and related matters is available on the

Company's website and can be accessed through the link: https://isocl.in/familiarization-programmed-

for-independent-director/.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

A. Nomination& Remuneration Policy

The policy is to have an appropriate mix of Executive and Non-Executive/Independent Directors to

maintain the independence ofthe Board, and separate its functions of governance and management. As

on 31"March, 2024, the Company has2 (Two) Executive Directors and3 (Three) Non-Executive Directors

on the Board. The Company's Policy for selection and appointment ofDirectors and their remuneration is

based on its Nomination and Remuneration policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner ofselection of

the Directors and such other matters as provided under Section 178(3) ofthe Act and 19(4) of SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any amendment thereto are

covered under the Company's Nomination and Remuneration Policy and on the Company's website and

can be accessed through the link: https://isocI.in/code-of-conduct-policies/.

Your Directors affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

There is no change in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company during the financial year

2023-24.

B. Remuneration toNon-Executive Independent Directors forthe yearended 31“March, 2024.

Thesitting fees paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors for the year ended 31”March, 2024 along

with their respective shareholdings in yourCompanyareasunder:

Director(s) Sitting Fees paid for the Commission Total No. of Ordinary
Board and Committee

Meetings held during the

year ended 31st March,

2024

(Rin Lakhs)

Paid/Payable (R in Lakhs) (Equity) Shares held

(R in Lakhs) as on 31st March,

2024

Mrs. Pooja Sarda 0.25 Nil 0.25 Nil

Mr. Nand Kumar Bhatter 0.25 Nil 0.25 Nil

Mr.SuniIShah 0.25 Nil 0.25 Nil

C. Remuneration paid/payable to Executive Chairman/WholeTime Director and Managing Director

forthe yearended 31“March, 2024.

Director(s)

M r. Shanti Lal Jain

M r. Sanjay Jain

Designation Salary Perquisites and Commission Total Contract Period

(R in Lakhs) Allowances paid/Payable (R in Lakhs)

(R in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)

Whole Time

Director

Managing

Director

19.03

29.16 2.13

Tenure of3
0.61 Nil 19.64 (Three)

years from

01“September

Nil 31.29 2022 to31”
August, 2025.
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industry of which it is a part. The details of the Familiarisa�on Programme for Independent Directors with 
the Company in respect of their roles, rights, responsibili�es in the Company, nature of the industry in 
which Company operates, business model of the Company and related ma�ers is available on the 
Company's website and can be accessed through the link: h�ps://isocl.in/familiariza�on-programmed-
for-independent-director/.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

A. Nomina�on & Remunera�on Policy

The policy is to have an appropriate mix of Execu�ve and Non-Execu�ve/Independent Directors to 
maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its func�ons of governance and management. As 

ston 31  March, 2024, the Company has 2 (Two) Execu�ve Directors and 3 (Three) Non-Execu�ve Directors 
on the Board. The Company's Policy for selec�on and appointment of Directors and their remunera�on is 
based on its Nomina�on and Remunera�on policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selec�on of 
the Directors and such other ma�ers as provided under Sec�on 178(3) of the Act and 19(4) of SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, including any amendment thereto are 
covered under the Company's Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy and on the Company's website and 
can be accessed through the link: .h�ps://isocl.in/code-of-conduct-policies/

Your Directors affirm that the remunera�on paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy of the Company.

There is no change in the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy of the Company during the financial year 
2023-24.

st
B. Remunera�on to Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors for the year ended 31 March, 2024. 

stThe si�ng fees paid to Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors for the year ended 31  March, 2024 along 
with their respec�ve shareholdings in your Company are as under:

C. Remunera�on paid/payable to Execu�ve Chairman/Whole Time Director and Managing Director 
stfor the year ended 31  March, 2024.

Mrs. Pooja Sarda

Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er

Mr. Sunil Shah

Director(s) Si�ng Fees paid for the 
Board and Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs held during the 
year ended 31st March, 
2024 
(₹ in Lakhs)

Commission 
Paid/Payable
(₹ in Lakhs)

Total
(₹ in Lakhs)

No. of Ordinary 
(Equity) Shares held 
as on 31st March, 
2024

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Director(s)

Mr. Shan� Lal Jain 

Mr. Sanjay Jain

Whole Time 
Director

Designa�on

Managing 
Director

Salary 

(₹ in Lakhs)

Perquisites and

Allowances

 (₹ in Lakhs)

Commission 

paid/Payable

(₹ in Lakhs)

Total
 (₹ in Lakhs)

Contract Period

19.03  

29.16

   0.61

2.13

Nil

Nil

19.64

31.29

Tenure of 3 
(Three)
years from 

st 01 September
st2022 to 31  

August, 2025. 

https://isocl.in/familiarization-programmed-for-independent-director/
https://isocl.in/familiarization-programmed-for-independent-director/
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a) Theappointment and remuneration ofWhole Time Director and Managing Director of the Company hasbeen

approved by the Shareholders of the Company by passing special resolution at the 38” Annual General

Meeting oftheCompany held on 20“September, 2022fora period ofthree years.

b) Mr. Shanti Lal Jain has resigned from theposition of Executive/ WholeTime Director and also as the director of

the Companywith effect from close of business hours on 30"April, 2024.

c) The agreement may be terminated by either party by giving to the other party three months' notice of such

termination.

d) No Compensation shall be payable to either of the parties on such termination.

e) The Managing Director and WholeTime Director shall not be paid any sitting fees forthe attending the meeting

ofthe Board ofDirectors or Committee.

f) Company's Contribution to FundsforMr.SanjayJain for the yearended 31“March, 2024was R2.10 Lakhs.

Notes:

1) The Companyhasnotgranted any stock option to directors of the companyason31”March, 2024.

2) No sitting fees has been paid to the Executive Director duringthe year under review.

3) Non-Executive Independent Directors did not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions (except receipt

of sitting fees as Directors) with the Companyfortheyear under review.

D. Stock option details, if any, and whether thesame hasbeen issued ata discount as well as the period over

which accrued and overwhich exercisable— Not Applicable during the year under review.

CORPORATEGOVERNANCE

TheCompany believes in and has practiced good Corporate Governance. Our corporate governance

philosophy is based on the principles of equity, fairness, spirit of law, higher standards of transparency,

accountability and reliability in respect of all its transactions. The Company believes that sound corporate

governance is necessary to retain stakeholders' trust and ensures efficient working and proper conduct of

the business of the Company with integrity. The guidelines for its development isa continuous process,

which often undergoes changes to suit the changing times and needs of the business, society and the

nation.

It may be noted that Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and

para C,D andE ofScheduleV ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015

arenotapplicable to your company pursuant to provisions of Regulation 15 of the said Regulations as the

Paid up Capital of the Company is below Rupees Ten Crores and Net worth below Rupees Twenty Five

Crores as on the last day of the previous Financial Yearaswell as on date ofthe report.

As such the Company is not required to mandatorily append tothis report the Corporate Governance

Report.

CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUSCOMMITTEESASPERCOMPANIESACT, 2013

The company hasconstituted sub-committees ofthe board as perthe provisions of Companies Act, 2013

with proper composition of its members. The Company Secretary ofthe Company acts as the Secretary to

the Committees.

Presently, there arethree Committees:

• Audit Committee

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee

• Stakeholders Relationship Committee
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a) The appointment and remunera�on of Whole Time Director and Managing Director of the Company has been 
thapproved by the Shareholders of the Company by passing special resolu�on at the 38  Annual General 

thMee�ng of the Company held on 20  September, 2022 for a period of three years.

b) Mr. Shan� Lal Jain has resigned from the posi�on of Execu�ve / Whole Time Director and also as the director of 
th

the Company with effect from close of business hours on 30  April, 2024.

c) The agreement may be terminated by either party by giving to the other party three months' no�ce of such 
termina�on. 

d) No Compensa�on shall be payable to either of the par�es on such termina�on.

e) The Managing Director and Whole Time Director shall not be paid any si�ng fees for the a�ending the mee�ng 
of the Board of Directors or Commi�ee.

stf) Company's Contribu�on to Funds for Mr. Sanjay Jain for the year ended 31  March, 2024 was ₹2.10 Lakhs. 

Notes:
st1) The Company has not granted any stock op�on to directors of the company as on 31  March, 2024. 

2) No si�ng fees has been paid to the Execu�ve Director during the year under review. 

3) Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors did not have any pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons (except receipt 
of si�ng fees as Directors) with the Company for the year under review.

D. Stock op�on details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the period over 
which accrued and over which exercisable – Not Applicable during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes in and has prac�ced good Corporate Governance. Our corporate governance 
philosophy is based on the principles of equity, fairness, spirit of law, higher standards of transparency, 
accountability and reliability in respect of all its transac�ons. The Company believes that sound corporate 
governance is necessary to retain stakeholders' trust and ensures efficient working and proper conduct of 
the business of the Company with integrity. The guidelines for its development is a con�nuous process, 
which o�en undergoes changes to suit the changing �mes and needs of the business, society and the 
na�on.

It may be noted that Regula�on 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regula�on (2) of Regula�on 46 and 
para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons, 2015 
are not applicable to your company pursuant to provisions of Regula�on 15 of the said Regula�ons as the 
Paid up Capital of the Company is below Rupees Ten Crores and Net worth below Rupees Twenty Five 
Crores as on the last day of the previous Financial Year as well as on date of the report.

As such the Company is not required to mandatorily append to this report the Corporate Governance 
Report.

CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The company has cons�tuted sub-commi�ees of the board as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
with proper composi�on of its members. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to 
the Commi�ees.

Presently, there are three Commi�ees: 

l  Audit Commi�ee

l Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 

l Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee
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a. Audit Committee: The Composition of the Committee and attendance in the Committee meetings

held during the FY 2023-24 is given below:-

Name of

Director(s)

Mrs. Pooja

Sarda

Mr. Nand

Kumar

Bhatter

Mr. Sunil

Shah

Category Position DIN
Committee Meetings Attended

25.05.2023 11.08.2023 09.11.2023 12.02.2024 21.02.2024

Independent/ Chairperson 05344423 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Non-Executive

Director

Independent/ Member 00013918 Yes

Non-Executive

Director

Independent/ Member 00606846 Yes

Non-Executive

Director

Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes

Yes

Yes

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The Composition ofthe Committee and attendance in

the Committee meetings held during the FY 2023-24 is given below:-

Marne of Director(s) Category Position DIN

Mrs. Pooja Sarda

Mr.Nand Kumar Bhatter

Mr. Sunil Shah

Independent/ Non-

Executive Director

Independent/ Non-

Executive Director

Independent/ Non-

Executive Director

Chairperson 05344423

Member 00013918

Committee Meetings Attended

25.05.2023 12.02.2024

Yes Yes

Yes

Member 00606846 Yes

Yes

Yes

c. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee: The Composition of the Committee and attendance in the

Committee meetings held during the FY 2023-24 is given below:-

NameofDirector(s) Category Position DIN Committee Meetings Attended

28.09.2023 23.11.2023 12.02.2024

Mrs. Pooja Sarda Independent/ Non- Chairperson 05344423 Yes Yes Yes

Executive Director

Mr. Shanti Lal Jain Executive Director Member 00167773 Yes

(Whole Time)

Mr. Sanjay Jain Executive Director Member 00167765 Yes

(Managing)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee-otherdetails:

i. Name, designation and address ofCompliance Officer: Rashmi Sharma, CompanySecretary.

113, Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing, SthFloor, Kolkata —700016; E-mail: rashmi@isocl.in

ii. Details of investorcomplaints received and redressed during FY 2024areasfollows:

Opening ason 1“April, Received during the Resolve during the Closing as on 31“ March,
2023 year year 2o24

0 1 1

RECOMMENDATIONSOFVARIOUSCOMMITTEES

0

There were no instances where the Board had not accepted the recommendations of any of the

Committees oftheBoard during FY 2023-24.

12.02.2024

Posi�onCategory DIN Commi�ee Mee�ngs A�ended

23.11.202328.09.2023

Mrs. Pooja Sarda

Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er

Mr. Sunil Shah

Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director

Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director

Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director

12.02.2024

Posi�onCategory DIN Commi�ee Mee�ngs A�ended

25.05.2023

Chairperson

Member

Member

05344423 Yes Yes

00013918 Yes Yes

00606846 Yes Yes

11.08.2023 09.11.2023 12.02.2024 21.02.2024
Posi�onCategory DIN

Commi�ee Mee�ngs A�ended

25.05.2023

Mrs. Pooja Independent/  Chairperson 05344423 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Sarda  Non-Execu�ve
  Director
Mr. Nand  Independent/ Member 00013918 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kumar   Non-Execu�ve
Bha�er  Director
Mr. Sunil  Independent/  Member 00606846 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Shah  Non-Execu�ve
  Director
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a. Audit Commi�ee: The Composi�on of the Commi�ee and a�endance in the Commi�ee mee�ngs 
held during the FY 2023-24 is given below: -

b. Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee: The Composi�on of the Commi�ee and a�endance in 
the Commi�ee mee�ngs held during the FY 2023-24 is given below: -

c. Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee: The Composi�on of the Commi�ee and a�endance in the 
Commi�ee mee�ngs held during the FY 2023-24 is given below: -

Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee-other details:

i. Name, designa�on and address of Compliance Officer: Rashmi Sharma, Company Secretary.

 113, Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing, 5th Floor, Kolkata – 700016; E-mail: rashmi@isocl.in

ii. Details of investor complaints received and redressed during FY 2024 are as follows:

RECOMMENDATIONS OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES

There were no instances where the Board had not accepted the recommenda�ons of any of the 
Commi�ees of the Board during FY 2023-24.

Name of 
Director(s)

Name of Director(s)

Name of Director(s)

Mrs. Pooja Sarda

Mr. Sanjay Jain

Mr. Shan� Lal Jain

Independent / Non-
Execu�ve Director

Execu�ve Director
(Whole Time)

Execu�ve Director
(Managing)

Chairperson

Member

Member

05344423 YesYes Yes

00167773 YesYes Yes

00167765 YesYes Yes

Received during the 
year

stOpening as on 1  April, 
2023

Resolve during the 
year

stClosing as on 31  March, 
2024

0 1 1 0

mailto:rashmi@isocl.in
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SEPARATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 30
t
"March, 2024without the attendance

of Non-Independent Directors and members oftheManagement, except the Company Secretary, who

was present by invitation. All Independent Directors were present atthis Meeting.

ADEQUACYOFINTERNALFINANCIALCONTROLS

TheInternal FinancialControlswith reference to the Financial Statements arecommensurate with the size

and nature of business of the Company. Your Company hasestablished adequate Internal Financial

Control systems to ensure reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. All

resources are put to optimal use and adequately protected against any loss. All transactions are

authorized, recorded and reported correctly. Policies and guidelines of your Company arebeing adhered

toand improvements in process efficiencies and effectiveness are being carried out on an ongoing basis.

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWERPOLICY

Pursuant to the requirement ofthe Section 177 (9)& (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has

established vigil mechanism which also incorporatesa whistle blower policy in terms ofthe SEBI Listing

Regulations. Protected disclosures can be made bya whistle blower through an e-mail or phone orletter

to the Chairperson ofthe Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) is available on

the Company's website and can be accessed through the link: https://isocI.in/vieil-mechanism-whistle-

blower-policv/.

A mechanism has been established for employees to report unethical behaviour, actual or suspected

fraud or violation of the Code ofConduct and ethics directly to the forum. It also provides for adequate

safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism and allows direct access to the

Chairperson ofthe Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

POLICIES

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandated theformulation

of certain policies for all listed companies. All applicable policies are available on the Company's website

and can be accessed through the link: https://isocI.in/code-of-conduct-policies/. The policies are

reviewed periodically by the Board and updated based on need and new compliance requirement.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with ScheduleV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as 'Listing Regulations'), the Management's

Discussion and Analysis Report forthe year under review, has been enclosed separately and marked as

“Annexure- II”. The Audit Committee ofthe Company hasreviewed the Management Discussion and

Analysis Report ofthe Companyfortheyearended 31“March, 2024.

CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY(CSR)

The provision of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e., corporate social responsibility is not

applicable on your company. Therefore, your company hasnotconstituted CSR committee and need not

require to spend any sum on CSR activities for the FY 2023-24. Hence no report on Corporate Social

Responsibility is given.

MD & CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have givena certificate as required

under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. It

forms part ofthe Report and is marked as“Annexure- III”.
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SEPARATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING
thDuring the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 30  March, 2024 without the a�endance 

of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management, except the Company Secretary, who 
was present by invita�on. All Independent Directors were present at this Mee�ng.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with the size 
and nature of business of the Company. Your Company has established adequate Internal Financial 
Control systems to ensure reliable financial repor�ng and compliance with laws and regula�ons. All 
resources are put to op�mal use and adequately protected against any loss. All transac�ons are 
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. Policies and guidelines of your Company are being adhered 
to and improvements in process efficiencies and effec�veness are being carried out on an ongoing basis. 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to the requirement of the Sec�on 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
established vigil mechanism which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of the SEBI Lis�ng 
Regula�ons. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through an e-mail or phone or le�er 
to the Chairperson of the Audit Commi�ee.  The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)  is available on 
the Company's website and can be accessed through the link: h�ps://isocl.in/vigil-mechanism-whistle-
blower-policy/.

A mechanism has been established for employees to report unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
fraud or viola�on of the Code of Conduct and ethics directly to the forum. It also provides for adequate 
safeguards against vic�miza�on of employees who avail the mechanism and allows direct access to the 
Chairperson of the Audit Commi�ee in excep�onal cases.

POLICIES

The SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 mandated the formula�on 
of certain policies for all listed companies. All applicable policies are available on the Company's website 
and can be accessed through the link: . The policies are h�ps://isocl.in/code-of-conduct-policies/
reviewed periodically by the Board and updated based on need and new compliance requirement.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with Regula�on 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (hereina�er referred to as 'Lis�ng Regula�ons'), the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, has been enclosed separately and marked as 
“Annexure- II”. The Audit Commi�ee of the Company has reviewed the Management Discussion and 

st
Analysis Report of the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2024.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The provision of Sec�on 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e., corporate social responsibility is not 
applicable on your company. Therefore, your company has not cons�tuted CSR commi�ee and need not 
require to spend any sum on CSR ac�vi�es for the FY 2023-24. Hence no report on Corporate Social 
Responsibility is given.

MD & CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have given a cer�ficate as required 
under Regula�on 17(8) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. It 
forms part of the Report and is marked as “Annexure- III”.

https://isocl.in/vigil-mechanism-whistle-blower-policy/
https://isocl.in/vigil-mechanism-whistle-blower-policy/
https://isocl.in/code-of-conduct-policies/
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PREVENTION OF INSIDERTRADING

TheCompany hasadopteda Code ofConduct forPrevention of Insider Trading as amended from time to

time witha view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the

Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and prohibits the

purchase orsale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of

unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the

Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible forimplementaGon oftheCode.

All Board ofDirectors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

CODEOFCONDUCT

TheCompany has adopted the Code of Conduct for all Board members and Senior Management

Personnel. All Board members and Senior Management Personnel as per Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, have affirmed compliance with the

applicable Code ofConduct.A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director of the Company

forms part ofthis Report and is marked as“Annexure- IV”.

Your Company, beinga Transport company, has no activity relating to conservation of energy or

technology absorption to be declared pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. There is no

earning or outgo ofForeign Exchange during the year under review.

CERTIFICATE FOR NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has obtaineda certificate from M/s. Rantu Das& Associates, Practicing Company

Secretaries, confirming that none of the directors on the board of the Company were debarred or

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by the Board/Ministry of

Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the same forms part of this report and is marked as

“Annexure-V”.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEESAND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Noneoftheemployees, employed during the year, was in receipt of remuneration, in aggregate ofRupees

One Crore and Two Lakhs or more perannum fortheFY2023-24 or Rupees Eight Lakh Fifty Thousand or

more permonth forany part of the financial year, as set out in the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The information pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of

the Rules forms part ofthis report and is marked as“Annexure-VI”.

The ratio of remuneration ofeach Director to the median employee's remuneration and other details in

accordance with sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, forms part of this

report and is marked as“Annexure-VII”.

CONTRACTSOR ARRANGEMENTSWITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year were in ordinary

course of business and at an arm's length basis. Form AOC2 forms part of the Report and is marked as

“Annexure-VIII”.

Details of Related PartyTransactions ofthe Companyarecovered under NotestoAccountsforFY2023-24.
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PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Preven�on of Insider Trading as amended from �me to 
�me with a view to regulate trading in securi�es by the Directors and designated employees of the 
Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and prohibits the 
purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of 
unpublished price sensi�ve informa�on in rela�on to the Company and during the period when the 
Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementa�on of the Code.

All Board of Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for all Board members and Senior Management 
Personnel. All Board members and Senior Management Personnel as per Regula�on 26(3) of the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, have affirmed compliance with the 
applicable Code of Conduct. A declara�on to this effect signed by the Managing Director of the Company 
forms part of this Report and is marked as “Annexure- IV”.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Your Company, being a Transport company, has no ac�vity rela�ng to conserva�on of energy or 
technology absorp�on to be declared pursuant to Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. There is no 
earning or outgo of Foreign Exchange during the year under review.

CERTIFICATE FOR NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has obtained a cer�ficate from M/s. Rantu Das & Associates, Prac�cing Company 
Secretaries, confirming that none of the directors on the board of the Company were debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as directors of Companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the same forms part of this report and is marked as 
“Annexure- V”.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

None of the employees, employed during the year, was in receipt of remunera�on, in aggregate of Rupees 
One Crore and Two Lakhs or more per annum for the FY 2023-24 or Rupees Eight Lakh Fi�y Thousand or 
more per month for any part of the financial year, as set out in the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The informa�on pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of 
the Rules forms part of this report and is marked as “Annexure- VI”.

The ra�o of remunera�on of each Director to the median employee's remunera�on and other details in 
accordance with sub-sec�on 12 of Sec�on 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, forms part of this 
report and is marked as “Annexure- VII”.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transac�ons entered into by the Company during the financial year were in ordinary 
course of business and at an arm's length basis. Form AOC 2 forms part of the Report and is marked as 
“Annexure- VIII”.

Details of Related Party Transac�ons of the Company are covered under Notes to Accounts for FY 2023-24.
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All transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by theAudit Committee. Prior approval

is obtained forrelated partytransactions which areofrepetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course

ofbusiness and on an arm's length basis.

BUDNESSRESPONSBLIYANDSUSTANABLITYREPORT

TheBusiness Responsibility and Sustainability Report as per Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Regulations is

not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

COMPLIANCEWITHAPPLICABLE SECRETARIALSTANDARDS

TheCompany hascomplied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards -1 and Secretarial

Standards-2, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

GENERALDISCLOSURES

Your Directors statethat:

1. During the year under review, no application has been made oranyproceeding is pending under the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016against the Company.

2. During the year under review, there were no instance of one-time settlement with banks orfinancial

institutions and hence thedifferences in valuation as enumerated under Rule8 (5) (xii) of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, asamended, do notarise.

3. There are no agreements entered into by the shareholders, promoters, promoter group entities,

related parties, directors, key managerial personnel, employees ofthe listed entity or of its holding,

subsidiary or associate company, among themselves or with the listed entity or witha third party,

solely or jointly, which, either directly or indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to,

impact the management orcontrol of the listed entity or impose any restriction or create any liability

upon thelisted entity as on the date of notification of clause 5A to ParaA of PartA of Schedule III of

Listing Regulations.

4. Equity shares in the suspense account

In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) and PartF of ScheduleV to the SEBI Listing

Regulations, details of equity shares in the suspense account areasfollows:

Particulars Number ofshareholders Number ofequity shares

Aggregate number ofShareholders and the outstanding

shares in the suspense account lying as on 1” April, 2023

Shareholders who approached the Company fortransfer

of shares from suspense account during the year

Shareholders to whom shares were transferred

from the suspense account during the year

Aggregate number ofShareholders and the outstanding

shares in the suspense account lying as on 31“ March, 2024

1 1000

1 1000

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the suspense account as on 31“ March, 2024, shall

remain frozen till the rightful ownerofsuch shares claims the shares.

5. The Company hasnotissued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants oranyconvertible instruments in the past and

hence, as on 31" March, 2024, the Company does nothave any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or

anyconvertible instruments.
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Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding 
stshares in the suspense account lying as on 1  April, 2023

Shareholders who approached the Company for transfer 

of shares from suspense account during the year
Shareholders to whom shares were transferred 

from the suspense account during the year
Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding 

stshares in the suspense account lying as on 31  March, 2024

Number of shareholders 

1

-

-

1

Number of equity shares

1000

-

-

1000

Par�culars

All transac�ons with related par�es were reviewed and approved by the Audit Commi�ee. Prior approval 
is obtained for related party transac�ons which are of repe��ve nature and entered in the ordinary course 
of business and on an arm's length basis. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report as per Regula�on 34 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons is 
not applicable to the Company during the period under review. 

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards - 1 and Secretarial 
Standards - 2, issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Your Directors state that:

1. During the year under review, no applica�on has been made or any proceeding is pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against the Company.

2. During the year under review, there were no instance of one-�me se�lement with banks or financial 
ins�tu�ons and hence the differences in valua�on as enumerated under Rule 8 (5) (xii) of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, do not arise.

3. There are no agreements entered into by the shareholders, promoters, promoter group en��es, 
related par�es, directors, key managerial personnel, employees of the listed en�ty or of its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company, among themselves or with the listed en�ty or with a third party, 
solely or jointly, which, either directly or indirectly or poten�ally or whose purpose and effect is to, 
impact the management or control of the listed en�ty or impose any restric�on or create any liability 
upon the listed en�ty as on the date of no�fica�on of clause 5A to Para A of Part A of Schedule III of 
Lis�ng Regula�ons.

4. Equity shares in the suspense account

 In accordance with the requirement of Regula�on 34(3) and Part F of Schedule V to the SEBI Lis�ng 
Regula�ons, details of equity shares in the suspense account are as follows:

st
 The vo�ng rights on the shares outstanding in the suspense account as on 31  March, 2024, shall 

remain frozen �ll the righ�ul owner of such shares claims the shares.

5. The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any conver�ble instruments in the past and 
st

hence, as on 31  March, 2024, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 
any conver�ble instruments.
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6. The Company is not a Large Corporate forthe purpose of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HOIDDHS/DDHS-

RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/172 dated 19” October, 2023. The details Outstanding Qualified Borrowings

and Incremental Qualified Borrowings forthe financial yearended 31”March, 2024.

SI No. Particulars

1. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings atthe start of the financial year

2. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings atthe end of the financial year

3. Highest credit rating of the company relating to the unsupported

bank borrowings or plain vanilla bonds, which have no

structuring/support built in

4. Incremental borrowing done during the year (qualified borrowing)

5. Borrowings by way of issuance of debt securities during the year

Amount
(¢in Crore)

14.11

9.81

NA

7. There have been no public issue proceeds raised from the Initial Public Offer (IPO) and Further Public

Offer(FPO), Right Issue, Preferential Issue, etc. in the FY 2024.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the assistance and co-operation extended to

the Company bycommercial Banks, Government ofIndia, various State Governments, Shareholders and

all others Stakeholders. Their continued support has beena source of strength to the Company. Your

Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation of contribution and high level of

commitment ofevery employee oftheCompany.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 9” Day of August, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Jain

Managing Director

(DIN:00167765)

Siddhant Jain

Whole Time Director

(DIN:07154500)

Annexures forming part of this Report ofthe Directors

Annexure Particulars

I Secretarial Audit Report

II Management's Discussion and Analysis Report

III MD & CFO certification

VI Declaration regarding affirmation of CodeofConduct

V Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

VI Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)& (3) of

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

VI Statement of Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

VIII Form No.AOC-2
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6. The Company is not a Large Corporate for the purpose of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HOIDDHS/DDHS-
thRACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/172 dated 19  October, 2023. The details Outstanding Qualified Borrowings 

st
and Incremental Qualified Borrowings for the financial year ended 31  March, 2024.

7. There have been no public issue proceeds raised from the Ini�al Public Offer (IPO) and Further Public 
Offer (FPO), Right Issue, Preferen�al Issue, etc. in the FY 2024. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their apprecia�on of the assistance and co-opera�on extended to 
the Company by commercial Banks, Government of India, various State Governments, Shareholders and 
all others Stakeholders. Their con�nued support has been a source of strength to the Company. Your 
Directors also wish to place on record their sincere apprecia�on of contribu�on and high level of 
commitment of every employee of the Company.

I

II

III

VI

V

VI

VI

VIII

Annexure Par�culars

Annexures forming part of this Report of the Directors

Secretarial Audit Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report

MD & CFO cer�fica�on

Declara�on regarding affirma�on of Code of Conduct

Cer�ficate of Non-Disqualifica�on of Directors

Statement pursuant to Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Statement of Disclosure under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Form No. AOC -2

Sl No. Par�culars
Amount

(` in Crore)

1. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings at the start of the financial year 14.11
2. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings at the end of the financial year 9.81
3. Highest credit ra�ng of the company rela�ng to the unsupported      NA
 bank borrowings or plain vanilla bonds, which have no 
 structuring/support built in
4. Incremental borrowing done during the year (qualified borrowing) -
5. Borrowings by way of issuance of debt securi�es during the year -

Place: Kolkata                                            
thDated: The 9  Day of August, 2024

    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Siddhant Jain
Whole Time Director

    (DIN:07154500)

Sanjay Jain
Managing  Director

    (DIN:00167765)
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FORM No.MR -3

ANNEXURE -I

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

ForFinancial Year ended on 31"March, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Interstate Oil Carrier Limited,

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Regd. Office: 113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing,5
t
" FIoor,KoIkata-700016.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and

adherence togood corporate practices by M/s. Interstate Oil Carrier Limited, (hereinafter referred to as

“the Company”). Secretarial Audit has been conducted ina mannerthat provided usa reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutorycompliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance ofsecretarial records and

fordevising propersystem toensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and regulations.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and procedures followed

by the Companywith respect to secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from theCompany's Management is adequate

and appropriate forusto providea basis for our opinion.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and

other records maintained by the Companyandalso the information provided by the Company, its officers,

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, physically, we hereby

report that in our opinion and to the best of our information, knowledge and belief and according to the

explanations given to us, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on

31" March, 2024 generally complied with the applicable statutory provisions listed hereunder to the

extent applicable and also that the Company hasproper Board processes and compliance mechanism in

place to the extent, in the mannerandsubject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined thebooks, papers, minute books, forms, returns fled and other records maintained by

the Companyforthefinancial yearended on 31“March, 2024according tothe applicable provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules madethereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts(RegulationAct, 1956('SCRA') and the rules madethereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and theRegulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the

extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and External Commercial

Borrowings(ECB);

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under theSecurities and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Companyduring the year:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
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ANNEXURE - I
FORM No. MR -3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
stFor Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2024

[Pursuant to sec�on 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Interstate Oil Carrier Limited,
CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472
Regd. Office: 113 Park Street, Poddar Point, 

thSouth Wing, 5  Floor,Kolkata-700016.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
adherence to good corporate prac�ces by M/s. Interstate Oil Carrier Limited, (hereina�er referred to as 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit has been conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company's Management is responsible for prepara�on and maintenance of secretarial records and 
for devising proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and regula�ons.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and procedures followed 
by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and informa�on obtained from the Company's Management is adequate 
and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

Based on our verifica�on of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, physically, we hereby 
report that in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on, knowledge and belief and according to the 
explana�ons given to us, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 

st31  March, 2024 generally complied with the applicable statutory provisions listed hereunder to the 
extent applicable and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained by 
stthe Company for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2024 according to the applicable provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and External Commercial 
Borrowings (ECB);

5. The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company during the year:

 a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regula�ons, 2011; 

 b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015; 
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable during the year under review.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits& Sweat Equity)

Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the year under review.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)

Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable during the year under review.

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client- The Company hasduly

appointeda SEBI authorized CategoryI Registrar and ShareTransfer Agent asrequired under Law.

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021-Not

applicable during the year under review.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018-Not

applicable during the year under review and,

6. The following other laws specifically applicable to the Company:

a) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and Rules madethere under;

b) The MotorVehicles Act, 1988 and Rules madethere under;

c) Taxation Lawsand Rules madethere under namely:

-Income Tax;

-Goods& Service Tax;

-Professional Tax;

-Tax Deducted atSources;

d) The Payment ofBonusAct, 1965;

e) The Payment ofGratuity Act, 1972;

f) The Employees Provident Fund& Miscellaneous Act, 1952;

g) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses ofthe following:

I. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to

board and general meeting.

II. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Companywith the BSE Limited read with the Securities

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as

amended (hereinafter referred to as SEBI LODR, 2015).

During the period under review the Company hascomplied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

(i) As per the charge list in the MCA site, there are two chargesfor which loan has been repaid, but no

satisfaction of charges has been filed with the ROC, although the management hastaken continuous

actionfor satisfying the same.

We further report that as far as we have been able to ascertain:

The Board ofDirectors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition ofthe

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review. The re-appointment of Mr. Nand

Kumar Bhatter, Independent Director was carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors for convening the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed

notes to agenda were sent at least seven days in advance formeeting other than those held at shorter
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Registered Office:113 Park Street, Poddar Point,
th

South Wing, 5  Floor,
Kolkata –700016                                                            

Dated : ……August, 2022
Place : Kolkata

By Order of the BoardFor and behalf of 
Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

Sd/-Nikita Mohta 
Company Secretary

(Membership No. A55639)

 c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2018 - Not applicable during the year under review.

 d) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) 
Regula�ons, 2021- Not applicable during the year under review.

 e) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non-Conver�ble Securi�es) 
Regula�ons, 2021 -  Not applicable during the year under review.

 f) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regula�ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- The Company has duly 
appointed a SEBI authorized Category I Registrar and Share Transfer Agent as required under Law.

 g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2021-Not 
applicable during the year under review.

 h) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018-Not 
applicable during the year under review and,

6. The following other laws specifically applicable to the Company:

 a) The Air (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 1981 and Rules made there under;

 b) The Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 and Rules made there under;

 c) Taxa�on Laws and Rules made there under namely:

  -Income Tax;

  -Goods & Service Tax;

  -Professional Tax;

  -Tax Deducted at Sources;

 d) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

 e) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

 f) The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Act, 1952; 

 g) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

 We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:

 I. Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to 
board and general mee�ng.

 II. The Lis�ng Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited read with the Securi�es 
Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 as 
amended (hereina�er referred to as SEBI LODR, 2015). 

  During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regula�ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. men�oned above subject to the following observa�ons:

(i) As per the charge list in the MCA site, there are two charges for which loan has been repaid, but no 
sa�sfac�on of charges has been filed with the ROC, although the management has taken con�nuous 
ac�on for sa�sfying the same. 

 We further report that as far as we have been able to ascertain:

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composi�on of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review. The re-appointment of Mr. Nand 
Kumar Bha�er, Independent Director was carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

 Adequate no�ce was given to all directors for convening the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed 
notes to agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for mee�ng other than those held at shorter 
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notice, if any, anda system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the

agenda items before the meeting and formeaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision are carried through while the dissenting members' views arecaptured and recorded

as part ofthe minutes.

While going through the registered mail ofthe company, we have found queryfrom BSE and thesame

have been attended and mentioned herewith:

1. Clarification on shareholding pattern for the quarter ended 31.12.2023- It was observed from the

shareholding pattern submitted by theCompanyforDecember2023 quarter that in Statementforeign

ownership limits the companyhasshown limits utilized% morethan approved limit %.

Auditors Observation: BSE notified the query in company's listing centre Communication Module

portal on 27” March, 2024 and theCompany have submitted the revised Shareholding pattern forthe

quarterended 31”December, 2023 on 28”March, 2024.

We further report thatthere are adequate systems and processes in the Companycommensurate with

the size and operations ofthe Companytomonitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

It is stated that the compliance ofall the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other

laws is the responsibility of the management. We have relied on the representation made bythe

Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism set-up by the Companyforcompliances under

applicable laws including explanationsfurnished, information provided as required by us in respect of

assignment carried out. Our examination ona test-check basis was limited to procedure followed by

the company forensuring the compliance with the required provisions as found applicable in the

instant case. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of

the company nortowards the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management hasconducted

the affairs of the company.

We further state that this is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial

act1vities/statements of the company.

Moreover, we have not covered any matter related to any other laws, other than those mentioned in

the report which may be applicable to the Company, except, the aforementioned corporate and other

laws ofthe Union ofIndia.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’
d
day of May, 2024

ForRantu Das& Associates

Company Secretaries

(Rantu Kumar Das)

Partner

Firm Registration No.: P2012WB065600

Membership No.FCSNo.8437

CP No.9671

Peer Review No. :2929/2023

UDIN- F008437F000425141

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed asANNEXURE-Aandforms

an integral part ofthis report.
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no�ce, if any, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the 
agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.

 Majority decision are carried through while the dissen�ng members' views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes.

 While going through the registered mail of the company, we have found query from BSE and the same 
have been a�ended and men�oned herewith:

1. Clarifica�on on shareholding pa�ern for the quarter ended 31.12.2023- It was observed from the 
shareholding pa�ern submi�ed by the Company for December 2023 quarter that in Statement foreign 
ownership limits the company has shown limits u�lized % more than approved limit %. 

 Auditors Observa�on: BSE no�fied the query in company's lis�ng centre Communica�on Module 
th

portal on 27  March, 2024 and the Company have submi�ed the revised Shareholding pa�ern for the 
st thquarter ended 31  December, 2023 on 28  March, 2024.

 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and opera�ons of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regula�ons and guidelines.

 It is stated that the compliance of all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
laws is the responsibility of the management. We have relied on the representa�on made by the 
Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism set-up by the Company for compliances under 
applicable laws including explana�ons furnished, informa�on provided as required by us in respect of 
assignment carried out. Our examina�on on a test-check basis was limited to procedure followed by 
the company for ensuring the compliance with the required provisions as found applicable in the 
instant case. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the company nor towards the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company.

 We further state that this is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
ac�vi�es/statements of the company.

 Moreover, we have not covered any ma�er related to any other laws, other than those men�oned in 
the report which may be applicable to the Company, except, the aforemen�oned corporate and other 
laws of the Union of India.
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This Report is to be read with our le�er of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE-A and forms 
an integral part of this report.

For Rantu Das & Associates
 Company Secretaries

                  (Rantu Kumar Das)
Partner 

Firm Registra�on No.: P2012WB065600
Membership No. FCS No. 8437  

CP No. 9671
        Peer Review No. :2929/2023

UDIN- F008437F000425141

Place: Kolkata
rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024  
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To,

TheMembers,

Interstate Oil Carrier Limited,

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Regd. Office: 113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing, 5” FIoor,KoIkata-700016.

ANNEXURE-A

OurSecretarial Audit Report forfinancial year ended on 31”March, 2024 ofeven date is to be

read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance ofsecretarial records is the responsibility of the Management oftheCompany.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

2. We havefollowed the audit practices and processes aswere appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the fairness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that the facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that

the processes and practices we followed providea reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of

accounts ofthe Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance oflaws, rules and regulations and happening ofevents etc.

5. The compliance ofthe provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the

verification of procedure on test basis to the extent applicable to the Company.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

noroftheefficacy or effectiveness with which the management hasconducted the affairs of

the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’
d
day of May, 2024

ForRantu Das& Associates

Company Secretaries

(Rantu Kumar Das)

Partner

Firm Registration No.: P2012WB065600

Membership No.FCSNo.8437

CP No.9671

Peer Review No. :2929/2023

UDIN- F008437F000425141
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ANNEXURE-A
To,
The Members,
Interstate Oil Carrier Limited,
CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472
Regd. Office: 113 Park Street, Poddar Point, 

th
South Wing, 5  Floor,Kolkata-700016.

stOur Secretarial Audit Report for financial year ended on 31  March, 2024 of even date is to be 
read along with this le�er.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the fairness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verifica�on was 
done on test basis to ensure that the facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and prac�ces we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representa�on about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, 
standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our examina�on was limited to the 
verifica�on of procedure on test basis to the extent applicable to the Company.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company. 
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For Rantu Das & Associates
 Company Secretaries

                  (Rantu Kumar Das)
Partner 

Firm Registra�on No.: P2012WB065600
Membership No. FCS No. 8437  

CP No. 9671
        Peer Review No. :2929/2023

UDIN- F008437F000425141

Place: Kolkata
rd

Dated: The 23  day of May, 2024  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERVIEWAND DEVELOPMENTS

ANNEXUREII

Logistics is an indispensable element of all economic activities. India's logistics sector includes the

country's anticipated GDP growth ofUS$ 26 trillion by fiscal year 2048 (US$6 trillion by 2030). Opening

huge opportunity forIndia's transport and logistics sector, which is expected to increase ata CAGRof4.5%

from 2022 to 2050, reaching 15.6 trillion tonnes kilometres. By 2030, India wants to lower its logistics

expenditures from 13-14% ofGDP to8-10% oftheGDP. It is projected thata 10% reduction in indirect

logistics costs is expected to result ina 5% to 8% increase in exports.

The logistics industry in India is experiencinga transformative phase marked bydynamic growth, evolving

trends and promising opportunities. As explored, the current landscape reflectsa robust sector, driven by

factors such as the booming e-commerce industry, technological advancements anda proactive

government approach. The launch of numerous start-ups, as well as the Government's digital initiatives

such as "Make in India," United Logistics Platform (ULIP) and others are assisting in bringing greater

transparency to the logistics sector. The digitization of work processes to enable paperless processing of

paperwork and clearances, as well as improved shipment tracking, aids in increasing the pace ofgoods

movement and lowering logistics costs. The National Logistics Policy (NLP) and the PM Gati Shakti

programme aresignificant overarching policy moves taken by the central government in this area to

deliver outcomes by2024-25.

Looking ahead to2024, the logistics sector in India presentsa myriad ofopportunities forentrepreneurs,

innovators and investors. From last-mile delivery solutions to green logistics and advanced warehousing,

there are diverse areas where businesses can makea significant impact. While digital technologies have

been pivotal in increasing the efficiency and speed of freight movement, there isa need forgreater

transparency and end-to-end visibility across the supply chain.

GLOBALECONOMY

Theglobal growth is predicted to be 3.1% in Current Year 2024, attributing to the exceptional stability

shown bytheUnited States and several other large emerging and developing economies. Despitea tight

labour market and reduced household savings post the pandemic era, effective government policies,

increased private spending and improved real disposable income have propelled the growth oftheglobal

economy. Elevated central bank rates to fight inflation and a withdrawal offiscal support amid high debt

weigh on economic activity.

Global headline inflation is expected to fall to 5.8 percent in 2024 and 4.4percent in 2025, with the 2025

forecast having been revised down. Inflation persistence remains atthe top ofthe list of downside risks to

the global growth outlook. That could delay the widely expected start of rate cuts among themajor

developed market economies. The renewed rise in oil prices moved commodity prices back into the

spotlight as drivers of global inflation. In addition, inflation pressures may remain higher due to ongoing

labour shortages and other factors, including deglobalization and the cost offinancing the energytransition.
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Registered Office:113 Park Street, Poddar Point,
th

South Wing, 5  Floor,
Kolkata –700016                                                            

Dated : ……August, 2022
Place : Kolkata

By Order of the BoardFor and behalf of 
Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

Sd/-Nikita Mohta 
Company Secretary

(Membership No. A55639)

ANNEXURE -II
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERVIEW AND DEVELOPMENTS

Logis�cs is an indispensable element of all economic ac�vi�es. India's logis�cs sector includes the 

country's an�cipated GDP growth of US$ 26 trillion by fiscal year 2048 (US$ 6 trillion by 2030). Opening 

huge opportunity for India's transport and logis�cs sector, which is expected to increase at a CAGR of 4.5% 

from 2022 to 2050, reaching 15.6 trillion tonnes kilometres. By 2030, India wants to lower its logis�cs 

expenditures from 13-14% of GDP to 8-10% of the GDP. It is projected that a 10% reduc�on in indirect 

logis�cs costs is expected to result in a 5% to 8% increase in exports. 

The logis�cs industry in India is experiencing a transforma�ve phase marked by dynamic growth, evolving 

trends and promising opportuni�es. As explored, the current landscape reflects a robust sector, driven by 

factors such as the booming e-commerce industry, technological advancements and a proac�ve 

government approach. The launch of numerous start-ups, as well as the Government's digital ini�a�ves 

such as "Make in India," Unified Logis�cs Pla�orm (ULIP) and others are assis�ng in bringing greater 

transparency to the logis�cs sector. The digi�za�on of work processes to enable paperless processing of 

paperwork and clearances, as well as improved shipment tracking, aids in increasing the pace of goods 

movement and lowering logis�cs costs. The Na�onal Logis�cs Policy (NLP) and the PM Ga� Shak� 

programme are significant overarching policy moves taken by the central government in this area to 

deliver outcomes by 2024-25.

Looking ahead to 2024, the logis�cs sector in India presents a myriad of opportuni�es for entrepreneurs, 

innovators and investors. From last-mile delivery solu�ons to green logis�cs and advanced warehousing, 

there are diverse areas where businesses can make a significant impact. While digital technologies have 

been pivotal in increasing the efficiency and speed of freight movement, there is a need for greater 

transparency and end-to-end visibility across the supply chain.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

The global growth is predicted to be 3.1% in Current Year 2024, a�ribu�ng to the excep�onal stability 

shown by the United States and several other large emerging and developing economies. Despite a �ght 

labour market and reduced household savings post the pandemic era, effec�ve government policies, 

increased private spending and improved real disposable income have propelled the growth of the global 

economy. Elevated central bank rates to fight infla�on and a withdrawal of fiscal support amid high debt 

weigh on economic ac�vity. 

Global headline infla�on is expected to fall to 5.8 percent in 2024 and 4.4 percent in 2025, with the 2025 

forecast having been revised down. Infla�on persistence remains at the top of the list of downside risks to 

the global growth outlook. That could delay the widely expected start of rate cuts among the major 

developed market economies. The renewed rise in oil prices moved commodity prices back into the 

spotlight as drivers of global infla�on. In addi�on, infla�on pressures may remain higher due to ongoing 

labour shortages and other factors, including deglobaliza�on and the cost of financing the energy transi�on. 
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INDIAN ECONOMY

India's GDP grew ata massive 8.4 per cent during the October-December quarter of the FY 2024 and the

country continued to remain the fastest-growing major economy and is poised to maintain its growth

trajectory going ahead. The Indian economy observeda robust 7.6% GDP growth rate in FY 2024.

Favourable domestic policies, regulatory support and prioritising structural changes have contributed

positively to the gradual growth ofthe private sectors. Near-term and medium-term challenges to growth

outlook would come from geopolitics, slowing potential growth from an uneven global recovery, climate

change and technological disruptions.

The Indian economy is expected togrowfrom $5 trillion to $7 trillion by 2031, with an average growth rate

of 6.7% anticipating sustained growth, supported by domestic reforms, propelling per capita income to

theupper-middle income category. This will position India as the world's third largest economy. The Indian

economy cantake aid from the domestic structural reforms and cyclical levers to bolster its growth.

Focusing on building both physical and digital infrastructure and implementing effective reforms will

enhancetheease ofdoing business, providing India with opportunities amidst various global risks.

INDIANTRANSPORTINDUSTRY: OUTLOOKAND OPPORTUNITIES

India's logistics market, valued at $435.43 billion in 2023 is projected to reach $650.52 billion by 2028,

growing atan 8.3% CAGR, contributing 5% to the country's GDP and creating jobs for 2.2 crore Indians.

India's logistics infrastructure is facing challenges such as insufficiency, inadequate equipment and

technology and inadequate design, which arehindering its ability to handle expected growth rates of7 to

8% over the next decade. In 2024, the Freight Forwarding segment accounts for the fastest-growing

logistics function in the India Freight and Logistics Market.

India has identified four pillars to strengthen its logistics industry: integrating logistics services, enhancing

efficient transport infrastructure, meeting core sector logistics needs and developing international

competitiveness. These initiatives aim to streamline end-to-end services, enhance connectivity through

various modesandfocus on critical sectors.

The industry is undergoing digital transformation, utilising technologies like IoT, block chain and AI to

improve efficiency. Investments in modern infrastructure such as warehouses and transportation

networks are also being made. The e-commerce boom hasheightened the demand forlogistics services

and innovative last-mile delivery solutions are being explored.

The Indian government plans to decrease logistics costs from 14.4%to9-10%ofGDP through the National

Logistics Policy, aiming forseamless goods transport. Despite challenges, India presents opportunities for

growth and innovation in the logistics sector. Modern warehousing and distribution centres are needed

fore-commerce and omni-channel retailing. Multimodal transportation is prioritised and infrastructure

development is being invested. Despite supply chain bottlenecks and inflation, the sector remains vital for

India's economicgrowth.
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INDIAN ECONOMY

India's GDP grew at a massive 8.4 per cent during the October-December quarter of the FY 2024 and the 

country con�nued to remain the fastest-growing major economy and is poised to maintain its growth 

trajectory going ahead. The Indian economy observed a robust 7.6% GDP growth rate in FY 2024. 

Favourable domes�c policies, regulatory support and priori�sing structural changes have contributed 

posi�vely to the gradual growth of the private sectors. Near-term and medium-term challenges to growth 

outlook would come from geopoli�cs, slowing poten�al growth from an uneven global recovery, climate 

change and technological disrup�ons.

The Indian economy is expected to grow from $5 trillion to $7 trillion by 2031, with an average growth rate 

of 6.7% an�cipa�ng sustained growth, supported by domes�c reforms, propelling per capita income to 

the upper-middle income category. This will posi�on India as the world's third largest economy. The Indian 

economy can take aid from the domes�c structural reforms and cyclical levers to bolster its growth. 

Focusing on building both physical and digital infrastructure and implemen�ng effec�ve reforms will 

enhance the ease of doing business, providing India with opportuni�es amidst various global risks.

INDIAN TRANSPORT INDUSTRY: OUTLOOK AND OPPORTUNITIES

India's logis�cs market, valued at $435.43 billion in 2023 is projected to reach $650.52 billion by 2028, 

growing at an 8.3% CAGR, contribu�ng 5% to the country's GDP and crea�ng jobs for 2.2 crore Indians. 

India's logis�cs infrastructure is facing challenges such as insufficiency, inadequate equipment and 

technology and inadequate design, which are hindering its ability to handle expected growth rates of 7 to 

8% over the next decade. In 2024, the Freight Forwarding segment accounts for the fastest-growing 

logis�cs func�on in the India Freight and Logis�cs Market.

India has iden�fied four pillars to strengthen its logis�cs industry: integra�ng logis�cs services, enhancing 

efficient transport infrastructure, mee�ng core sector logis�cs needs and developing interna�onal 

compe��veness. These ini�a�ves aim to streamline end-to-end services, enhance connec�vity through 

various modes and focus on cri�cal sectors. 

The industry is undergoing digital transforma�on, u�lising technologies like IoT, block chain and AI to 

improve efficiency. Investments in modern infrastructure such as warehouses and transporta�on 

networks are also being made. The e-commerce boom has heightened the demand for logis�cs services 

and innova�ve last-mile delivery solu�ons are being explored.

The Indian government plans to decrease logis�cs costs from 14.4% to 9-10% of GDP through the Na�onal 

Logis�cs Policy, aiming for seamless goods transport. Despite challenges, India presents opportuni�es for 

growth and innova�on in the logis�cs sector. Modern warehousing and distribu�on centres are needed 

for e-commerce and omni-channel retailing. Mul�modal transporta�on is priori�sed and infrastructure 

development is being invested. Despite supply chain bo�lenecks and infla�on, the sector remains vital for 

India's economic growth.
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Your Company isa prominent player in Tanker (Bulk liquid and gas movement) transport. It covers various

zones like East-North-East, West-North-West, West-East-West, East-South-East, South-West-South. It has

sufficient number offleet to cater to its customers. It has its camp offices at Haldia, Chennai, Hazira,

Mumbai, Kandla, Vadodara, NamrupandParadeep.

Your Directors will leave no stone unturned to ensure that the effect of contraction in demand for

movement oftankers on hired basis is minimum. Your Company hasfull faith in the efficiency and efficacy

of staff at all levels. Moreover, yourCompany still enjoys the confidence ofmanyCompanies across India.

FINANCIALPERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

The financial statement forthe year ended 31“ March, 2024 ofthe Company have been prepared in

accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS') prescribed undersection 133 of

the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules, 2015, as

amended from time to time. Significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial

statements aredisclosed in the notestothe financial statements.

The following table gives an overview ofthehnancial results of the company.

Total Income

EBITDA

EBITDA Margin

PBT

PAT

PAT Margin

EPS

Particulars

a) Analysis of revenuegrowth and margin performance

(¢ in Lakhs)

FY24 FY23

8,524.71 5,408.61

745.41 470.23

8.74 8.69

165.59 (72.59)

86.14 (42.95)

1.02 (0.80)

1.73 (0.85)

On a reported basis, the revenue forFY 2024 was R8,473.59 Lakhs, higher by 57.43 percent over the

previous year's revenue ofR5,382.18 Lakhs in FY 2023. The PAT forFY 2024 was R86.14 Lakhs registeringa

growth of300.56 percent overthe PAT off(42.95) Lakhs in FY 2023.
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INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED

Your Company is a prominent player in Tanker (Bulk liquid and gas movement) transport. It covers various 

zones like East-North-East, West-North-West, West-East-West, East-South-East, South-West-South. It has 

sufficient number of fleet to cater to its customers. It has its camp offices at Haldia, Chennai, Hazira, 

Mumbai, Kandla, Vadodara, Namrup and Paradeep. 

Your Directors will leave no stone unturned to ensure that the effect of contrac�on in demand for 

movement of tankers on hired basis is minimum. Your Company has full faith in the efficiency and efficacy 

of staff at all levels. Moreover, your Company s�ll enjoys the confidence of many Companies across India.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

stThe financial statement for the year ended 31  March, 2024 of the Company have been prepared in 

accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (referred to as ̀ Ind AS') prescribed under sec�on 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards Rules, 2015, as 

amended from �me to �me. Significant accoun�ng policies used in the prepara�on of the financial 

statements are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

The following table gives an overview of the financial results of the company.

a) Analysis of revenue growth and margin performance

On a reported basis, the revenue for FY 2024 was ₹8,473.59 Lakhs, higher by 57.43 percent over the 

previous year's revenue of ₹5,382.18 Lakhs in FY 2023. The PAT for FY 2024 was ₹86.14 Lakhs registering a 

growth of 300.56 percent over the PAT of ₹(42.95) Lakhs in FY 2023.

23

(` in Lakhs)

Par�culars FY 24 FY 23

Total Income  8,524.71 5,408.61 

EBITDA  745.41 470.23 

EBITDA Margin  8.74 8.69 

PBT  165.59 (72.59) 

PAT  86.14 (42.95) 

PAT Margin  1.02 (0.80) 

EPS  1.73 (0.85) 
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SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

TheSegment wise performance fortheyearended 31”March, 2024 is here in given below:

The Company's operations predominantly consist of Transportation and Investing in Shares& Securities:

Sr.

No.

i)

ii)

Less

i)

ii)

Less:

4

i)

ii)

iii)

5

i)

ii)

iii)

Particulars

Segment Revenue

(Net Sale/ Income ofeach segment)

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Total

Inter Segment Revenue

Net Sales/ Income from Operations

Segment Results

(Profit and Loss before Tax& Interest from each segment)

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Total

I. Unallocable Finance Costs

II. Other unallocable expenditure net off unallocable income

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Segment Assets

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Unallocable Assets

Total Segment Assets

Segment Liabilities

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Unallocable Liabilities

Total Segment Liabilities

Capital Employed (i.e. Segment Assets less Segment Liabilities)

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Other Unallocable Assets net of Liabilities

Total Capital Employed
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2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

8480.48 5,390.86

28.83 3.52

8,509.31 5,394.38

8,509.31 5,394.38

480.69 204.38

28.36 (21.63

509.05 182.75

66.78 40.54

276.68 214.80

165.59 (72.59

3,908.06 3,444.54

26.82 266.93

496.56 441.26

4,431.44 4,152.73

1523.64 1,927.74

0.25

1090.69 493.77

2,614.33 2,421.76

2384.42 1,516.80

26.82 266.68

(594.13) (52.51

1817.11 1,730.97

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L15142WB1984PLC037472  

24

 1 Segment Revenue
  (Net Sale / Income of each segment)
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  8480.48 5,390.86
 ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  28.83 3.52
   Total 8,509.31 5,394.38
 Less: Inter Segment Revenue  - -

  Net Sales / Income from Opera�ons  8,509.31 5,394.38

 2 Segment Results
   (Profit and Loss before Tax & Interest from each segment)
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  480.69 204.38
 ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  28.36 (21.63) 
   Total 509.05 182.75 
    I. Unallocable Finance Costs  66.78 40.54 
  II.  Other unallocable expenditure net off unallocable income 276.68 214.80 
  Profit / (Loss) before Tax  165.59 (72.59) 

 3 Segment Assets
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  3,908.06 3,444.54 
  ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  26.82 266.93 
  iii) Unallocable Assets  496.56 441.26 
  Total Segment Assets  4,431.44 4,152.73 

 4 Segment Liabili�es
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  1523.64 1,927.74 
  ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  -  0.25 
  iii) Unallocable Liabili�es  1090.69 493.77 
  Total Segment Liabili�es  2,614.33 2,421.76 

 5 Capital Employed (i.e. Segment Assets less Segment Liabili�es)
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  2384.42 1,516.80 
  ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  26.82 266.68 
  iii) Other Unallocable Assets net of Liabili�es  (594.13) (52.51) 
  Total Capital Employed  1817.11 1,730.97 

Sr.
No.

Particulars
2022-23

Amount
(` Lakhs)

2023-24
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Less:

SEGMENT - WISE PERFORMANCE

st
The Segment wise performance for the year ended 31  March, 2024 is here in given below : 

The Company’s opera�ons predominantly consist of Transporta�on and Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es:
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FUTUREOUTLOOKOFYOURCOMPANY

Your Company hasgood number offleets to cater to the demand ofIndustries across India. It has added

new fleets also. Your Directors are hopeful that your Company will be able to direct customers of other

Transport Companies into its fold. The eventual situation of higher demand forvehicles would work

favourably and coupled with the inevitable freight rate hike caused by such policy implementation would

lead toa higher growth fortheCompany.

INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEM

Your Company hasrobust internal control system and procedures compatible with size and operations.

The internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing

financial statements and other data and formaintaining accountability of assets.

The Internal Audit ofthe Company is done byInternal Auditor. Internal Audit is conducted regularly during

the year and on quarterly basis Internal Audit Report is being submitted to audit committee fortheir

review and also for future improvements in the system across the organisation. The Company possesses

ERP system to record data for accounting, consolidation and management information purposes. The

Audit Committee ofthe Board of Directors comprising of 100% independent Directors, which quarterly

provide independent, professional and quality audit.

OPPORTUNTlESANDTHREATS

Innovative Logistics services are becoming increasingly important to provide customers witha broader

selection of high-quality products delivered on time, ina cost-effective manner. Therefore, it is becoming

increasingly important for services providers in the logistics industry to tap on the potential growth

opportunities for catering this rise in demand forquality and more security. With emerging Direct to

Customers (D2C), Direct to Retailers (D2R), and Direct to Kirana (D2K) models, there isa need fornew

models ofproduction, storage, and distribution. Asa result, logistics players need todevelop capabilities

in distribution, fulfilment, last-mile delivery, and the utilisation of technology forinventory management,

optimization, customer data analytics, and route optimisation. Meeting these growing customer

expectations is crucial. The Indian Government is placing significant emphasis on improving the country's

road network, constructing dedicated freight corridors, implementing technology-driven warehousing,

and establishing multimodal logistics parksto ride on the opportunity.

The transportation industry confrontsa spectrum of challenges as it navigates the complexities ofa

rapidly evolving landscape. Environmental concerns, including emissions and carbon footprints,

underscore the urgent need forsustainable practices. Regulatory pressures and shifting emissions

standards demand operational adaptations, while the integration of advanced technologies such as

autonomous vehicles poses infrastructural and safety challenges. Strikinga balance between economic

viability and sustainable practices remainsa persistent hurdle. Requiring the industry to reimagine its

approaches, foster collaboration, and pioneer innovative strategies to address these multifaceted

challenges. While climate change, supply chain disruptions, and aging infrastructure pose significant

challenges, digitalization, automation, sustainable transportation, and collaboration offer significant

opportunities forthe industry to transform and thrive. Worn-out infrastructure can lead to bottlenecks,

slowing down themovement ofgoods resulting in missed delivery windows and extended transit times.

Aging infrastructure requires morefrequent repairs and maintenance leading to higher costs.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK OF YOUR COMPANY

Your Company has good number of fleets to cater to the demand of Industries across India. It has added 
new fleets also. Your Directors are hopeful that your Company will be able to direct customers of other 
Transport Companies into its fold. The eventual situa�on of higher demand for vehicles would work 
favourably and coupled with the inevitable freight rate hike caused by such policy implementa�on would 
lead to a higher growth for the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Your Company has robust internal control system and procedures compa�ble with size and opera�ons. 
The internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing 
financial statements and other data and for maintaining accountability of assets. 

The Internal Audit of the Company is done by Internal Auditor. Internal Audit is conducted regularly during 
the year and on quarterly basis Internal Audit Report is being submi�ed to audit commi�ee for their 
review and also for future improvements in the system across the organisa�on. The Company possesses 
ERP system to record data for accoun�ng, consolida�on and management informa�on purposes. The 
Audit Commi�ee of the Board of Directors comprising of 100% independent Directors, which quarterly 
provide independent, professional and quality audit. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Innova�ve Logis�cs services are becoming increasingly important to provide customers with a broader 
selec�on of high-quality products delivered on �me, in a cost-effec�ve manner. Therefore, it is becoming 
increasingly important for services providers in the logis�cs industry to tap on the poten�al growth 
opportuni�es for catering this rise in demand for quality and more security. With emerging Direct to 
Customers (D2C), Direct to Retailers (D2R), and Direct to Kirana (D2K) models, there is a need for new 
models of produc�on, storage, and distribu�on. As a result, logis�cs players need to develop capabili�es 
in distribu�on, fulfilment, last-mile delivery, and the u�lisa�on of technology for inventory management, 
op�miza�on, customer data analy�cs, and route op�misa�on. Mee�ng these growing customer 
expecta�ons is crucial. The Indian Government is placing significant emphasis on improving the country's 
road network, construc�ng dedicated freight corridors, implemen�ng technology-driven warehousing, 
and establishing mul�modal logis�cs parks to ride on the opportunity.

The transporta�on industry confronts a spectrum of challenges as it navigates the complexi�es of a 
rapidly evolving landscape. Environmental concerns, including emissions and carbon footprints, 
underscore the urgent need for sustainable prac�ces. Regulatory pressures and shi�ing emissions 
standards demand opera�onal adapta�ons, while the integra�on of advanced technologies such as 
autonomous vehicles poses infrastructural and safety challenges. Striking a balance between economic 
viability and sustainable prac�ces remains a persistent hurdle. Requiring the industry to reimagine its 
approaches, foster collabora�on, and pioneer innova�ve strategies to address these mul�faceted 
challenges. While climate change, supply chain disrup�ons, and aging infrastructure pose significant 
challenges, digitaliza�on, automa�on, sustainable transporta�on, and collabora�on offer significant 
opportuni�es for the industry to transform and thrive. Worn-out infrastructure can lead to bo�lenecks, 
slowing down the movement of goods resul�ng in missed delivery windows and extended transit �mes. 
Aging infrastructure requires more frequent repairs and maintenance leading to higher costs.  
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Risk factor is associated to all business activities of all companies, though in varying degrees and forms.

Risk evaluation and its management is ongoing process within your company. The risk of yourCompany is

in the nature ofstiff competition in the market. Change in technology also playsa major role.

CHALLENGES

Logistics space is fast changing and as we evolve, we are encountering new problems to solve. Some

challenges still persist at various stages of complexity and call for increased focus towards resolution.

Lack of standardization in Processes, Technology adoption and regulations, Inability to handle high traffic

density, rising input costs, Lack of optimized processes for driving cost-reduction initiatives, Lack of

professionally skilled workforce, New-age, technology-enabled start-ups seeking improved infrastructure

to sustain automation and digitalisation across logistics face slow growth due tonon-availability of skilled

and experienced manpower.

HUMANRESOURCESANDlNDUSTRALRELATlONS

Your Company continues to place significant importance on its Human Resources and enjoys cordial

relations at all levels. Our constant endeavour is to invest in people and people processes to improve

human capital for the organization and service delivery to our stakeholders.

Attracting, developing and retaining the right talent will bea key strategic imperative and the organization

continues its undivided attention towards that. Your Company recognizes the fact that Human Capital is

one of the vital constituents ofa successful organization. Your Company appreciates performance ofthe

employees forthe year and anticipates much more fortheyears to come. Your Company believes in

employee empowerment across the entire organization in order to achieve organizational effectiveness.

Your Company has sufficient pool of talents in various operational fields. The Human resource

environment hasbeen very smooth throughout the year. Yourcompany believes that their workforce is an

invaluable asset forthem

The Company takes special care about the safety, which is core value of the company and all necessary

actions are taken in the companytokeep safety as priority.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS,ALONGWITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONSTHEREFOR

Asstipulated in the Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company reports key financial

ratios as follows:

a) Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more ascompared to the immediately

previous financial year) in key financial ratios or sector specific ratios, along with detailed explanations

thereof:
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RISK AND CONCERN

Risk factor is associated to all business ac�vi�es of all companies, though in varying degrees and forms. 
Risk evalua�on and its management is ongoing process within your company. The risk of your Company is 
in the nature of s�ff compe��on in the market. Change in technology also plays a major role. 

CHALLENGES

Logis�cs space is fast changing and as we evolve, we are encountering new problems to solve. Some 
challenges s�ll persist at various stages of complexity and call for increased focus towards resolu�on.

Lack of standardiza�on in Processes, Technology adop�on and regula�ons, Inability to handle high traffic 
density, rising input costs, Lack of op�mized processes for driving cost-reduc�on ini�a�ves, Lack of 
professionally skilled workforce, New-age, technology-enabled start-ups seeking improved infrastructure 
to sustain automa�on and digitalisa�on across logis�cs face slow growth due to non-availability of skilled 
and experienced manpower.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company con�nues to place significant importance on its Human Resources and enjoys cordial 
rela�ons at all levels. Our constant endeavour is to invest in people and people processes to improve 
human capital for the organiza�on and service delivery to our stakeholders.

A�rac�ng, developing and retaining the right talent will be a key strategic impera�ve and the organiza�on 
con�nues its undivided a�en�on towards that. Your Company recognizes the fact that Human Capital is 
one of the vital cons�tuents of a successful organiza�on. Your Company appreciates performance of the 
employees for the year and an�cipates much more for the years to come. Your Company believes in 
employee empowerment across the en�re organiza�on in order to achieve organiza�onal effec�veness. 
Your Company has sufficient pool of talents in various opera�onal fields. The Human resource 
environment has been very smooth throughout the year. Your company believes that their workforce is an 
invaluable asset for them

The Company takes special care about the safety, which is core value of the company and all necessary 
ac�ons are taken in the company to keep safety as priority.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS THEREFOR

As s�pulated in the Regula�on 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, the Company reports key financial 
ra�os as follows:

 a) Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year) in key financial ra�os or sector specific ra�os, along with detailed explana�ons 
thereof:
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CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Current Ratio

Debt-Equity Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on Equity Ratio

Change

Inventory Turnover Ratio N.A.N.A.N.A.

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratic 6.63 5.83 13.72%

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 22.34 15.67 42.57%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

Net Profit Ratio

Return on Capital Employed

Return on Investment

FY 24 FY 23

(in fi)

1.09 0.97 12.37%

1.06 1.22 -13.11%

0.95 0.86 10.47%

0.05 -0.02 -350%

43.26 -105.51 -141.00%

0.01 -0.01 -200.00%

0.09 0.02 -350.00%

0.18 0.01 1700.00%

Reason for

Variance

NA

NA

NA

Due toincrease in net profit

after tax duringthe year.

NA

NA

D u e t o in c r e a s e in

operating expenses during

the year.

Due to increase in revenue

fro m o p e ratio n s a n d

working capital during the

year.

Due to increase in net profit

aftertax during the year.

Due to increase in earnings

before interest and taxes

during the year.

Due to increase in income

generated from invested

funds and decrease in

average investment funds

in investments during the

year.

b) Details of any change in Return on Net Worth ascompared totheimmediately previous financial year

along witha detailed explanation thereof;

Particulars FY 24

Return on Net Worth (%) 5.00

FY 23
Change

(in %)

Reason for

Variance

-2.48 301.61% There has been Increase on

return on Net Worth ascompared

to Previous Year due to Increase

in Net Profit during the year.
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FY 24 FY 23 Change

(in %)

Reason for

Variance 

 Current Ra�o

 Debt-Equity Ra�o

 Debt Service Coverage Ra�o

 Return on Equity Ra�o

 Inventory Turnover Ra�o

 Trade Receivables Turnover Ra�o

 Trade Payables Turnover Ra�o

 

 Net Capital Turnover Ra�o

 Net Profit Ra�o

 Return on Capital Employed

 

 Return on Investment

 NA

 NA

 NA

Due to increase in net profit

 a�er tax during the year.

 NA

 NA

D u e  t o  i n c r e a s e  i n 

opera�ng expenses during 

the year.

Due to increase in revenue 

f r o m  o p e r a � o n s  a n d 

working capital during the 

year.

Due to increase in net profit 

a�er tax during the year.

Due to increase in earnings 

before interest and taxes 

during the year.

Due to increase in income 

generated from invested 

funds and decrease in 

average investment funds 

in investments during the 

year.

 1.09 0.97 12.37%

 1.06 1.22 -13.11%

 0.95 0.86 10.47%

 0.05  -0.02 -350%

 

 N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 6.63 5.83 13.72%

 22.34 15.67 42.57%

 

 43.26 -105.51 -141.00%

 

 

 0.01 -0.01 -200.00%

 

 0.09 0.02 -350.00%

 

 0.18 0.01 1700.00%

-

Par�culars

FY 24
Change
(in %)

FY 23Par�culars
Reason for 
Variance

Return on Net Worth (%) -2.48 301.61%

b)  Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year 

along with a detailed explana�on thereof;

5.00 There has been Increase on 

return on Net Worth as compared 

to Previous Year due to Increase 

in Net Profit during the year. 



CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT

IN ER STA E OIL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing projections, estimates,

expectations, future outlook etc. In connection with the business may be 'forward looking statements’

within the meaning ofapplicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from

those expressed or implied. However, the actual results could materially differ from those expressed or

implied in the statements made bytheManagement. Various factors which areoutside the purview ofthe

Management Control can cause these deviations. These factors include economic developments in the

country, changes in governmental policies and fiscal laws, sudden and unexpected rise in input costs,

change in the demand supply pattern in the industry, etc.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 9” Day of August, 2024

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Jain

Managing Director

(DIN:00167765)

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

Siddhant Jain

Whole Time Director

(DIN:07154500)
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing projec�ons, es�mates, 

expecta�ons, future outlook etc. In connec�on with the business may be 'forward looking statements' 

within the meaning of applicable securi�es laws and regula�ons. Actual results may differ materially from 

those expressed or implied. However, the actual results could materially differ from those expressed or 

implied in the statements made by the Management. Various factors which are outside the purview of the 

Management Control can cause these devia�ons. These factors include economic developments in the 

country, changes in governmental policies and fiscal laws, sudden and unexpected rise in input costs, 

change in the demand supply pa�ern in the industry, etc.

Place: Kolkata                                            
thDated: The 9  Day of August, 2024

    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Siddhant Jain
Whole Time Director

    (DIN:07154500)

Sanjay Jain
Managing  Director

    (DIN:00167765)



IN ER STA E OIL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

ANNEXURE —III

MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD)& CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

[Issued in accordance with provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Board of Directors,

Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

113 Park Street, Poddar Point,

South Wing, S” Floor,

Kolkata — 700016.

We, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that-

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements forthe yearended 31”March,

2024 andthatto the best ofour knowledge and belief;

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or

contain statements that might be misleading.

b. These statements together presenta true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There areto the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company

during the yearwhich arefraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code ofconduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems ofthe Company pertaining

to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies

in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we areaware and thesteps we

havetaken or propose totake to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have disclosed, based on our evaluation wherever applicable to the Auditors and the Audit

Committee that;

a. there were no signihcant changes in internal controls overfinancial reporting during the year;

b. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year, and

c. there were no instances of significant fraud ofwhich we arebecome aware and theinvolvement

therein, of the management oranemployee havinga significant role in the Company's internal

control system overfinancial reporting.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’
d
Day of May, 2024

ForInter State Oil Carrier Limited

Sanjay Jain Malay Das

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

(DIN: 00167765)
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ANNEXURE –III

MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION
[Issued in accordance with provisions of Regula�on 17(8) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

To,

The Board of Directors,

Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

113 Park Street, Poddar Point, 
thSouth Wing, 5  Floor,

Kolkata – 700016.

We, to the best of our knowledge and belief, cer�fy that-

st
1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended 31  March, 

2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief; 

 a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading. 

 b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance with exis�ng accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons. 

2. There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the Company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the Company's code of conduct. 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repor�ng 

and that we have evaluated the effec�veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining 

to financial repor�ng and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Commi�ee, deficiencies 

in the design or opera�on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we 

have taken or propose to take to rec�fy these deficiencies. 

4. We have disclosed, based on our evalua�on wherever applicable to the Auditors and the Audit 

Commi�ee that; 

 a.  there were no significant changes in internal controls over financial repor�ng during the year; 

 b. there are no significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year, and 

 c. there were no instances of significant fraud of which we are become aware and the involvement 

therein, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal 

control system over financial repor�ng.

Sanjay Jain
Managing Director
(DIN : 00167765)

Malay Das
Chief Financial OfficerPlace: Kolkata                                            

rd
Dated: The 23  Day of May, 2024
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CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

ANNEXURE-IV

[Regulation 34, read with Schedule V(D), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015]

I, Sanjay Jain, Managing Director of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited hereby declare that all the members of

theBoard of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of

Conduct, applicable to them aslaid down bytheBoard ofDirectors in terms ofRegulation 26(3) ofthe SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) ReguIations,2015 for the Financial Year ended 31”

March, 2024.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’° Day of May, 2024

ForInter State Oil Carrier Limited

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

Sanjay Jain

Managing Director

(DIN: 00167765)
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ANNEXURE-IV

DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

[Regula�on 34, read with Schedule V(D), of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015]

I, Sanjay Jain, Managing Director of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited hereby declare that all the members of 
the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct, applicable to them as laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of Regula�on 26(3) of the SEBI 

st(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons,2015 for the Financial Year ended 31  
March, 2024.

For Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

Sanjay Jain

Managing Director

(DIN: 00167765)

Place: Kolkata                                            
rd

Dated: The 23  Day of May, 2024
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INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITEDj

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472
ANNEXURE —V

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

ForFinancial Year ended on 31st March, 2024

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and ScheduleV ParaC clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015j

To,

The Members,

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Interstate Oil Carrier Limited,

Regd. Office: 113 Park Street Poddar Point,

South Wing, S“ Floor, Kolkata-700016

We, have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the

Directors of M/s. Inter State Oil Carrier Limited having CIN- L15142WB1984PLC037472 and having

registered office at 113 Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing, 5“ Floor, Kolkata — 700016 (hereinafter

referred to as'the Company'), produced before us by the Companyforthepurpose ofissuing this Certificate,

in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with ScheduleV Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and

Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including Directors

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in asconsidered necessary and explanations

furnished to us by the Company& its officers, we hereby certify that none oftheDirectors on the Board of

the Company asstated below forthe Financial Year ended on 31
t

March, 2024 have been debarred or

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange

Board ofIndia, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Details of Directors:

SI. No. Name oftheDirector Director Date of

Identification appointment

Number (DIN) in Company

1. Mr. SanjayJain 00167765 31.08.1994

2. Mr. Shanti LalJain* 00167773 09.05.1984

3. Mr. Nand Kumar Bhatter 00013918 02.11.2018

4. Mrs. Pooja Sarda 05344423 31.03.2015

5. Mr. SunilShah 00606846 30.11.2019

”Resigned fromtheposition of Chairman cum Whole-Time Director of the Companyandalso asa Director

of the Company, with effect from close of business hours on 30“April, 2024.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility

of the management oftheCompany. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basis of our

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company norofthe

efficiency or effectiveness with which themanagement hasconducted theaffairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’
d
Day of May, 2024

ForRantu Das& Associates

Company Secretaries

(Rantu Kumar Das)

Partner

Firm Registration No.: P2012WB065600

Membership No.FCSNo.8437

CP No.9671

Peer Review No. :2929/2023

UDIN- F008437F000425141
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ANNEXURE –V

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
For Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024

[Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

To,

The Members,
CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472
Interstate Oil Carrier Limited,
Regd. Office: 113 Park Street Poddar Point, 

th
South Wing, 5  Floor, Kolkata-700016

We, have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of M/s. Inter State Oil Carrier Limited having CIN- L15142WB1984PLC037472 and having 

th
registered office at 113 Park Street, Poddar Point, South Wing, 5  Floor, Kolkata – 700016 (hereina�er 
referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, 
in accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securi�es and 
Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the verifica�ons [including Directors 
Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explana�ons 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the Board of 

stthe Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2024 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Details of Directors:

Sl. No.        Name of the Director Director 
Iden�fica�on 
Number (DIN)

Date of 
appointment 
in Company

1. Mr. Sanjay Jain 00167765 31.08.1994

2. Mr. Shan� Lal Jain* 00167773 09.05.1984

3. Mr. Nand Kumar Bha�er 00013918 02.11.2018

4. Mrs. Pooja Sarda 05344423 31.03.2015 

5. Mr. Sunil Shah 00606846 30.11.2019

* Resigned from the posi�on of Chairman cum Whole-Time Director of the Company and also as a Director 
th

of the Company, with effect from close of business hours on 30  April, 2024.
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basis of our 
verifica�on. This cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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For Rantu Das & Associates
 Company Secretaries

                  (Rantu Kumar Das)
Partner 

Firm Registra�on No.: P2012WB065600
Membership No. FCS No. 8437  

CP No. 9671
        Peer Review No. :2929/2023

UDIN- F008437F000425141

Place: Kolkata                                            
rd

Dated: The 23  Day of May, 2024



IN ER STA E OIL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

ANNEXURE VI

Statement of particulars of Employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with Rule 5(2) and (3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014, asamended,fromtimetotime.

SI.
No.

Name Designation

1 Mr. Sanjay Jain Managing

Director

2 Mr. Shanti
®

Chairman

Lal Jain

Gr0ss

‹.....›‹yy Age D.t.of
Dra\¥n (In commencement Qualifications

(AmountT

ir lacs)
Years OfemQoyment

31.29 53 31/08/1994 MBA

B.Com(H)

Pezertageof

Particulars e vit/s5ares

of last teIft\t\e
employment emyloyeeil

t\e‹onyany

32 NA 12.90%

19.64 80 09/05/1984 Matriculate 46 NA 5.59%’

3 Mr.Haradhan Senior Manager 7.68 48 01/04/2003 Higher 21 NA Nil

Banerjee (Operations) Secondary

4 Mr. Malay Das CFO 7.43 49 01/07/2007 Graduate 17 NA Nil

5 Mr. Kuntal Manager 6.15 55 07/01/2020 B.Com(H) 4 NA Nil

Khandelwal’ (Marketing)

6 Mr. Rakesh Assistant

Indoria Manager

(Operations)

7 Ms. Rashmi Company

Sharma Secretary

5.57 45 01/03/2021 Higher 30 Satwik Nil

Secondary Ensemble

5.42 36 16/12/2021 CS, B.Com(H) 8 Ceeta Nil

Industries

Limited

8 Mr. Tapan Roy Deputy Manager 5.33 54 01/06/2009 Higher 15 NA Nil

(Operations) Secondary

9 Mr.Susankar Assistant 5.22 34 01/12/2010 B.Com(H) 13 NA Nil

Chandra Das Manager

(Accounts)

10 Mr. Ravi Kant Senior Fleet 4.50 28 08/07/2019 Higher 7 RK Nil

Roy Executive Secondary Events

Notes:

1. Remuneration includes salary, commission, bonus, allowances and monetary value of perquisites but excludes

gratuity provision and provident fund.

2. All appointments areConfirmed.

3. Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director is son of Mr. Shanti Lal Jain, Whole Time Director. None oftheother

employees arerelative of any Director of the Company.

4. The above details include details of top ten employees oftheCompany, in terms ofremuneration drawn during

the FY 2023-24.

5. All the employees mentioned above were employed throughout the financial year except Mr. Kuntal

Khandelwal who resigned w.e.f. 22’° March, 2024and hewas notrelated to any Director of the Company.

6. Mr. SanjayJain (HUF) percentage ofequity shares held in the company is 0.88%

7. Mr. Shanti Lal Jain (HUF) percentage ofequity shares held in the company is 0.64%

8. Resigned from theposition of Chairman cum WholeTime Director of the Company andalso asa Director of the

Company, with effect from close of business hours on 30“April, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Jain

Place: Kolkata Managing Director

Dated: The9
t
" DayofAugust, 2024 (DIN:00167765)

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023 2024 j

Siddhant Jain

Whole Time Director

(DIN:07154500)
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61 Mr. Sanjay Jain Managing  31.29 53 31/08/1994 MBA 32 NA 12.90%
  Director    B.Com(H)

8 72 Mr. Shan�   Chairman 19.64 80 09/05/1984 Matriculate 46 NA 5.59%

 Lal Jain

3 Mr. Haradhan Senior Manager  7.68 48 01/04/2003 Higher  21 NA Nil

 Banerjee (Opera�ons)    Secondary

4 Mr. Malay Das CFO 7.43 49 01/07/2007 Graduate 17 NA Nil

5 Mr. Kuntal Manager 6.15 55 07/01/2020 B.Com(H) 4 NA Nil
5 Khandelwal  (Marke�ng)

6 Mr. Rakesh  Assistant   5.57 45 01/03/2021 Higher 30 Satwik  Nil

 Indoria Manager    Secondary  Ensemble
  (Opera�ons)

7 Ms. Rashmi  Company  5.42 36 16/12/2021 CS, B.Com(H) 8 Ceeta  Nil
  Sharma Secretary      Industries

         Limited 

8 Mr. Tapan Roy Deputy Manager 5.33 54 01/06/2009 Higher  15 NA Nil

  (Opera�ons)    Secondary

9 Mr. Susankar  Assistant  5.22 34 01/12/2010 B.Com(H) 13 NA Nil

 Chandra Das  Manager
  (Accounts)

10 Mr. Ravi Kant Senior Fleet  4.50 28 08/07/2019 Higher  7 RK  Nil

 Roy Executive    Secondary  Events

Sl.
 No.

Name Designa�on

Gross 
Remunera�on 

Drawn 
(Amount ` 

in lacs)

Age

(In 

Years)

Date of 
commencement 
of employment

Qualifica�ons
Experience 
(In Years) 

Par�culars 
of Last 

employment

Percentage of
equity shares
held by the 
employee in 
the company

ANNEXURE VI

Statement of par�culars of Employees as required under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 5(2) and (3) of Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, as amended, from �me to �me.

Notes:

1. Remunera�on includes salary, commission, bonus, allowances and monetary value of perquisites but excludes 
gratuity provision and provident fund.

2. All appointments are Confirmed. 

3. Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director is son of Mr. Shan� Lal Jain, Whole Time Director. None of the other 
employees are rela�ve of any Director of the Company. 

4. The above details include details of top ten employees of the Company, in terms of remunera�on drawn during 
the FY 2023-24.

5. All the employees men�oned above were employed throughout the financial year except Mr. Kuntal 
ndKhandelwal who resigned w.e.f. 22  March, 2024 and he was not related to any Director of the Company. 

6. Mr. Sanjay Jain (HUF) percentage of equity shares held in the company is 0.88%

7. Mr. Shan� Lal Jain (HUF) percentage of equity shares held in the company is 0.64%

8. Resigned from the posi�on of Chairman cum Whole Time Director of the Company and also as a Director of the 
thCompany, with effect from close of business hours on 30  April, 2024.

Place: Kolkata                                            
thDated: The 9  Day of August, 2024

    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Siddhant Jain
Whole Time Director

    (DIN:07154500)

Sanjay Jain
Managing  Director

    (DIN:00167765)



INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITEDj

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

ANNEXURE-VII

Statement of Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 asamended from

timetotime, forthe FY2023-24

SI. No. Requirements of Rule 5(1)

5.

1. The ratio of remuneration of each

director to the median remuneration

ofthe employees ofthecompanyfor

thefinancial year.

2. The percentage increase in remune-

ration of each director, CFO, CEO,CS

or manager, if any, in the financial

year.

3. The percentage increase in the

median remuneration of employees

in the financial year 2023-24.

4. The number of permanent emplo-

yees on the rolls of Company.

Average percentile increase already

made in the salaries of employees

other than the managerial personnel

in the last financial year and its

comparison with percentile increase

in the managerial remuneration and

justification thereof and point out if

there are any exceptional circum-

stances for increases in the manag-

erial remuneration.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is

as per the remuneration policy of the

Company.

Name& Designation of Managerial Details

Personnel

Mr. Shanti Lal Jain, Executive Chairman. 4.67:1

Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director. 7.60:1

Mr. Shanti Lal Jain, Executive Chairman. No change

Mr.Sanjay Jain, Managing Director. No change

Mr.Malay Das, Chief Financial Officer 9.26%

Ms. Rashmi Sharma, Company Secretary 13.51%

The median remuneration ofthe employees in the

financial year was decrease by 8.12%

Therewere 16Employees ason 31.03.2024.

The average percent increase in the total managerial

remuneration in the financial year 2023-24 is 1.97%

The average percent increase in the salaries of employees

other than the managerial personnel in the financial year

2023-24 is 2.06%.

There are no exceptional circumstances for increase in

the managerial remuneration and the increase is

commensurate tomarket standards.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per

the Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and other

employees.

Note: Managing Director& Executive Chairman areWhole Time Directors& Other Directors are Non

—Executive/Independent Directors, who are paid only sitting fees forattending the Board and Committee

meetings. Hence, ratios provided areonlyforManaging Director& Executive Chairman.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 9“ Day of August, 2024

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Jain

Managing Director

(DIN:00167765)

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

Siddhant Jain

Whole Time Director

(DIN:07154500)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L15142WB1984PLC037472  

ANNEXURE-VII

Statement of Disclosure under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from 
�me to �me, for the FY 2023-24

Sl. No. Requirements of Rule 5(1)

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

The ra�o of remunera�on of each 
director to the median remunera�on 
of the employees of the company for 
the financial year.

Mr. Shan� Lal Jain, Execu�ve Chairman. 4.67:1

The percentage increase in remune-
ra�on of each director, CFO, CEO,CS 
or manager, if any, in the financial 
year.

Mr. Shan� Lal Jain, Execu�ve Chairman.

Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director.

Mr. Malay Das, Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Rashmi Sharma, Company Secretary

The percentage increase in the 
median remunera�on of employees 
in the financial year 2023-24.

The median remunera�on of the employees in the 
financial year was decrease by 8.12%

The number of permanent emplo-
yees on the rolls of Company.

There were 16 Employees as on 31.03.2024.

Average percen�le increase already 
made in the salaries of employees 
other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its 
comparison with percen�le increase 
in the managerial remunera�on and 
jus�fica�on thereof and point out if 
there are any excep�onal circum-
stances for increases in the manag-
erial remunera�on.

The average percent increase in the total managerial 
remunera�on in the financial year 2023-24 is 1.97%

The average percent increase in the salaries of employees 
other than the managerial personnel in the financial year
 2023-24 is 2.06%.

There are no excep�onal circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remunera�on and the increase is 
commensurate to market standards.

It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on paid is as per 
the Remunera�on Policy for Directors, KMP and other 
employees.

Affirma�on that the remunera�on is 
as per the remunera�on policy of the 
Company.

Name & Designa�on of Managerial 
Personnel

Details

Mr. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director. 7.60:1

No change

No change

9.26%

13.51%

Note: Managing Director & Execu�ve Chairman are Whole Time Directors & Other Directors are Non 
–Execu�ve/Independent Directors, who are paid only si�ng fees for a�ending the Board and Commi�ee 
mee�ngs. Hence, ra�os provided are only for Managing Director & Execu�ve Chairman.
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Place: Kolkata                                            
th

Dated: The 9  Day of August, 2024

    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Siddhant Jain
Whole Time Director

    (DIN:07154500)

Sanjay Jain
Managing  Director

    (DIN:00167765)
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FORM NO.AOC-2

ANNEXURE-VIII

(Pursuant to clause (h)of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014j

Form fordisclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to

in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis during the Financial Year ended 31“

March, 2024. - NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:

Name of Nature of

the Relationship

related

party

Inter State Directors

Liquid have

Logistics significant

Limited influence.

Fluid Directors

Truckage have

Private significant

Limited” influence.

Inter State Directors

Capital have

Markets significant

Pvt. Ltd. influence.

NatureofContract/ Duration Salient Date Amount

Arrangement of Termsofthe ofApproval paid as

the Contract by advance

Contract the Board.**

Hire Agreement forAvailing/ 3 years with As per the 14.02.2022 NIL

rendering of logistics services effect from Agreement

(Hire of Tankers to and fro 01.04.2022 to £"ItE'rI2d

from/to Inter State Liquid 31.03.2025

Logistics Limited)

between

both the

parties. The
Hire Agreement for Availing/ 3 years with trdnsactions 14 02 2022 NIL

rendering of logistics services effect from shall be in

(Hire of Tankers to and fro 01.04.2022 to ordinary

from/to Fluid Truckage Private 31.03.2025 course of

Limited) business and

Availing the logistics services 3 yearswith
on arm's

length basis
i.e., hiring of tankers from Inter effect from

ita price

State Oil Carrier Limited as per 25.05.2023 TO prevailing as

requirement forthe business 24.05.2026 on the date

ofthe company. of

Transaction

25.05.2023 NIL

* Fluid Truckage Pvt. Ltd. seized toa related partyw.e.f8“June, 2023.

*” Date ofthe Board Meeting atwhich the Contract/arrangement is first approved. Date ofapproval for subsequent, if

any, additions/modifications are not mentioned.

During the financial year 2023-24, all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary

course ofbusiness and on arm's length basis and are approved byAuditCommittee oftheCompany.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The9
t
" DayofAugust, 2024

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Jain

Managing Director

(DIN:00167765)
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Siddhant Jain

Whole Time Director

(DIN:07154500)
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Place: Kolkata                                            
th

Dated: The 9  Day of August, 2024

    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Siddhant Jain
Whole Time Director

    (DIN:07154500)

Sanjay Jain
Managing  Director

    (DIN:00167765)

ANNEXURE-VIII

FORM NO. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related par�es referred to 
in sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transac�ons under third proviso
thereto.

st1.      Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at arm's length basis during the Financial Year ended 31  
        March, 2024. - NIL

2.      Details of material contracts or arrangements or transac�ons at arm's length basis: 

th* Fluid Truckage Pvt. Ltd. seized to a related party w.e.f 8  June, 2023.
** Date of the Board Mee�ng at which the Contract/arrangement is first approved. Date of approval for  subsequent, if 

any, addi�ons/modifica�ons are not men�oned.
 During the financial year 2023-24, all related party transac�ons entered into by the Company were in the ordinary 

course of business and on arm's length basis and are approved by Audit Commi�ee of the Company.

Name of 
the 

related 
party

Nature of 
Rela�onship

Nature of Contract /
Arrangement

Dura�on 
of 

the
Contract

Salient 
Terms of the 

Contract

Date 
of Approval 

by 
the Board.**

Amount 
paid as 

advance

Inter State 
Liquid 
Logis�cs 
Limited

Directors 
have 
significant 
influence.

Hire Agreement for  Availing/ 
rendering of logis�cs services 
(Hire of Tankers to and fro 
from/to Inter State Liquid 
Logis�cs Limited)

3 years with 
effect from 
01.04.2022 to 
31.03.2025

As per the 
Agreement 
entered 
between 
both the 
par�es. The 
transac�ons 
shall be in 
ordinary 
course of 
business and 
on arm's 
length basis 
at a price 
prevailing as 
on the date 
of 
Transac�on

14.02.2022

Fluid 
Truckage 
Private 
Limited*

Inter State 
Capital 
Markets 
Pvt. Ltd.

Directors 
have 
significant 
influence.

Directors 
have 
significant 
influence.

Hire Agreement for  Availing/ 
rendering of logis�cs services 
(Hire of Tankers to and fro 
from/to Fluid Truckage Private 
Limited)

Availing the logis�cs services 
i.e., hiring of tankers from Inter 
State Oil Carrier Limited as per 
requirement for the business 
of the company.

3 years with 
effect from 
01.04.2022 to 
31.03.2025

3 yearswith 
effect from 
25.05.2023 to 
24.05.2026

14.02.2022

25.05.2023

NIL

NIL

NIL
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TO

THEMEMBERSOF

INTERSTATE OILCARRIER LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on theAuditofthe Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the hnancial statements of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited (“the Company”), which

comprise the balance sheet as at 31” March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss, statement of

changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, includinga summaryofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the mannerso

required and givea true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the Company asatMarch 31,2024, and its profit, changes in equity and its

cash flows forthe yearended on that date.

Basis forOpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards arefurther described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code ofEthics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code ofEthics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for

our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were ofmost significance in our

audit of the financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addressed in the context ofour

audit of the financial statements asa whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea

separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below tobe thekeyaudit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Investments in Securities

Investments of the company represent in various

quoted and unquoted equity shares.

These constitute 0.55% of the Company's total

assets.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have verified these investments with reference

to the provisions of Accounting Standards and also

internal policies and procedure ofthe Company as

follows:

• carried out evaluation of the design and

operating effectiveness of the internal controls

The valuation of each category of the aforesaid and performed substantive audit procedures.

securities is to be done as perthe provisions of • Assessed and evaluated the process adopted for
Indian Accounting Standards which involves collection of information from various sources
collection of data/ information from various for determining fair value of these investments
sources. Considering the complexities and extent and inventories.
of judgement involved in the valuation, this has

been determined asKeyAudit Matter.

Refer Note4to thef\ nancial statements.

• Verified compliance with the presentation and

disclosure requirements as per Accounting

Standards and the Act.
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Key Audit Ma�er How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er

Investments in Securi�es

Investments of the company represent in various 
quoted and unquoted equity shares.

These cons�tute 0.55% of the Company's total 
assets.

The valua�on of each category of the aforesaid 
securi�es is to be done as per the provisions of 
Indian Accoun�ng Standards which involves 
collec�on of data / informa�on from various 
sources. Considering the complexi�es and extent 
of judgement involved in the valua�on, this has 
been determined as Key Audit Ma�er.

Refer Note 4 to the financial statements.

We have verified these investments with reference 
to the provisions of Accoun�ng Standards and also 
internal policies and procedure of the Company as 
follows:
l carried out evalua�on of the design and 

opera�ng effec�veness of the internal controls 
and performed substan�ve audit procedures.

l Assessed and evaluated the process adopted for 
collec�on of informa�on from various sources 
for determining fair value of these investments 
and inventories.

l Verified compliance with the presenta�on and 
disclosure requirements as per Accoun�ng 
Standards and the Act. 

TO
THE MEMBERS OF 
INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited (“the Company”), which 
stcomprise the balance sheet as at 31  March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss, statement of 

changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these ma�ers. We have determined the ma�ers described below to be the key audit 
ma�ers to be communicated in our report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



IN ER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

KeyAudit Matter

Revenue recognition and measurement including

related cost of rendering of services involves

critical judgements by management including

assessment of when thecontrol of goods or

services are being transferred, identifying large

variety of complex performance obligations and

determining if such obligations are satisfied overa

period oftime.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit approach includes:

• Testing the design and operating effectiveness
of the internal controls associated with

contracts with customers/vendors.

• Testing the information technology systems

related to consignment notes, trip data and
billing.

• Analysing contracts with customers/vendors

from selected samples.

Refer Note 1(ii)(g) to the financial statements. * Analysing invoices with customers/vendors

from selected samples.

• Reviewing the logic designed in preparation of

consignment notes, bill registers, lorry hire

contracts and the time taken forconcluding the
performance obligation.

• Reviewing the report of Internal Auditors.

Information OtherthantheFinancialStatementsand Auditor's ReportThereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Board's report but does

notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the hnancial statements does notcover the other information and we do not express any

form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement ofthis other

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilitiesof Management andThoseCharged with GovernancefortheFinancial Statements

The Company's Board ofDirectors is responsible forthe matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation ofthese financial statements that givea true and fair

view ofthehnancial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows ofthe Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act forsafeguarding ofthe assets of

the Companyandforpreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that givea true and fair view and arefree from

material misstatement, whetherdue tofraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to continue asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the

Companyortocease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board ofDirectors are also responsible foroverseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on 
comprises the informa�on included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Board's report but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial posi�on, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards specified under sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of 
appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng 
effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the 
prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process. 

Key Audit Ma�er How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er

Our audit approach includes:
l Tes�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness 

of the internal controls associated with 
contracts with customers/vendors.

l Tes�ng the informa�on technology systems 
related to consignment notes, trip data and 
billing.

l Analysing contracts with customers/vendors 
from selected samples.

l Analysing invoices with customers/vendors 
from selected samples.

l Reviewing the logic designed in prepara�on of 
consignment notes, bill registers, lorry hire 
contracts and the �me taken for concluding the 
performance obliga�on.

l Reviewing the report of Internal Auditors.

Revenue recogni�on and measurement including 
related cost of rendering of services involves 
cri�cal judgements by management including 
assessment of when the control of goods or 
services are being transferred, iden�fying large 
variety of complex performance obliga�ons and 
determining if such obliga�ons are sa�sfied over a 
period of �me.

Refer Note 1(ii)(g) to the financial statements.
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Auditor's Responsibilitiesforthe Auditofthe FinancialStatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthefinancial statements asa whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our opinion. The risk of not detectinga

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than forone resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether thecompany hasadequate internal financial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures madebymanagement.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's useofthegoing concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whethera material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on theCompany's ability to continue asa going concern. If

we conclude thata material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Companytocease to continue as

a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whetherthefinancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a mannerthat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control thatwe identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance witha statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and tocommunicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From thematters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were ofmost significance in the audit of the financial statements ofthe current period and are therefore

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thata matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
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Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

l Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as 
a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other 
ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or regula�on precludes 
public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
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reasonably be expected tooutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government ofIndia in terms ofsub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in

the Annexure “A”a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3 and4 ofthe Order, to the extent

applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and beliefwere necessary forthe purposes ofour audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company sofar

as it appears from ourexamination ofthose books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement ofChanges in Equity and the

Cash FlowStatement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

specified underSection 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule7 ofthe Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31" March, 2024

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthedirectors is disqualified as on 31“ March,

2024from being appointed asa director in terms ofSection 164(2) ofthe Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

Annexure “B”.

(g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements ofsection 197(16) ofthe Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the remuneration paid/ provided by the Companytoits directors during the year is in accordance

with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according tothe explanations given to us:

i) The Company hasdisclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

hnancial statements— Refer Note 42(ii) to the hnancial statements.

ii) The Company didnothave any long-term contracts including derivative contracts forwhich there

wereanymaterial foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund bytheCompany.

iv) (a) The management hasrepresented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium orany

other sources or kind of funds) by the company toorin any other person or entity, including

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the Annexure “A” a statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examina�on of those books.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards 
specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

st (e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31  March, 2024 
sttaken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 
Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure “B”.

 (g) With respect to the other ma�er to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act:

  In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, 
the remunera�on paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of sec�on 197 of the Act.

 (h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us:

 i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its 
financial statements – Refer Note 42(ii) to the financial statements.

 ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

 iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund by the Company.

 iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,  no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or en�ty, including 
foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ul�mate Beneficiaries; 
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Place:

Kolkata

(b) The management hasrepresented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have

been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come totheir notice that has caused them to believe that the

representations undersub-clause(a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

software formaintaining its books ofaccounts forthe financial year ended March 31,2024 which

hasfeature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same hasbeen operated throughout

the year forall relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further during the course of our

audit we did not comeacross any instance ofthe audit trail feature beingtampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,

reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of

audit trail as per statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial

yearended March 31,2024.

1, India Exchange Place

- 700 001

Dated: The 23“ Day of May, 2024
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ForPatni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria

(Partner)

Membership No.300004

UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

  (b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,  no funds have 
been received by the company from any person or en�ty, including foreign en��es (“Funding 
Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es 
iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries; and 

  (c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to their no�ce that has caused them to believe that the 
representa�ons under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

 v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

 vi) Based on our examina�on, which included test checks, the Company has used accoun�ng 
so�ware for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which 
has feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the so�ware. Further during the course of our 
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, 
repor�ng under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preserva�on of 
audit trail as per statutory requirements for record reten�on is not applicable for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024. 
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Place :  1, India Exchange Place
Kolkata - 700 001

rdDated: The 23  Day of May, 2024

    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)

    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060
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Annexure “A”tothe Independent Auditor's Reeort

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members oftheCompanyonthefinancial statements forthe

yearended on March 31,2024.

In term ofthe information and explanations given to us and books of account examined by us in the

normal course ofaudit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

1) (a) (A) The company hasmaintained reasonable records showing full particulars, quantitative details

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company hasa program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and

Equipment ina phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of

the company andthenature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and

Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the

information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such

verification.

(c) According tothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, original title deeds offollowing immovable properties have been

lodged with the bankforobtaining secured loans as per details given below:

Details of immovable assets

Office Premises located at 113,

Park Street, Poddar Point, South

Block, S'" Floor, Kolkata 700016

Name ofBank or Available documents
Financial Institution for verification

Induslnd Bank Photocopies of such title

3A, Upper Wood Street, deed.

Kolkata 700017

However, we express no opinion on the validity of the title of the companytothese properties.

(d) The Company hasnotrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment(including Right of Use assets) or

intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, in our opinion, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending

against the company forholding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988(45 of1988) and rules madethereunder.

2) (a) The company hasneither purchased/ sold goods during the year nor is there any opening stock.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, thecompany hasbeen sanctioned working capital limits in excess of

Rupees Five Crore. Copies of monthly statements furnished to bank have also been made

available for our verification. Discrepancies noticed during verification of such statements with

booksofaccounts, were reasonably explained by the management.

3) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records ofthe Company, during the yearthe companyhasmade investments in companies.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, during the year the company hasnotprovided loans or advances in
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report
The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the 
year ended on March 31, 2024.

In term of the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and books of account examined by us in the 
normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

1) (a) (A) The company has maintained reasonable records showing full par�culars, quan�ta�ve details 
and situa�on of Property, Plant and Equipment.

 (a) (B)  The company is maintaining proper records showing full par�culars of intangible assets.

 (b) The Company has a program of verifica�on to cover all the items of Property, Plant and 
Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and 
Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the 
informa�on and explana�on given to us, no material discrepancies were no�ced on such 
verifica�on. 

 (c)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, original �tle deeds of following immovable proper�es have been 
lodged with the bank for obtaining secured loans as per details given below: 

Details of immovable assets Name of Bank or 
Financial Ins�tu�on

Available documents
for verifica�on

Office Premises located at 113, 
Park Street, Poddar Point, South 

th
Block,  5  Floor, Kolkata 700016

IndusInd Bank
3A, Upper Wood Street, 
Kolkata 700017

Photocopies of such �tle 
deed. 

However, we express no opinion on the validity of the �tle of the company to these proper�es.

 (d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year.

 (e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, in our opinion, no proceedings have been ini�ated or are pending 
against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transac�ons 
(Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

2) (a) The company has neither purchased / sold goods during the year nor is there any opening stock. 
Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, the company has been sanc�oned working capital limits in excess of 
Rupees Five Crore. Copies of monthly statements furnished to bank have also been made 
available for our verifica�on. Discrepancies no�ced during verifica�on of such statements with 
books of accounts, were reasonably explained by the management.

3) (a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has made investments in companies.

  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has not provided loans or advances in 
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7) (a)

the nature of loans and also not provided guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships and other parties.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments

madeduring the yearare, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, during the year the company hasnotprovided any guarantees,

security, loans or advances in the nature of loans or guarantee to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnership and other parties.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records ofthe Company, during the year the company hasnotprovided any loans or advances

in the nature of loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records ofthe Company, during the year the company hasnotprovided any loans or advances

in the nature of loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records ofthe Company, during the year the company hasnotprovided any loans or advances

in the nature of loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records ofthe Company, during the year the company hasnotprovided any loans or advances

in the nature of loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans,

making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

5) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedure, the

company hasnotaccepted any deposits within the meaning ofsection 73 to 76 of the Act or any

other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

6) The provisions of section 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 with regard to maintenance of cost

records are not applicable to the Company.

According tothe records ofthe company, undisputed statutory dues including Goods andServices

tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, dutyofcustom,

dutyofexcise, value added tax, cess have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate

authorities though there has beena slight delay ina few cases.

Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereofwere outstanding atthe year-end for

a period of morethan six monthsfromthedate they became payable except as mentioned below:
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the nature of loans and also not provided guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships and other par�es.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the investments 
made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has not provided any guarantees, 
security, loans or advances in the nature of loans or guarantee to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnership and other par�es.

 (c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has not provided any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

 (d)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has not provided any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

 (e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has not provided any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

 (f) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
the records of the Company, during the year the company has not provided any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

4)  In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of Sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, 
making investments and providing guarantees and securi�es, as applicable.

5)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our audit procedure, the 
company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sec�on 73 to 76 of the Act or any 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

6)  The provisions of sec�on 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 with regard to maintenance of cost 
records are not applicable to the Company.

7) (a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services 
tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of custom, 
duty of excise, value added tax, cess have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate 
authori�es though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. 

  Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except as men�oned below:
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Statement ofArrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding forMore than Six Months

Name ofthe Nature of Amount Period to which the Due Date of Remarks,

Statute the Dues (RLakhS) amount relates Date Payment if any

The Employees'

Provident Funds

And Miscellaneous

Provisions Act,

1952

Employees' State

Insurance Act,

1948

Provident

Fund

ESI

0.02 September' 2015 20.10.15

0.02 May' 2023 15.06.23

0.01 June' 2023 15.07.23

Paid on
25.04.24

0.01 July' 2021 15.08.21

0.03 April' 2022 15.05.22

0.03 May' 2022 15.06.22

0.03 June' 2022 15.07.22

0.03 July' 2022 15.08.22

0.03 August' 2022 15 09 22 Not yet

0.03 September' 2022 15.10.22 paid

0.03 October' 2022 15.11.22

0.03 November' 2022 15.12.22

0.03 December' 2022 15.01.23

0.03 January' 2023 15.02.23

0.03 February' 2023 15.03.23

0.03 March' 2023 15.04.23

0.03 April' 2023 15.05.23

0.03 May' 2023 15.06.23

0.03 June' 2023 15.07.23

0.02 July' 2023 15.08.23

0.03 August' 2023 15.09.23

0.02 April' 2023 15.05.23

Not yet

paid

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in

sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any

dispute exceptforthe following:

Name Nature

ofthe ofthe

Statute Dues

Income

TaxAct,

1961

Income

Tax

Amount

(¢Lakhs)

Period to which Forum where

the amount dispute is

relates pending

Remarks, if any

Refer Note No. 42(ii)(b)

95.42 A.Y. 2017-18 CIT(Appeal — 3), of the financial

Kolkata statements
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(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in 
sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authori�es on account of any 
dispute except for the following:

Name
of the

Statute

Period to which
the  amount

 relates

Income 
Tax Act, 

1961

Nature 
of the
Dues

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Forum where 
dispute is
 pending

Remarks, if any

Income
Tax

95.42 A.Y. 2017-18  CIT (Appeal – 3),
 Kolkata

Refer Note No. 42(ii)(b)
of the financial 

statements

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months

Name of the 
Statute

Due 
Date

--

Not yet
paid

--

Nature of 
the Dues

Amount 
(₹ Lakhs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Date of 
Payment

Remarks, 
if any

The Employees' 
Provident Funds 

And Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 

1952

Provident 
Fund

Not yet
paid

Paid on 
25.04.24

Employees' State 
Insurance Act, 

1948

 0.02 September' 2015 20.10.15

 0.01 July' 2021 15.08.21

 0.03 April' 2022 15.05.22

 0.03 May' 2022 15.06.22

 0.03 June' 2022 15.07.22

 0.03 July' 2022 15.08.22

 0.03 August' 2022 15.09.22

 0.03 September' 2022 15.10.22

 0.03 October' 2022 15.11.22

 0.03 November' 2022 15.12.22

 0.03 December' 2022 15.01.23

 0.03 January' 2023 15.02.23

 0.03 February' 2023 15.03.23

 0.03 March' 2023 15.04.23

 0.03 April' 2023 15.05.23

 0.03 May' 2023 15.06.23

 0.03 June' 2023 15.07.23

 0.02 July' 2023 15.08.23

 0.03 August' 2023 15.09.23

 0.02 April' 2023 15.05.23

 0.02 May' 2023 15.06.23

 0.01 June' 2023 15.07.23

ESI



IN ER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

8) According to the information and explanations given to us, there was no transaction found

unrecorded in the books ofaccounts of the company which have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments undertheIncome TaxAct, 1961.

9) (a) According to the information and explanations and as verified from books of accounts the

companyhasnotdefaulted in repayment ofloans or interest thereon toany lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit

procedures, we report that the company hasnotbeen declared wilful defaulter by any bank or

financial institution or government oranygovernment authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given so us the company has

utilised the moneyobtained bywayofterm loans during the yearforthe purposes forwhich they

were obtained.

(d) According tothe information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no

funds raised on short-term basis have been used forlong-term purposes bythe company.

(e) The Company didnothave any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company didnothave any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

10) (a) According to the records of the company, the company hasnotraised any moneys byway of

Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the records of the company, thecompany hasnotmade anypreferential allotment

or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally

convertible) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

11) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the

information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on

or by the company, noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed ofsuch case

by the management.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and information with us, there is no instance of fraud reportable

under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Actrequired to be file in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government.

(c) As per information and explanations given by management and/or audit committee there were

nowhistle blower complaints received by the companyduring the year.

12) In our opinion and to the best of our information& explanations provided by the management, the

company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177

and 188 of Companies Act, 2013where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial

Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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8) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there was no transac�on found 
unrecorded in the books of accounts of the company which have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

9) (a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons and as verified from books of accounts the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or interest thereon to any lender.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 
financial ins�tu�on or government or any government authority.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given so us the company has 
u�lised the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they 
were obtained.

 (d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, and the procedures performed by us, 
and on an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the company, we report that no 
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company. 

 (e) The Company did not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly, 
repor�ng under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (f) The Company did not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly, 
repor�ng under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

10) (a) According to the records of the company, the company has not raised any moneys by way of 
Ini�al Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 
Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to the records of the company, the company has not made any preferen�al allotment 
or private placement of shares or conver�ble debentures (fully, par�ally or op�onally 
conver�ble) during the year. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

11) (a) During the course of our examina�on of the books and records of the company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted audi�ng prac�ces in India and according to the 
informa�on and explana�ons given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on 
or by the company, no�ced or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of such case 
by the management.

 (b) To the best of our knowledge and informa�on with us, there is no instance of fraud reportable 
under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act required to be file in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government.

 (c) As per informa�on and explana�ons given by management and/or audit commi�ee there were 
no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

12) In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on & explana�ons provided by the management, the 
company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

13) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, all transac�ons with the related par�es are in compliance with sec�on 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements etc. as required by the applicable accoun�ng standards.

14) (a) In our opinion and based on our examina�on, the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period

under audit.

15) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the

companyhasnotentered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with

its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 arenotapplicable to the

company.

16) (a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934.

(b) The Company hasnotconducted non-banking financial/ housing finance activities during the

year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made bythe

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(d) According tothe information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.

17) The Company hasnotincurred any cash losses during the financial year or in the immediately

preceding financial year.

18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the reporting

underClause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realisations of financial assets and payment offinancial liabilities, other

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and

management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has cometoourattention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as

on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due withina period of one year from the balance sheet

date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We

further state that our reporting is based on thefacts up to the date ofthe audit report and we neither

give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due withina period of one year from

thebalance sheet date, will get discharged by the companyasandwhenthey fall due.

20) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR'). Accordingly,

reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable forthe year.

(b) The Company does not have any ongoing projects in accordance with the requirements of CSR

guidelines and hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the

year.

21) The Company didnothave any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Place: 1, India Exchange Place

Kolkata - 700 001

Dated: The 23’° day of May, 2024
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 (b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued �ll date, for the period 
under audit.

15) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, in our opinion during the year the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with its directors or persons connected with 
its directors and hence provisions of sec�on 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
company.

16) (a) The company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934.

 (b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance ac�vi�es during the 
year. Accordingly, the repor�ng under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

 (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regula�ons made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the repor�ng under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 (d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.

17) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year or in the immediately 
preceding financial year.

18) There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the repor�ng 
under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

19) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of the financial ra�os, 
ageing and expected dates of realisa�ons of financial assets and payment of financial liabili�es, other 
informa�on accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the assump�ons, 
nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We 
further state that our repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR'). Accordingly, 
repor�ng under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

 (b) The Company does not have any ongoing projects in accordance with the requirements of CSR 
guidelines and hence, repor�ng under paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the 
year.

21) The Company did not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly, 
repor�ng under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Place :  1, India Exchange Place
Kolkata - 700 001

rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)

    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060
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Annexure“B”to theIndependent Auditor's Reeort

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act. 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited

(“the Company”) asofMarch 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Companyfortheyearended on that date.

Management's Responsibilityfor Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Companyconsidering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence tocompany's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation

of reliable financial information, as required undertheCompanies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,

issued by ICAI and deemed tobe prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting

was established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on theauditor's judgement, including the assessment ofthe risks of material

misstatement ofthe financial statements, whetherdue tofraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system overfinancial reporting.

MeaningofInternal FinancialControlsover Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control overfinancial reporting isa process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of hnancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.A company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Inter State Oil Carrier Limited 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the 
essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on 
of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi�ng, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and 
evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng 

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 
disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are 
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recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arebeing made only

in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could havea material effect on the hnancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal FinancialControlsoverFinancial Reporting

Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the internal control over hnancial reporting criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants ofIndia.

Place: 1, India Exchange Place

Kolkata - 700 001

Dated: The 23" day of May, 2024
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ForPatni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
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recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use, or 
disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng 
effec�vely as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established 
by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Place :  1, India Exchange Place
Kolkata - 700 001

rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)

    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060
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Balance Sheet as at31st March, 2024

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Other Intangible Assets

Financial Assets

Investments

Other Financial Assets

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Current Assets

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Deferred Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

-Total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprise and

small enterprises

-Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

(Amount inT Lakhs)

Note As at As at

No 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

2 2,074.80 2,387.86

3 8.38 6.32

4 24.22 285.46

5 5.00 6.02

6 35.79

7 1651.78 902.76

8 115.72 16.36

9 59.65 31.27

10 54.19 49.76

11 280.68 294.10

12 154.42 137.03

4,428.84 4,152.73

13 499.23 499.23

14 1317.88 1,231.74

15 478.56 939.48

6 12.62

16 1444.31 1,172.10

17

32.43

367.77 267.08

18 3.75 4.79

19 272.29 38.31

4,428.84 4,152.73

Significant Accounting Policies: Note1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed
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  ASSETS
 1 Non-Current Assets
 a Property, Plant and Equipment 2 2,074.80 2,387.86 
 b Other Intangible Assets 3 8.38 6.32 
 c Financial Assets 
 i Investments 4 24.22 285.46
  ii Other Financial Assets 5 5.00 6.02 
 d Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 - 35.79 
 2 Current Assets
 a Financial Assets
 i Trade Receivables 7 1651.78 902.76 
  ii Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 115.72 16.36 
  iii Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 59.65 31.27 
 iv Other Financial Assets 10 54.19 49.76 
 b Current Tax Assets (Net) 11 280.68 294.10 
 c Other Current Assets 12 154.42 137.03 
   Total Assets  4,428.84 4,152.73
  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 I EQUITY
 a Equity Share Capital  13 499.23 499.23 
 b Other Equity  14 1317.88 1,231.74 
 II LIABILITIES
 1 Non-Current Liabili�es
 a Financial Liabili�es
 i Borrowings  15 478.56 939.48 
 b Deferred Liabili�es  6 12.62 -
 2 Current Liabili�es
 a Financial Liabili�es
 i Borrowings  16 1444.31 1,172.10 
 ii Trade Payables  17  
  -Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and   32.43 - 
  small enterprises 
  -Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro   367.77 267.08 
  enterprises and small enterprises
 iii Other Financial Liabili�es  18 3.75 4.79 
 b Other Current Liabili�es  19 272.29 38.31 
   Total Equity and Liabili�es  4,428.84 4,152.73 

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Note
No

As at
31.03.2024

As at
31.03.2023

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Significant Accoun�ng Policies : Note 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed
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Balance Sheet as at31st March, 2024

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’° day of May, 2024

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors
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    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)
    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place : Kolkata
rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

________________________
Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

___________________________
Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

_________________________
Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

________________________
Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Revenue from Operations

II Other Income

III Total Income (I+II)

IV EXPENSES

Operating Expenses

b Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

d Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

e Other Expenses

Total Expenses (IV)

V Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (III - IV)

VI Exceptional Items

VII Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (V - VI)

VIII Tax Expense:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

IX Profit/ (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII)

Other Comprehensive Income

a.i Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

a.ii Income taxrelating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

b.i Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

b.ii Income taxrelating to items that will be reclassified to

profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income forthe period (Net of Tax) (X)

XI Total Comprehensive Income fortheperiod (IX+X)

XII Earnings Per Share (7)

Note

No

27

(Amount inT Lakhs

Figures for the Figures for the

year ended year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

20 8,473.59 5,382.18

21 51.12 26.43

8,524.71 5,408.61

22 7,453.36 4,676.49

23 142.41 123.81

24 172.52 165.89

25 407.30 376.93

26 183.53 138.08

8,359.12 5,481.20

165.59 (72.59)

28

165.59

30.94

48.41

86.24

(0.12)

0.02

(0.10)

86.14

29 1.73

Significant Accounting Policies: Note1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed
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(72.59)

0.07

(30.08)

(42.58)

(0.44)

0.07

(0.37)

(42.95)

(0.85)
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 I Revenue from Opera�ons  20 8,473.59 5,382.18
 II Other Income  21 51.12 26.43
 III Total Income (I+II)   8,524.71 5,408.61
 IV EXPENSES
 a Opera�ng Expenses  22 7,453.36 4,676.49
 b Employee Benefits Expense  23 142.41 123.81
 c Finance Costs  24 172.52 165.89
 d Deprecia�on and Amor�sa�on Expense  25 407.30 376.93
 e Other Expenses  26 183.53 138.08
   Total Expenses (IV)  8,359.12 5,481.20
 V Profit / (Loss) before Excep�onal Items and Tax (III - IV)   165.59 (72.59)
 VI Excep�onal Items   - -
 VII Profit / (Loss) before Tax (V - VI)   165.59 (72.59)
 VIII Tax Expense:  27
  Current Tax   30.94 0.07
  Deferred Tax   48.41 (30.08)
 IX Profit / (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII)                   86.24               (42.58)
 X Other Comprehensive Income   28
 a.i Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   (0.12) (0.44)
 a.ii Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be   0.02 0.07
  reclassified to profit or loss
 b.i Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss   - -
 b.ii Income tax rela�ng to items that will be reclassified to   - -
  profit or loss
  Other Comprehensive Income for the period (Net of Tax) (X)  (0.10) (0.37)
 XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)   86.14 (42.95)
 XII Earnings Per Share (₹)  29 1.73 (0.85)

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Note
No

Figures for the
year ended
31.03.2024

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Significant Accoun�ng Policies : Note 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed

Figures for the
year ended
31.03.2023
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ForPatni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria

(Partner)

Membership No.300004

UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23’° day of May, 2024

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors
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Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)
    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place : Kolkata
rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

________________________
Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

___________________________
Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

_________________________
Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

________________________
Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary
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Statement ofChange in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equitv Share Capital

Balance atthe beginning of the current reporting period i.e 1st April 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated Balance atthe beginning of the current reporting period i.e 1st April 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year

Balance atthe end of the current reporting period i.e 31st March 2024

Balance atthe beginning of the previous reporting period i.e 1st April 2022

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated Balance atthe beginning of the previous reporting period i.e 1st April 2022

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year

Balance atthe end of the previous reporting period i.e 31st March 2023

B. Other Eouitv

Balance atthe beginning of the current reporting

period i.e 1st April 2023

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income fortheYear

Transfer to/ (from) Retained Earnings

Balance atthe end of the current reporting period

i.e 31st March 2024

Amount (ZLakhs)

499.23

499.23

499.23

499.23

499.23

499.23

Amount (ZLakhs)

Reserve& Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Capital General Retained Remeasurement ofdefined
TOtaI

Reserve Reserve Earnings employee benefit plans

0.36 223.83 1,005.95 1.60 1,231.74

86.24

0.36 223.83 1,092.19

86.24

(0.10) (0.10)

1.50 1,317.88
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Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital
 Balance at the beginning of the current repor�ng period i.e 1st April 2023 499.23
 Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
 Restated Balance at the beginning of the current repor�ng period i.e 1st April 2023 499.23
 Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year -
 Balance at the end of the current repor�ng period i.e 31st March 2024 499.23

 Balance at the beginning of the previous repor�ng period i.e 1st April 2022 499.23
 Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
 Restated Balance at the beginning of the previous repor�ng period i.e 1st April 2022 499.23
 Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year -
 Balance at the end of the previous repor�ng period i.e 31st March 2023 499.23
 

B. Other Equity

 Reserve & Surplus  Other Comprehensive Income 

Capital
Reserve 

General
Reserve 

Retained
Earnings

Remeasurement of defined
employee benefit plans 

 Total 

Balance at the beginning of the current repor�ng  0.36 223.83 1,005.95 1.60 1,231.74
period i.e 1st April 2023 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year - - 86.24 - 86.24
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - (0.10) (0.10)

Transfer to/ (from) Retained Earnings - - - - -

Balance at the end of the current repor�ng period 0.36 223.83 1,092.19 1.50 1,317.88
i.e 31st March 2024 

Amount (` Lakhs)

Amount (` Lakhs)
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Statement ofChanee in Eouity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Balance atthe beginning of the previous reporting

period i.e 1st April 2022

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income fortheYear

Transfer to/ (from) Retained Earnings

Balance atthe end ofthe previous reporting

period i.e 31st March 2023

Amount (ZLakhs)

Reserve& Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Capital General Retained Remeasurement ofdefined
TOtaI

Reserve Reserve Earnings employee benefit plans

0.36 223.83 1,048.53 1.97 1,274.69

(42.58)

0.36 223.83 1,005.95

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed ofeven date

For Patni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria

(Partner)

Membership No.300004

UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23" day of May, 2024

(42.58)

(0.37) (0.37)

1.60 1,231.74

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our Report annexed of even date

 Reserve & Surplus  Other Comprehensive Income 

Capital
Reserve 

General
Reserve 

Retained
Earnings

Remeasurement of defined
employee benefit plans 

 Total 

Balance at the beginning of the previous repor�ng 0.36 223.83 1,048.53 1.97 1,274.69

period i.e 1st April 2022 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year - - (42.58) - (42.58)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - (0.37) (0.37)
Transfer to/ (from) Retained Earnings - - - - -

Balance at the end of the previous repor�ng 
period i.e 31st March 2023  0.36 223.83 1,005.95                                       1.60 1,231.74

Amount (` Lakhs)

    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)
    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place : Kolkata
rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

________________________
Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

___________________________
Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

_________________________
Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

________________________
Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024



INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITEDj

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Cash Flow Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Adiustment for:

Depreciation& Amortization Expenses

Finance Costs

Remeasurement ofdefined benefit plans through

Other Comprehensive Income

Interest Income from Fixed Deposits

Dividend Income from Non-Current Investment

Net (gain)/loss on Fair Value Changes ofInvestment

Loss/ (Profit) on sale of Property, Plant& Equipment

Bad Debts

Loan Written Off

Provision for Doubtful Debts/ (Written Back)

Operating Profit/ (Loss) before Working Capital Adjustment

Changes in Working Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Asset

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities

Cash Generated from Operation

Less: Payment ofTaxes

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

B. Purchase of Property, Plant& Equipment

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant& Equipment

Purchase of Intangible Assets

Dividend Income from Non-Current Investment

Purchase of Non-Current Investments

Proceeds from sale of Non-Current Investments

(Increase)/Decrease in Bank balances other than

Cash and Cash Equivalents (incl. interest accrued)

Interest Income from Fixed Deposits

Net cash flow from/ (used in) Investing Activities (B)

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount
(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

165.59

407.30

172.52

(0.12)

(2.92)

(1.57)

(27.01)

20.68

14.67

(72.59)

376.93

165.89

(0.44)

(1.91)

(3.52)

(3.08)

0.70

- 25.02

8.89 15.39

758.03 502.39

(772.58)

(2.63)

13.42

(17.39)

133.12

233.98

345.95

30.92

315.03

25.34

4.70

(44.64)

34.66

(62.71)

(75.72)

384.02

384.02

(193.16) (859.75)

80.08 43.45

(3.90) (2.58)

1.57 3.52

(46.70)

334.95

(29.16)

2.92

146.60

104.97

(3.82)

1.91

(712.30)
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CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Net Profit / (Loss) before Tax 165.59 (72.59) 
Adjustment for :
Deprecia�on & Amor�za�on Expenses 407.30 376.93 
Finance Costs 172.52 165.89 
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans through 
Other Comprehensive Income (0.12) (0.44) 
Interest Income from Fixed Deposits (2.92) (1.91) 
Dividend Income from Non-Current Investment (1.57) (3.52) 
Net (gain)/loss on Fair Value Changes of Investment (27.01) - 
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 20.68 (3.08) 
Bad Debts 14.67 0.70 
Loan Wri�en Off - 25.02 
Provision for Doub�ul Debts / (Wri�en Back) 8.89 15.39 
Opera�ng Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital Adjustment 758.03 502.39 
Changes in Working Capital 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (772.58) 25.34 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (2.63) 4.70 
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Asset 13.42 (44.64) 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (17.39) 34.66 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 133.12 (62.71) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabili�es - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabili�es  233.98 (75.72) 
Cash Generated from Opera�on 345.95 384.02 
Less: Payment of Taxes 30.92 - 
Net cash flow from / (used in) opera�ng ac�vi�es (A) 315.03 384.02 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (193.16) (859.75) 
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 80.08 43.45 
Purchase of Intangible Assets (3.90) (2.58) 
Dividend Income from Non-Current Investment 1.57 3.52 
Purchase of Non-Current Investments (46.70) - 
Proceeds from sale of Non-Current Investments 334.95 104.97 
(Increase)/Decrease in Bank balances other than  
Cash and Cash Equivalents (incl. interest accrued) (29.16) (3.82) 
Interest Income from Fixed Deposits 2.92 1.91
Net cash flow from / (used in) Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (B) 146.60 (712.30) 

A.

2023-24
Amount
  (` Lakhs)

2022-23
Amount
  (` Lakhs)

B.

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024



INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITED

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Cash Flow Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings

Finance Costs

Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Opening Cash& Cash Equivalent

Closing Cash& Cash Equivalent

CLODNGCASH&CASHEQUVALENT

Cash atBank

Cash in Hand

As perourattached report of even date

For Patni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria

(Partner)

Membership No.300004

UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23" day of May, 2024

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

(189.75) 492.97

(172.52) (165.89)

(362.27) 327.08

99.36 (1.20)

16.36 17.56

115.72 16.36

104.17

11.55

115.72

3.81

12.55

16.36

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

+“ ANNUAL REPORT 2023 2024

Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary

INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITEDINTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings                      (189.75) 492.97
Finance Costs (172.52) (165.89) 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es (C) (362.27) 327.08 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 99.36 (1.20)
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalent 16.36 17.56
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalent 115.72 16.36

CLOSING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash at Bank 104.17 3.81
Cash in Hand 11.55 12.55
  115.72 16.36
As per our a�ached report of even date

C.

    For Patni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)
    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place : Kolkata
rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

________________________
Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

___________________________
Siddhant Jain (DIN: 07154500)

Whole Time Director

_________________________
Malay Das

Chief Financial Officer

________________________
Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary

2023-24
Amount
  (` Lakhs)

2022-23
Amount
  (` Lakhs)
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CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

1. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

i) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting

standards ('Ind AS'), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,

2013.

The financial statements have been prepared ona historical cost convention on the accrual basis,

except forthe following assets and liabilities which have been measured atfair value.

a. Certain financial assets atfairvalue(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements arepresented in Indian Rupees(¢ Lakhs).

ii) SummaryofSignificant Accountinji Policies

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company hasadopted optional exception under Ind AS 101 to

measure property, plant and equipment at Indian GAAP carrying value as deemed cost.

Consequently, the Indian GAAPcarrying values has been assumed tobedeemed cost of property,

plant and equipment on thedate oftransition. Subsequently, property, plant and equipment are

carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as

specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are

added/ disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to

the date ofaddition/deIetion. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/

underdevelopment asatthebalance sheet date.

Property, plant and equipment's are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or

when retired from active use. Profits/ losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant

and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are

recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss in the year ofoccurrence.

Intangible assets have been amortized overthe period offourfinancial years.

The estimated useful lives of Property, Plant& Equipments oftheCompanyasfollows:

Office Premises 30 years

Garage 30 years

Furniture& Fixtures 10 years

Plant& Equipments 5 years, 10 years and 15 years

Trucks/Tankers 8 years

MotorVehicles 8 years and 10 years

Computers &Printers 3 years

The assets residual values, useful lives and method ofdepreciation are reviewed ateach financial

yearend and areadjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) Basis of Prepara�on

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accoun�ng 
standards ('Ind AS'), including the rules no�fied under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost conven�on on the accrual basis, 
except for the following assets and liabili�es which have been measured at fair value. 

 a. Certain financial assets at fair value (refer accoun�ng policy regarding financial instruments).

  The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (` Lakhs).

ii) Summary of Significant Accoun�ng Policies

 a) Property, Plant and Equipment

  On transi�on to Ind AS, the Company has adopted op�onal excep�on under Ind AS 101 to 
measure property, plant and equipment at Indian GAAP carrying value as deemed cost.  
Consequently, the Indian GAAP carrying values has been assumed to be deemed cost of property, 
plant and equipment on the date of transi�on.  Subsequently, property, plant and equipment are 
carried at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the items. 

  Deprecia�on on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as 
specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.  Property, plant and equipment which are 
added / disposed off during the year, deprecia�on is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to 
the date of addi�on / dele�on.  Freehold land is not depreciated. 

  Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installa�on / 
under development as at the balance sheet date. 

  Property, plant and equipment's are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or 
when re�red from ac�ve use.  Profits / losses arising in the case of re�rement of property, plant 
and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence. 

  Intangible assets have been amor�zed over the period of four financial years.

  The es�mated useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipments of the Company as follows:

  Office Premises  : 30 years

  Garage   : 30 years

  Furniture & Fixtures : 10 years

  Plant & Equipments : 5 years, 10 years and 15 years

  Trucks /Tankers  : 8 years

  Motor Vehicles  : 8 years and 10 years

  Computers &Printers : 3 years

  The assets residual values, useful lives and method of deprecia�on are reviewed at each financial 
year end and are adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate.

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024



INTER STATE OILCARRIER LIMITEDj

CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

b) Impairment ofnon-current assets

An asset is considered as impaired when atthedate of Balance Sheet there are indications of

impairment and the carrying amount oftheasset or where applicable the cash generating unit to

which the asset belongs exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the net asset selling

price less cost to sell and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced tothe recoverable amount

and thereduction is recognised as an impairment loss in the statement of Profit and Loss. The

impairment loss recognised in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has beena change

in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised

carrying value ofthe impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

c) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash in hand and short-

term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose ofthe statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and

short-term deposits, as defined above, net ofoutstanding bank overdrafts as they areconsidered

an integral part ofthe Company's cash management.

d) Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan isa post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays

specified contributions toa separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly contributions

towards Provident Fund. The Company's contribution recognised as an expense in the Statement

ofProfit& Loss during the period in which theemployees renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans

In respect of liability towards Gratuity, Company hasentered intoa Group Gratuity Scheme with

Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The other retirement benefits are accounted forasand whentheliability for payment arises.

e) Tax Expenses

The tax expense forthe period comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in

Statement of Profit& Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the

comprehensive income ordirectly in equity respectively. In which case, the tax is also recognised

in othercomprehensive income orequity.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured attheamount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively

enacted atthe balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between thecarrying amounts ofassets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding taxbases used in the computation of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured atthetaxrates that are expected to apply in the
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 b) Impairment of non-current assets 

  An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet there are indica�ons of 
impairment and the carrying amount of the asset or where applicable the cash genera�ng unit to 
which the asset belongs exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the net asset selling 
price less cost to sell and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount 
and the reduc�on is recognised as an impairment loss in the statement of Profit and Loss. The 
impairment loss recognised in the prior accoun�ng period is reversed if there has been a change 
in the es�mate of recoverable amount.  Post impairment, deprecia�on is provided on the revised 
carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

 c) Cash and Cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash in hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and 
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdra�s as they are considered 
an integral part of the Company's cash management.

 d) Employee Benefits

  Defined Contribu�on Plans

  A defined contribu�on plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays 
specified contribu�ons to a separate en�ty. The Company makes specified monthly contribu�ons 
towards Provident Fund. The Company's contribu�on recognised as an expense in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss during the period in which the employees renders the related service.

  Defined Benefit Plans

  In respect of liability towards Gratuity, Company has entered into a Group Gratuity Scheme with 
Life Insurance Corpora�on of India.

  The other re�rement benefits are accounted for as and when the liability for payment arises.

 e) Tax Expenses

  The tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in 
Statement of Profit & Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the 
comprehensive income or directly in equity respec�vely. In which case, the tax is also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or equity. 

  Current Tax

  Current tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxa�on authori�es, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substan�vely 
enacted at the balance sheet date.

  Deferred Tax

  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabili�es in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computa�on of 
taxable profit.

  Deferred tax liabili�es and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
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period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on taxrates (and tax laws) that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying

amountofdeferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed atthe end ofeach reporting period.

f) Financial Instruments— Initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise toa financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equally instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial

assets measured atfair value or as financial assets measured atamortised cost.

Financial Assets — Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad

categories:-

a) Financial Assets atfair value

b) Financial assets atamortised cost

Where assets are measured atfair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the

statement of proht and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss) or recognised in other

comprehensive income(i.e. fair value through othercomprehensive income)

A financial asset that meets thefollowing two conditions in measured atamortised cost (net of

any write down forimpairment) unless the asset is designated atfair value through profit or loss

underthefairvalue option.

a) Business Model Test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial

asset to collect the contractual cash flow(ratherthan tosell the instrument).

b) Cash Flow Characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal

amountoutstanding.

A financial asset that meets thefollowing two conditions is measured atfair value through other

comprehensive income unless the asset is designated atfair value through profit or loss underthe

fair value option.

a) Business Model Test: The financial asset is held withina business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flowand selling financial assets.

b) Cash Flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal

amountoutstanding.

Even if an instrument meets thetwo requirements to be measured atamortised cost or fair value

through other comprehensive,a financial asset is measured atfair value through profit or loss if

doing so eliminates or significantly reducesa measurement or recognition inconsistency

(sometimes referred to as an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring
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period in which the liability is se�led or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the end of the repor�ng period. The carrying 
amount of deferred tax liabili�es and assets are reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period.

 f) Financial Instruments – Ini�al recogni�on, subsequent measurement and impairment

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a 
financial liability or equally instrument of another en�ty.

  Financial Assets Ini�al Recogni�on and Measurement 

  All financial assets are recognised ini�ally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transac�on costs that are a�ributable to the 
acquisi�on of the financial asset.  Financial assets are classified, at ini�al recogni�on, as financial 
assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amor�sed cost. 

  Financial Assets – Subsequent Measurement 

  For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad 
categories:-

  a)    Financial Assets at fair value 

  b)    Financial assets at amor�sed cost 

  Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised en�rely in the 
statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss) or recognised in other 
comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income)

  A financial asset that meets the following two condi�ons in measured at amor�sed cost (net of 
any write down for impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss 
under the fair value op�on. 

  a) Business Model Test: The objec�ve of the Company's business model is to hold the financial 
asset to collect the contractual cash flow (rather than to sell the instrument).

  b) Cash Flow Characteris�cs Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

  A financial asset that meets the following two condi�ons is measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the 
fair value op�on. 

  a) Business Model Test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objec�ve is 
achieved by both collec�ng contractual cash flow and selling financial assets. 

  b) Cash Flow characteris�cs Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

  Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amor�sed cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogni�on inconsistency 
(some�mes referred to as an accoun�ng mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring 
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assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. All other

financial assets are measured atfair valuethrough profit or loss.

All equity instruments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes

recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except forthose equity instruments forwhich the

entity has elected to present value changes in othercomprehensive income.

FinanciaIAssets— De-recognition

A financial asset (or where applicable,a part ofa financial asset or part ofa group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of

financial position) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows fromtheasset have expired or

b) The Company hastransferred its rights to receive cash flow from theasset or has assumed an

obligation to pay the received cash flow in full without material delay toa third party undera

pass-through arrangement and either i) the company hastransferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of the asset, or ii) the company has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe assets, but has transferred control of the asset.

Whenthecompanyhastransferred its rights to receive cash flowfrom an asset or has entered into

a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and

rewards ofownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks

and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to

recognise the transferred to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's

continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured ona basis that reflects the rights and

obligations thatthe Company hasretained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form ofaguarantee overthe transferred asset is measured

atthelower ofthe original carrying of the asset and the maximum amount ofconsideration that

the companycould be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities — Initial Recognition and Measurement

The financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case ofloans and borrowings

and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities

include trade and other payable, loans and borrowings including bankoverdrafts.

Financial Liabilities— Subsequent Measurement

The measurement ofhnancial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through Orofit or loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held fortrading

and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as atfair valuethrough profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held fortrading are recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognised at fair value through profit or loss are

designated atthe initial date ofrecognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 as satisfied.
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assets or liabili�es or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. All other 
financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

  All equity instruments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity instruments for which the 
en�ty has elected to present value changes in other comprehensive income. 

  Financial Assets – De-recogni�on 

  A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of 
financial posi�on) when:

  a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 

  b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset or has assumed an 
obliga�on to pay the received cash flow in full without material delay to a third party under a 
pass-through arrangement and either i) the company has transferred substan�ally all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or ii) the company has neither transferred nor retained 
substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control of the asset. 

  When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from an asset or has entered into 
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership.  When it has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all of the risks 
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company con�nues to 
recognise the transferred to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's 
con�nuing involvement.  In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability.  The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obliga�ons that the Company has retained. 

  Con�nuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 
at the lower of the original carrying of the asset and the maximum amount of considera�on that 
the company could be required to repay. 

  Financial Liabili�es – Ini�al Recogni�on and Measurement 

  The financial liabili�es are recognised ini�ally at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly a�ributable transac�on costs. The Company's financial liabili�es 
include trade and other payable, loans and borrowings including bank overdra�s. 

  Financial Liabili�es – Subsequent Measurement 

  The measurement of financial liabili�es depends on their classifica�on, as described below:

  Financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss 

  Financial Liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabili�es held for trading 
and financial liabili�es designated upon ini�al recogni�on as at fair value through profit or loss. 

  Gains or losses on liabili�es held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

  Financial liabili�es designated upon ini�al recognised at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the ini�al date of recogni�on and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 as sa�sfied. 
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Financial Liabilities—Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit and loss when theliabilities are de-recognition as well as through the EIR amortisation

process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation in includes

as finance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Financial Liabilities— De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when theobligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires. When anexisting financial liability is replaced by another, from thesame

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original

liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

g) Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Sale of Services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when theperformance ofagreed contractual

task has been completed.

lnterestincome

Forall financial instruments measured atamortised cost, interest income is recorded using the

effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

payments orreceipts overthe expected life of the financial instrument ora shorter period, where

appropriate to the net carrying amount ofthefinancial asset. Interest income is included in the

other income in the statement ofprofit and loss.

h) Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

Provisions are recognised whenthecompany hasa present obligations (legal or constructive) asa

result ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligations anda reliable estimate can be madeoftheamount ofthe

obligations. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using

equivalent period government securities interest rate. Unwinding ofthediscount is recognised in

the statement of Profit and loss asa finance cost. Provisions are reviewed ateach balance sheet

date and areadjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there isa possible obligation arising from past events,

the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company ora present

obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow ofresources

will be required to settle ora reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on

contingent liability is disclosed in the Notestobe Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised. Howeverwhentherealisation of income is virtually certain,

then the related asset is no longera contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.
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  Financial Liabili�es – Loans and Borrowings 

  A�er ini�al recogni�on, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amor�sed cost using Effec�ve Interest Rate (EIR) Method.  Gains and losses are recognised in 
profit and loss when the liabili�es are de-recogni�on as well as through the EIR amor�sa�on 
process.  Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisi�on and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.  The EIR amor�sa�on in includes 
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

  Financial Liabili�es – De-recogni�on 

  A financial liability is de-recognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.  When an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another, from the same 
lender on substan�ally different terms, or the terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally 
modified,  such an exchange or modifica�on is treated as the de-recogni�on of the original 
liability and the recogni�on of a new liability.  The difference in the respec�ve carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 g) Revenue Recogni�on and Other Income

  Sale of Services

  Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual 
task has been completed.

  Interest income 

  For all financial instruments measured at amor�sed cost, interest income is recorded using the 
effec�ve interest rate (EIR).  EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the es�mated future cash 
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where 
appropriate to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.  Interest income is included in the 
other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

 h) Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es, con�ngent assets and commitments

  Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obliga�ons (legal or construc�ve) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to se�le the obliga�ons and a reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the 
obliga�ons.  If the effect of the �me value of money is material, provisions are discounted using 
equivalent period government securi�es interest rate.  Unwinding of the discount is recognised in 
the statement of Profit and loss as a finance cost.  Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and are adjusted to reflect the current best es�mate. 

  Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed when there is a possible obliga�on arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present 
obliga�on that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an ou�low of resources 
will be required to se�le or a reliable es�mate of the amount cannot be made.  Informa�on on 
con�ngent liability is disclosed in the Notes to be Financial Statements.  

  Con�ngent assets are not recognised. However when the realisa�on of income is virtually certain, 
then the related asset is no longer a con�ngent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.
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i) Current and Non-current Classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in statement offinancial position based on current/

non-current classificat1on.

The company haspresented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current

liabilities and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule III, Division II of Companies Act, 2013

notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

An assets is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

b) Held primarily forthe purpose oftrading.

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months afterthe reporting period or

d) Cash orcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged orused tosettlea liability for

at least twelve months afterthe reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b) Held primarily forthe purpose oftrading

c) Due to be settled within twelve months afterthe reporting period or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-

current assets and liabilities. The company hasidentified twelve months asits normal operating

cycle.

j) FairValue Measurement

Thecompany measures financial instruments atfair value ateach balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either.

a) In the principal marketfortheasset or liability or

b) In the absence ofa principal market, in the mostadvantageous marketfortheasset or liability.

The principal or the mostadvantageous market must beaccessible by the company. The fair value

of an asset ora liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement ofnon-financial asset takes into accounta market participants ability to

generate economic benefits by usingthe asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would usetheasset in its highest and best use.
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 i) Current and Non-current Classifica�on 

  The company presents assets and liabili�es in statement of financial posi�on based on current / 
non-current classifica�on. 

  The company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current 
liabili�es and current liabili�es in accordance with Schedule III, Division II of Companies Act, 2013 
no�fied by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

  An assets is classified as current when it is :

  a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal opera�ng cycle. 

  b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

  c) Expected to be realised within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period or 

  d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to se�le a liability for 
at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng period. 

  All other assets are classified as non-current 

  A liability is classified as current when it is :

  a) Expected to be se�led in normal opera�ng cycle 

  b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

  c) Due to be se�led within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period or 

  d) There is no uncondi�onal right to defer the se�lement of the liability for at least twelve 
months a�er the repor�ng period 

  All other liabili�es are classified as non-current 

  The opera�ng cycle is the �me between the acquisi�on of assets for processing and their 
realisa�on in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are classified as non-
current assets and liabili�es.  The company has iden�fied twelve months as its normal opera�ng 
cycle.

 j) Fair Value Measurement

  The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presump�on that the transac�on to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either. 

  a) In the principal market for the asset or liability or 

  b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.  The fair value 
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assump�ons that market par�cipants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market par�cipants act in their economic best 
interest. 

  A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into account a market par�cipants ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market par�cipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
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Thecompany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and forwhich

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured ordisclosed in the financial statements

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

inputthat is significant to the fair value measurement asa whole.

a) Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

b) Level2 - Valuation techniques forwhich the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

c) Level3 — Valuation techniques forwhich the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements ona recurring basis, the

company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement asa whole) atthe end ofeach reporting period.

k) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet

where there isa legally enforceable rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle ona net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The

legally enforceable rights must notbecontingent on future events and must be enforceable in the

normal course of business and in the event ofdefault, insolvency or bankruptcy ofthe company

orcounterparty.

iii) Signihcant AccountingJudgement, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofrevenues, expenses, assets, and

liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requirea

material adjustment tothe carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future period. The

key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that havea significnat risk of causinga material adjustment to the carrying

amounts ofassets and liabilities within the nextfinancial year, are described below. The company

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when thefinancial statements

were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,

may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond thecontrol of the

company. Such changes arereflected in the assumptions whenthey occur.

Propertv.Plant and Equipment

Internal technical team or user team assess the remaining useful lives and residual value of

property, plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual

value are reasonable.

Contingencies

Management hasestimated the possible outflow ofresources atthe end ofeach annual reporting
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  The company uses valua�on techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

  All assets and liabili�es for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

  a) Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es. 

  b) Level 2 - Valua�on techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

  c) Level 3 – Valua�on techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable. 

  For assets and liabili�es that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisa�on (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each repor�ng period. 

 k) Offse�ng Financial Instruments

  Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
where there is a legally enforceable rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
inten�on to se�le on a net basis or realise the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.  The 
legally enforceable rights must not be con�ngent on future events and must be enforceable in the 
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company 
or counterparty.

 iii) Significant Accoun�ng Judgement, Es�mates and Assump�ons

  The prepara�on of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, and 
liabili�es and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es.  
Uncertainty about these assump�ons and es�mates could result in outcomes that require a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabili�es affected in future period.  The 
key assump�ons concerning the future and other key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty at the 
repor�ng date, that have a significnat risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabili�es within the next financial year, are described below.  The company 
based its assump�ons and es�mates on parameters available when the financial statements 
were prepared. Exis�ng circumstances and assump�ons about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the 
company.  Such changes are reflected in the assump�ons when they occur.

  Property, Plant and Equipment

  Internal technical team or user team assess the remaining useful lives and residual value of 
property, plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual 
value are reasonable.

  Con�ngencies

  Management has es�mated the possible ou�low of resources at the end of each annual repor�ng 
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period, if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ litigations against the company as it is not

possible to predict the outcome ofpending matters with accuracy.

Impairment ofFinancial Assets

The impairment provisions forfinancial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and

expected loss rates. The Company usesjudgement in making these assumptions and selecting the

inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market

conditions as well as forward looking estimates atthe end ofeach reporting period.

Impairment ofNon-FinanciaIAssets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the

Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher

of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It

is determined foran individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are

largely independent tothose from other assets or groups ofassets. Wherethecarrying amount of

an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down toits recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value usinga pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments ofthe time value of money andtherisks specific to the asset. In determining fair

value less cost of disposal recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such

transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Defined Benefits Plans

The Cost ofthe defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value

of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves

making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These

include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and

attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,a

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are

reviewed ateach reporting date.

FairValue Measurement ofFinancial Instruments

When thefair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet

cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using

valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these

models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,a

degree ofjudgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of

inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors

could affect the reported fairvalue offinancial instruments.
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period, if any, in respect of con�ngencies / claim / li�ga�ons against the company as it is not 
possible to predict the outcome of pending ma�ers with accuracy. 

  Impairment of Financial Assets

  The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assump�ons about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assump�ons and selec�ng the 
inputs to the impairment calcula�on, based on Company's past history, exis�ng market 
condi�ons as well as forward looking es�mates at the end of each repor�ng period.

  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

  The Company assesses at each repor�ng date whether there is an indica�on that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indica�on exists, or when annual impairment tes�ng for an asset is required, the 
Company es�mates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's or Cash Genera�ng Units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It 
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of 
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is wri�en 
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the es�mated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less cost of disposal recent market transac�ons are taken into account. If no such 
transac�ons can be iden�fied, an appropriate valua�on model is used. These calcula�ons are 
corroborated by valua�on mul�ples or other available fair value indicators.

  Defined Benefits Plans

  The Cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value 
of such obliga�on are determined using actuarial valua�ons. An actuarial valua�on involves 
making various assump�ons that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determina�on of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and 
a�ri�on rate. Due to the complexi�es involved in the valua�on and its long-term nature, a 
defined benefit obliga�on is highly sensi�ve to changes in these assump�ons. All assump�ons are 
reviewed at each repor�ng date.

  Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

  When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabili�es recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in ac�ve markets, their fair value is measured using 
valua�on techniques including the Discounted Cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considera�ons of 
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and vola�lity. Changes in assump�ons about these factors 
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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2. Property. Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Buildings

Furniture& Fixtures

Plant& Equipments

Trucks/ Tankers

Motor Vehicles

Computer& Printers

TOTAL

Previous Year

3. Other Intangible Assets

Particulars

Computer Software

TOTAL

Previous Year

As at

01.04.2023

Amount (TLakhs)

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

Additions
Sales& As at As at For the Adjust As at As at As at

Adjustment 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 Period -ment 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

34.89 - - 34.89 25.16 1.81 26.97 7.92 9.73

34.73 34.73 29.34 0.70 30.04 4.69 5.39

39.28 19.27 - 58.55 17.05 6.31 23.36 35.19 22.23

3,561.51 172.42 149.29 3,584.64 1,220.86 392.97 48.53 1,565.30 2,019.34 2,340.65

12.04 - - 12.04 5.88 1.35 - 7.23 4.81 6.16

18.09 1.47 - 19.56 14.39 2.32 - 16.71 2.85 3.70

3,700.54 193.16 149.29 3,744.41 1,312.68 405.46 48.53 1,669.61 2,074.80 2,387.86

2,934.75 859.75 93.96 3,700.54 990.58 375.67 53.57 1,312.68 2,387.86 1,944.17

As at

01.04.2023

Gross Block

Additions

9.69 3.90 |

9.69 3.90 |

7.11 | 2.58 |

Amortisation Net Block

s& As at As at For the Adjust As at As at As at

Adjustment 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 Period -ment 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

| 13.59 3.37 1.84 | - | 5.21 8.38 6.32

- | 13.59 3.37 1.84 | - | 5.21 8.38 6.32

| 9.69 2.11 | 1.26 | - | 3.37 6.32 | 5.00
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2.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Par�culars

Buildings

Furniture & Fixtures

Plant & Equipments

Trucks / Tankers

Motor Vehicles

Computer & Printers

TOTAL

Previous Year

As at

01.04.2023

As at

01.04.2023
Addi�ons

Sales &

Adjustment
As at

31.03.2024

For the

Period

Deprecia�on
Adjust
-ment

As at

31.03.2024

3.  Other Intangible Assets

As at

31.03.2024

As at

31.03.2023

Par�culars

Computer So�ware

TOTAL

Previous Year

Net Block

 34.89 - - 34.89 25.16 1.81 - 26.97 7.92 9.73

 34.73 - - 34.73 29.34 0.70 - 30.04 4.69 5.39

 39.28 19.27 - 58.55 17.05 6.31 - 23.36 35.19 22.23

 3,561.51 172.42 149.29 3,584.64 1,220.86 392.97 48.53 1,565.30 2,019.34 2,340.65

 12.04 - - 12.04 5.88 1.35 - 7.23 4.81 6.16

 18.09 1.47 - 19.56 14.39 2.32 - 16.71 2.85 3.70

 3,700.54 193.16 149.29 3,744.41 1,312.68 405.46 48.53 1,669.61 2,074.80 2,387.86

 2,934.75 859.75 93.96 3,700.54 990.58 375.67 53.57 1,312.68 2,387.86 1,944.17

Amount (` Lakhs)

As at

01.04.2023
Addi�ons

Sales &
Adjustment

As at

31.03.2024

As at

01.04.2023

For the

Period

Adjust
-ment

As at

31.03.2024

As at

31.03.2024

As at

31.03.2023
 9.69 3.90 - 13.59 3.37 1.84 - 5.21 8.38 6.32
 9.69 3.90 - 13.59 3.37 1.84 - 5.21 8.38 6.32
 7.11 2.58 - 9.69 2.11 1.26 - 3.37 6.32 5.00 

Gross Block Amor�sa�on Net Block

Gross Block
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4 Investments

I. At fair value through erofit& loss

i. Ecluity Instruments

(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)

a. (Unquoted, Non-Trade Investments)

Cifco Finance Ltd.*

Kaizen Organics (P) Ltd.*

Chennai Super Kings Cricket Ltd. **

Indo Britain Agro Farms Ltd. *”

International Hometex Ltd. **#

Pashupati Seohung Ltd. **

Reliance Mediaworks Ltd. **

Sai Televisions Ltd. **

Sterlite Power Transmission Ltd. **

Varun Global Ltd. **

Total (a)

m

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No.of Amount No.of Amount

Shares (¢ Lakhs) Shares (¢ Lakhs)

10 300 0.01 300 0.01

10 12000 12.00 12000 12.00

0.1 800 800

10 4000 0.40 4000 0.40

10 6000 0.16 6000 0.16

10 2000 0.08 2000 0.08

5 750 0.04 750 0.04

10 6000 0.60 6000 0.13

2 70 - 70

10 300 - 300

32220 13.29 32220 12.82

* Investments are valued at cost.

**Investments are valued at rate reflecting in demat statement as available with the management.

# International Hometex Ltd is under liquidation.

b. (Quoted, Non-trade Investments)

Gail(India)Ltd. 10 0 - 750 0.79

HDFCBankLtd. 2 0 - 255 4.10

HindalcolndustriesLtd. 1 0 - 4500 18.24

ICICIBankLtd. 10 0 - 550 4.82

IDFCLtd. 10 0 - 10500 8.25

LarsenandToubroLtd. 2 0 - 530 11.47

Satchmo Holding Ltd.(Formerly NEL Holdings Ltd.) 10 500 0.02 500 0.01

PunjabNationalBank 10 0 - 22000 10.25

RadicoKhaitanLtd. 2 0 - 350 4.18

RajasthanGasesLtd. 10 0 - 460 0.03

ReliancelndustriesLtd. 10 0 - 1311 30.56

StateBankoflndia 10 0 - 825 4.32

Swadeshilndustries LeasingLtd. 1 500 0.01 500 0.01

TataConsumerProductsLtd. 1 0 - 19500 138.23

The Tata PowerCompanyLtd. 1 0 14000 26.64

YesBankLtd. 10 1069 0.25 1069 0.16

Cauvery Software Engineering Systems Ltd. 10 1000 0.10 1000 0.01

KSKEnergyVentures Ltd. 10 600 600
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As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of 
Shares

Amount
(` Lakhs)

No. of 
Shares

Amount
(` Lakhs)

F.V
(`)

4 Investments
I. At fair value through profit & loss
I. Equity Instruments
 (Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)
a. (Unquoted, Non-Trade Investments)
 Cifco Finance Ltd. *  10 300 0.01  300 0.01
 Kaizen Organics (P) Ltd. *  10 12000 12.00  12000 12.00 
 Chennai Super Kings Cricket Ltd. **  0.1 800 - 800 -
 Indo Britain Agro Farms Ltd. **  10 4000 0.40  4000 0.40
 Interna�onal Hometex Ltd. ** #  10 6000 0.16 6000 0.16
 Pashupa� Seohung Ltd.  **  10 2000 0.08 2000 0.08
 Reliance Mediaworks Ltd. **  5 750 0.04 750 0.04
 Sai Televisions Ltd. **  10 6000 0.60 6000 0.13
 Sterlite Power Transmission Ltd. **  2 70 - 70 -
 Varun Global Ltd. **  10 300 - 300 -
  Total (a)  32220 13.29 32220 12.82

 *  Investments are valued at cost. 
 **Investments are valued at rate reflec�ng in demat statement as available with the management.
 #  Interna�onal Hometex Ltd is under liquida�on.

 Gail (India) Ltd.  10 0 - 750 0.79 
 HDFC Bank Ltd.  2 0 - 255 4.10
 Hindalco Industries Ltd.  1 0 - 4500 18.24
 ICICI Bank Ltd.  10 0 - 550 4.82
 IDFC Ltd.  10 0 - 10500 8.25
 Larsen and Toubro Ltd.  2 0 - 530 11.47
 Satchmo Holding Ltd. (Formerly NEL Holdings Ltd.) 10 500 0.02  500 0.01
 Punjab Na�onal Bank  10 0 - 22000 10.25
 Radico Khaitan Ltd.  2 0 - 350 4.18
 Rajasthan Gases Ltd.  10 0 - 460 0.03
 Reliance Industries Ltd.  10 0 - 1311          30.56
 State Bank of India  10 0 - 825 4.32
 Swadeshi Industries Leasing Ltd.  1 500 0.01 500 0.01
 Tata Consumer Products Ltd.  1 0 - 19500 138.23
 The Tata Power Company Ltd.  1 0 - 14000 26.64
 Yes Bank Ltd.  10 1069 0.25 1069 0.16
 Cauvery So�ware Engineering Systems Ltd.  10 1000 0.10 1000 0.01
 KSK Energy Ventures Ltd.  10 600 - 600 -

b.     (Quoted, Non-trade Investments)
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m

Asat31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No of Amount No of Amount

Shares (¢ Lakhs) Shares (¢ Lakhs)

MP Investments& Consultancy Services Limited 10 8050 5.61 8050

Sun Granite Exports Ltd. 10 20000 2.42 20000

Uniworth TextilesLtd. 10 500 0.02 500

ABGShipyardLtd.* 10 450 0.05 450

AnglndustriesLtd.* 10 600 0.06 600

AquaLogisticsLtd.* 1 300 - 300

Asian ElectronicsLtd.* 5 800 0.04 800

Bharat NRE CokeLtd.* 10 3857 0.39 3857

BSLtd.* 1 300 - 300

CrewB.0.S. Products Ltd.* 10 900 0.09 900

EdservSoftsystems Ltd.* 10 200 0.02 200

ElderHealthcareLtd.* 10 952 0.08 952

ElderPharmaceuticals Ltd.* 10 450 0.05 450

EssDeeAluminium Ltd. 10 1300 0.02 1300

Everonn Education Ltd.* 10 1200 0.12 1200

Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd.* 10 7812 0.78 7812

Gujarat NRE Coke LtdClass BNPP* 10 10920 0.10 10920

IVRCLLtd.* 2 4700 0.02 4700

JupiterBioscience Ltd.* 10 500 0.02 500

KingfisherAirlines Ltd.” 10 300 0.03 300

OrbitCorporation Ltd.* 10 400 0.04 400

ParekhAluminexLtd.* 10 150 0.02 150

Shree Ganesh Jewellery House(I) Ltd.* 10 3500 0.35 3500

Surya Pharmaceuticals Ltd.* 1 1000 1000

TulipTelecomLtd.* 2 900 0.01 900

UBEngineeringLtd.* 10 500 0.05 500

VarunResourcesLtd.* 1 1200 0.01 1200

DionGlobalSolutionsLtd.** 10 275 0.01 275

GitanjaliGemsLtd.** 10 750 0.01 750

Manpasand BeveragesLtd.** 10 30 - 30

OrtelCommunications Ltd.** 10 300 - 300

Sharon Bio-MedicineLtd.”* 2 70 - 70

5.61

2.42

0.02

0.05

0.06

0.04

0.39

0.09

0.02

0.08

0.05

0.02

0.12

0.78

0.10

0.02

0.02

0.03

0.04

0.02

0.35

0.01

0.05

0.01

0.01

0.01

Shree Ram Urban Infrastructure Ltd.** 10 200 0.07 200 0.07

The LakshmiVilas BankLtd.** 10 625 0.05 625 0.05

Total(b) 77660 10.92 153191 272.61

Total(i=a+b) 109880 24.21 185411 285.43

* Companies areunder liquidation.

** Companies areunderCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process.

*** Investments in shares of companies which areunder liquidation or Corporate Insolvency Resolution

Process are valued atrate reflecting in dematstatement asavailable with the management.
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As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
No of 

Shares

Amount
(` Lakhs)

No of 
Shares

Amount
(` Lakhs)

F.V
(`)

 MP Investments & Consultancy Services Limited  10 8050 5.61 8050 5.61
 Sun Granite Exports Ltd.  10 20000 2.42 20000 2.42
 Uniworth Tex�les Ltd.  10 500 0.02 500 0.02
 ABG Shipyard Ltd. *  10 450 0.05 450 0.05
 Ang Industries Ltd. *  10 600 0.06 600 0.06
 Aqua Logis�cs Ltd. *  1 300 - 300 -
 Asian Electronics Ltd. *  5 800 0.04 800 0.04
 Bharat NRE Coke Ltd. *  10 3857 0.39 3857 0.39
 BS Ltd. *  1 300 - 300 -
 Crew B.O.S. Products Ltd. *  10 900 0.09 900  0.09
 Edserv So�systems Ltd. *  10 200 0.02 200 0.02
 Elder Healthcare Ltd. *  10 952 0.08  952 0.08
 Elder Pharmaceu�cals Ltd. *  10 450 0.05 450 0.05
 Ess Dee Aluminium Ltd.  10 1300 0.02 1300 0.02
 Everonn Educa�on Ltd. *  10 1200 0.12 1200 0.12
 Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd. *  10 7812 0.78 7812 0.78
 Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd Class B NPP *  10 10920 0.10 10920 0.10
 IVRCL Ltd. *  2 4700 0.02 4700 0.02
 Jupiter Bioscience Ltd. *  10 500 0.02 500 0.02
 Kingfisher Airlines Ltd. *  10 300 0.03 300 0.03
 Orbit Corpora�on Ltd. *  10 400 0.04 400 0.04
 Parekh Aluminex Ltd. *  10 150 0.02 150 0.02
 Shree Ganesh Jewellery House (I) Ltd. *  10 3500 0.35 3500 0.35
 Surya Pharmaceu�cals Ltd. *  1 1000 - 1000 -
 Tulip Telecom Ltd. *  2 900 0.01 900 0.01 
 UB Engineering Ltd. *  10 500 0.05 500 0.05
 Varun Resources Ltd. *  1 1200 0.01 1200 0.01
 Dion Global Solu�ons Ltd. **  10 275 0.01 275 0.01
 Gitanjali Gems Ltd. **  10 750 0.01 750 0.01
 Manpasand Beverages Ltd. **  10 30 - 30 -
 Ortel Communica�ons Ltd. **  10 300 - 300 -
 Sharon Bio-Medicine Ltd. **  2 70 - 70 -
 Shree Ram Urban Infrastructure Ltd. **  10 200 0.07 200 0.07
 The Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd. **  10 625 0.05 625 0.05
  Total (b)  77660 10.92 153191 272.61
  Total (i=a+b)  109880 24.21 185411 285.43

*  Companies are under liquida�on.
** Companies are under Corporate Insolvency Resolu�on Process.
*** Investments in shares of companies which are under liquida�on or Corporate Insolvency Resolu�on 
Process are valued at rate reflec�ng in demat statement as available with the management.
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ii Preference Shares

(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)

(Unquoted, Non-trade Investments)

Vedanta Ltd

Total (ii)

iii Debentures

(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)

(Quoted, Non-trade Investments)

NTPC LtdSR-54 8.49 NCD 25Mar25

NTPC LtdSR-54 8.49 NCD 25Mar25

Total (iii)

Total Gross (I - i+ii+iii)

II Investment outside India

Investment in India

Total Gross II

III Less: Allowance forImpairment Loss

IV Total Net (IV =I - III)

Aggregate market value of quoted investments

Aggregate cost of quoted investments

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments

FOV

m

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No.of Amount No.of Amount

Shares (7 Lakhs) Shares (7 Lakhs)

10 4980 - 4980 -

4980 - 4980

10 0 - 250 0.03

5 250 0.01 0

250 0.01 250 0.03

115110 24.22 190641 285.46

0 - 0

115110 24.22 190641 285.46

115110 24.22 190641 285.46

0 0

115110 24.22 190641 285.46

24.22

30.19

19.05

285.46

88.23

19.05

4.1 The Companv hasgiven the following equity shares as pledge with Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd.

as mentioned below:

F.V As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Name oftheScriot No. of Shares No. of Shares

Gail(India)Ltd. 10 0 750

HDFCBankLtd. 2 0 240

Hindalcolndustries Ltd. 1 0 4500

ICICIBankLtd. 10 0 550

IDFCLtd. 10 0 10500

Larsen andToubro Ltd. 2 0 530

Punjab NationalBank 10 0 22000

Radico Khaitan Ltd. 2 0 350

Reliance Industries Ltd. 10 0 1250

State Bankoflndia 10 0 600

Tata Consumer Products Ltd. 1 0 19500

The Tata Power Company Ltd. 1 0 14000
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ii Preference Shares
 (Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)
 (Unquoted, Non-trade Investments)
 Vedanta Ltd  10 4980 - 4980 -

  Total (ii)  4980 - 4980 -

iii Debentures
 (Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)
 (Quoted, Non-trade Investments)
 NTPC Ltd SR-54 8.49 NCD 25Mar25  10 0 - 250 0.03
 NTPC Ltd SR-54 8.49 NCD 25Mar25  5 250 0.01 0 -
  Total (iii)  250 0.01 250 0.03
  Total Gross (I - i+ii+iii)  115110 24.22 190641 285.46 

II Investment outside India   0 - 0 -
 Investment in India   115110 24.22 190641 285.46

 Total Gross II   115110 24.22 190641 285.46

III Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss   0 - 0 -

IV Total Net (IV = I - III)   115110 24.22 190641 285.46

 Aggregate market value of quoted investments    24.22  285.46
 Aggregate cost of quoted investments    30.19  88.23
 Aggregate cost of unquoted investments    19.05  19.05

4.1  The Company has given the following equity shares as pledge with Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. 
as men�oned below:

        As at 31.03.2024      As at 31.03.2023
          No. of Shares              No. of Shares

 Gail (India) Ltd.  10 0  750
 HDFC Bank Ltd.  2 0  240
 Hindalco Industries Ltd.  1 0  4500
 ICICI Bank Ltd.  10 0  550
 IDFC Ltd.  10 0  10500
 Larsen and Toubro Ltd.  2 0  530
 Punjab Na�onal Bank  10 0  22000
 Radico Khaitan Ltd.  2 0  350
 Reliance Industries Ltd.  10 0  1250
 State Bank of India  10 0  600
 Tata Consumer Products Ltd.  1 0  19500
 The Tata Power Company Ltd.  1 0  14000
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As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
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No. of 
Shares
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5. Other Non-Current Financial Assets

At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Security Deposit with Others

6. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (Net)

Property, Plant& Equipment

On Carry Forward Losses

Financial Assets - Investments through FVTPL

MAT Credit Entitlement

6.1. Tax effects of items constituting deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

(Net)ProOertv, Plant and Eouioment

Opening Balance

Recognised in Statement of Profit& Loss

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Closing Balance

On Carry Forward Losses

Opening Balance

Recognised in Statement of Profit& Loss

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Closing Balance

Financial Assets - Investments through FVTPL

Opening Balance

Recognised in Statement of Profit& Loss

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Closing Balance

MAT Credit Entitlement

Opening Balance

Recognised in Statement of Profit& Loss

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Closing Balance

Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (Net)

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)
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5.00

5.00

(217.41)

12.72

2.60

189.47

(12.62)

(206.23)

(11.18)

(217.41)

91.97

(79.25)

12.72

(18.53)

21.13

2.60

168.58

20.89

189.47

(12.62)

6.02

6.02

(206.23)

91.97

(18.53)

168.58

35.79

(153.06)

(53.17)

(206.23)

30.65

61.32

91.97

(25.72)

7.19

(18.53)

153.84

14.74

168.58

35.79
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As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

5. Other Non-Current Financial Assets
 At amor�sed cost
 Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
 Security Deposit with Others    5.00  6.02
     5.00  6.02

6. Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabili�es) (Net)
 Property, Plant & Equipment    (217.41)  (206.23)
 On Carry Forward Losses    12.72  91.97
 Financial Assets - Investments through FVTPL    2.60  (18.53)
 MAT Credit En�tlement    189.47  168.58
     (12.62)  35.79 

6.1. Tax effects of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax assets / (liabili�es) 
 (Net)Property, Plant and  Equipment
 Opening Balance    (206.23)  (153.06)
 Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss    (11.18)  (53.17)
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income    -  -
 Closing Balance    (217.41)  (206.23)

 On Carry Forward Losses
 Opening Balance    91.97  30.65
 Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss    (79.25)  61.32
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income    -  -
 Closing Balance    12.72  91.97

 Financial Assets - Investments through FVTPL
 Opening Balance    (18.53)  (25.72)
 Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss    21.13  7.19
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income    -  -
 Closing Balance    2.60  (18.53)

 MAT Credit En�tlement
 Opening Balance    168.58  153.84
 Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss    20.89  14.74
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income    -  -
 Closing Balance    189.47  168.58

 Net deferred tax assets / (liabili�es) (Net)    (12.62)  35.79
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7. Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Allowance fordoubtful debts

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(7Lakhs) (7 Lakhs)

1,651.78

42.68

1,694.46

42.68

1,651.78

902.76

33.79

936.55

33.79

902.76

7.1. No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either

severally or jointly with any other person.

Trade receivables amounting toR 165.17 Lakhs (P.Y.R Nil) are due from enterprises over which

KMP or relatives of exercise significant influence:

7.2. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

7.3. Trade Receivables ageing schedule (Refer Note No. 33)

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks

- Current Accounts

Cash on hand

9. Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Ecluivalents

Other Bank Balances

Fixed deposit with Banks - Having original maturity for

104.17

11.55

115.72

51.06

more than 12 months

Fixed deposit with Banks - Having original maturity3 to 12 months 8.59

59.65

3.81

12.55

16.36

29.84

1.43

31.27

9.1. Fixed Deposit Receipts ofR 15.04 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23:R 14.20 Lakhs) has been pledged with

Induslnd Bank Ltd. for obtaining bankoverdraft facility.

9.2. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 83.22 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23:R 31.87 Lakhs) from

Induslnd Bank Ltdagainst pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 18.76 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23:R 6.84

Lakhs) which hasbeen given in favour of Brahmaputra Cracker& Polymer Ltd.

9.3. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 55 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23:R 40 Lakhs) from Induslnd

Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts off 8.78 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R 8.23 Lakhs) which

hasbeen given in favour ofJKTyre& Industries Ltd.

9.4. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 10 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23:R 10 Lakhs) from Induslnd

Bank Ltdagainst pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 2 Lakhs (As at31.03.23:R 2 Lakhs) which has

been given in favour of Deepak Phenolics Ltd.

9.5. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 15 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank Ltd

against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 0.58 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R Nil) which has been given

in favour ofHPCL Mittal Energy Ltd.

9.6. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 5 Lakhs (Asat 31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank Ltd
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7. Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables
 Secured, considered good    -  -
 Unsecured, considered good    1,651.78  902.76
 Unsecured, considered doub�ul    42.68  33.79
     1,694.46  936.55
 Less: Allowance for doub�ul debts    42.68  33.79
     1,651.78  902.76

7.1. No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either 
severally or jointly with any other person.

 Trade receivables amoun�ng to ₹ 165.17 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ Nil) are due from enterprises over which 
KMP or rela�ves of exercise significant influence :

7.2. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.
7.3. Trade Receivables ageing schedule (Refer Note No. 33)

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents
 Balance with Banks
 - Current Accounts    104.17  3.81
 Cash on hand    11.55  12.55
     115.72  16.36

9. Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
 Other Bank Balances
 Fixed deposit with Banks - Having original maturity for   51.06  29.84
 more than 12 months
 Fixed deposit with Banks - Having original maturity 3 to 12 months  8.59  1.43
     59.65  31.27

9.1. Fixed Deposit Receipts of ₹ 15.04 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 14.20 Lakhs) has been pledged with 
IndusInd Bank Ltd. for obtaining bank overdra� facility.

9.2.  The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 83.22 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 31.87 Lakhs) from 
IndusInd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 18.76 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 6.84 
Lakhs) which has been given in favour of Brahmaputra Cracker & Polymer Ltd.

9.3.  The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 55 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 40 Lakhs) from IndusInd 
Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 8.78 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 8.23 Lakhs) which 
has been given in favour of JK Tyre & Industries Ltd.

9.4. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 10 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 10 Lakhs) from IndusInd 
Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 2 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ 2 Lakhs) which has 
been given in favour of Deepak Phenolics Ltd.

9.5. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 15 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank Ltd 
against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 0.58 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been given 
in favour of HPCL Mi�al Energy Ltd.

9.6. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 5 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank Ltd 
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against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 1 Lakh (As at 31.03.23:R Nil) which has been given in

favour of Commissioner, Excise, Department ofProhibition, Excise and Registration, Government of

Bihar.

9.7. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 10 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank Ltd

against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 2 Lakhs (Asat 31.03.23:R Nil) which has been given in

favour ofQwikSupply Chain (P) Ltd.

9.8. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 2 Lakhs (Asat 31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank Ltd

against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 0.40 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R Nil) which has been given

in favour ofLaxmi Organic Industries Ltd.

9.9. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 15 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank Ltd

against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 3 Lakhs (As at31.03.23:R Nil) which has been given in

favour ofHMELOrganics(P) Ltd.

9.10. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 5 Lakhs (Asat 31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank Ltd

against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 1 Lakh (As at 31.03.23:R Nil) which has been given in

favour ofMarico Ltd.

9.11. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 18.05 Lakhs (Asat31.03.23:R Nil) from Induslnd Bank

Ltdagainst pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts ofR 7.09 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23:R Nil) which has been

given in favour ofAssam Petro Chemicals Ltd.
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(7Lakhs) (7 Lakhs)

10. OtherCurrent Financial Assets

At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Security Deposit with Others

Retention Money

Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits

Interest accrued on Other Deposits

11. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Balance with Revenue Authorities (Net of Provision)

12. Other Current Assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Installments on Loan paid in advance

Advances forpurchase of Property, Plant& Equipment

Party Advances

Staff Advances - KMP

Staff Advances - Others

Other Advances

Prepaid Expenses

GST Input credit not yet taken

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)

Staff Advances
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47.30

3.79

2.05

1.05

54.19

280.68

280.68

10.67

16.58

0.17

1.32

31.44

82.21

11.62

0.41

154.42

41.38

3.79

1.27

3.32

49.76

294.10

294.10

10.23

20.00

24.09

0.16

1.21

17.95

58.87

3.98

0.54

137.03
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against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 1 Lakh (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been given in 
favour of Commissioner, Excise, Department of Prohibi�on, Excise and Registra�on, Government of 
Bihar.

9.7. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 10 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank Ltd 
against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 2 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been given in 
favour of Qwik Supply Chain (P) Ltd.

9.8. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 2 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank Ltd 
against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 0.40 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been given 
in favour of Laxmi Organic Industries Ltd.

9.9. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 15 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank Ltd 
against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 3 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been given in 
favour of HMEL Organics (P) Ltd.

9.10. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 5 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank Ltd 
against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 1 Lakh (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been given in 
favour of Marico Ltd.

9.11. The Company has taken Bank Guarantee of ₹ 18.05 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) from IndusInd Bank 
Ltd against pledge of Fixed Deposit receipts of ₹ 7.09 Lakhs (As at 31.03.23: ₹ Nil) which has been 
given in favour of Assam Petro Chemicals Ltd.

10. Other Current Financial Assets
 At amor�sed cost
 Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
 Security Deposit with Others    47.30  41.38
 Reten�on Money    3.79  3.79
 Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits    2.05  1.27
 Interest accrued on Other Deposits    1.05  3.32
     54.19  49.76

11. Current Tax Assets (Net)
 Balance with Revenue Authori�es (Net of Provision)   280.68  294.10
     280.68  294.10  

12. Other Current Assets
 (Unsecured, considered good)
 Installments on Loan paid in advance    10.67  10.23
 Advances for purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment   -  20.00
 Party Advances    16.58  24.09
 Staff Advances - KMP    0.17  0.16
 Staff Advances - Others    1.32  1.21
 Other Advances    31.44  17.95
 Prepaid Expenses    82.21  58.87
 GST Input credit not yet taken    11.62  3.98
 (Unsecured, considered doub�ul)
 Staff Advances    0.41  0.54
     154.42  137.03
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13.Equity Share Capital

a. Authorised Share Capital

Ordinary Equity Shares ofT 10/- each

b. Issued Share Capital

Ordinary Equity Shares ofZ 10/- each

As at31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of Amount No.of Amount

Shares (7 Lakhs) Shares (7 Lakhs)

5300000 530.00 5300000 530.00

5300000 530.00 5300000 530.00

5000000 500.00 5000000 500.00

5000000 500.00 5000000 500.00

c. Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Ordinary Equity Shares ofZ 10/- each fully paid-up 4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23

4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23

d. Reconciliation of the number ofshares at the beginning

and at the end of the year

Eouitv Shares

At the beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Outstanding atthe end of the year

e. Terms attached to equitv shares

4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23

0 - 0 -

4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23

The Company hasonly one class of Ordinary Shares havinga par value ofR 10/- per share. Each holder of

ordinary share is entitled to one vote per share and is entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus, if

any, in the event ofwinding up.

f. SharehoIdinji Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Companv

The Company does not have any Holding Company orUltimate Holding Company.

g. Details of Equitv Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Companv

Name oftheShareholders

Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd

Sanjay Jain

Shanti Lal Jain

SangeethaS

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No of % of No of % of

Shares Holding Shares Holding

915976 18.35% 745190 14.93%

643912 12.90% 639995 12.82%

279029 5.59% 279029 5.59%

606263 12.14% 660610 13.23%

h. Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment

being received in cash forthe period of five years immediately preceding the date as atwhich the Balance

Sheet is prepared - Nil
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

13. Equity Share Capital
a. Authorised Share Capital
 Ordinary Equity Shares of ` 10/- each   5300000 530.00 5300000       530.00
    5300000 530.00  5300000 530.00

b. Issued Share Capital
 Ordinary Equity Shares of ` 10/- each   5000000 500.00 5000000       500.00
    5000000 500.00 5000000 500.00

c. Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
 Ordinary Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up  4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23
    4992300 499.23  4992300 499.23

d. Reconcilia�on of the number of shares at the beginning
  and at the end of the year 
 
 Equity Shares
 At the beginning of the year   4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23
 Issued during the year   0 - 0 -
 Outstanding at the end of the year   4992300 499.23 4992300 499.23

e. Terms a�ached to equity shares
 
  The Company has only one class of Ordinary Shares having a par value of ₹ 10/- per share. Each holder of 

ordinary share is en�tled to one vote per share and is en�tled to dividend and to par�cipate in surplus, if 
any, in the event of winding up.

f.  Shareholding Pa�ern with respect of Holding or Ul�mate Holding Company
  The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ul�mate Holding Company.

g.  Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

 Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd   915976 18.35% 745190 14.93%
 Sanjay Jain   643912 12.90% 639995 12.82%
 Shan� Lal Jain   279029 5.59% 279029 5.59%
 Sangeetha S   606263 12.14% 660610 13.23%

h. Aggregate number and class of shares allo�ed as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment 
being received in cash for the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance 
Sheet is prepared - Nil

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of 
Shares

Amount
(` Lakhs)

No. of 
Shares

Amount
(` Lakhs)

         Name of the Shareholder  s
No of 

Shares

% of
Holding

No of 
Shares

% of
Holding

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
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i. No ordinary shares have been reserved forissue under options and contracts/ commitments forthesale of

shares/ disinvestment as atthe Balance Sheet date.

j. No Ordinary Shares have been bought back by theCompanyduring the period of5 years preceding the date

asatwhich the Balance Sheet is prepared.

k. No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Companyduring the year.

I. No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Companyduring the year.

m. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters asat31st March, 2024 is as follows:

Promoter Name

Sanjay Jain

Shanti Lal Jain

Sunita Jain

Gunmala Devi Jain

Santosh Devi Jain

Sanjay Jain (HUF)

Pankaj Jain

Shanti Lal Jain (HUF)

Rikhab Chand Jain (HUF)

Rikhab Chand Jain

Virendra Jain

Sulochana Jain

Jyoti Jain

lnter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd.

As at

31.03.2024

No. of

Shares

% of

total

shares

As at

31.03.2023 % Change

No.of

Shares

% of during

total the year

shares

643912 12.90% 639995 12.82% 0.08%

279029 5.59% 279029 5.59% 0.00%

112748 2.26% 112748 2.26% 0.00%

112045 2.24% 112045 2.24% 0.00%

57200 1.15% 57200 1.15% 0.00%

43923 0.88% 43923 0.88% 0.00%

700 0.01% 700 0.01% 0.00%

32001 0.64% 32001 0.64% 0.00%

30000 0.60% 30000 0.60% 0.00%

10000 0.20% 10000 0.20% 0.00%

1000 0.02% 1000 0.02% 0.00%

0 0.00% 500 0.01% -0.01%

1800 0.04% 500 0.01% 0.03%

915976 18.35% 745190 14.93% 3.42%
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i. No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under op�ons and contracts/ commitments for the sale of 
shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

j. No Ordinary Shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of 5 years preceding the date 
as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

k. No securi�es conver�ble into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.
l. No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
m. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March, 2024 is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

 Sanjay Jain  643912 12.90% 639995 12.82% 0.08%

 Shan� Lal Jain  279029 5.59% 279029 5.59% 0.00%

 Sunita Jain  112748 2.26% 112748 2.26% 0.00%

 Gunmala Devi Jain  112045 2.24% 112045 2.24% 0.00%

 Santosh Devi Jain  57200 1.15% 57200 1.15% 0.00%

 Sanjay Jain (HUF)  43923 0.88% 43923 0.88% 0.00%

 Pankaj Jain  700 0.01% 700 0.01% 0.00%

 Shan� Lal Jain (HUF)  32001 0.64% 32001 0.64% 0.00%

 Rikhab Chand Jain (HUF)  30000 0.60% 30000 0.60% 0.00%

 Rikhab Chand Jain  10000 0.20% 10000 0.20% 0.00%

 Virendra Jain  1000 0.02% 1000 0.02% 0.00%

 Sulochana Jain  0 0.00% 500 0.01% -0.01%

 Jyo� Jain  1800 0.04% 500 0.01% 0.03%

 Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd.  915976 18.35% 745190 14.93% 3.42%

Promoter Name

As at
 31.03.2024

As at
 31.03.2023

No. of
Shares

No. of
Shares

% of
total

shares

% of
total

shares

% Change
during

 the year
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Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as at31st March, 2023 is as follows:

Promoter Name

Sanjay Jain

Shanti Lal Jain

Sunita Jain

Gunmala Devi Jain

Rajesh Jain

Santosh Devi Jain

Sanjay Jain (HUF)

Pankaj Jain

Shanti Lal Jain (HUF)

Rikhab Chand Jain (HUF)

Rikhab Chand Jain

Varsha Jain

Virendra Jain

Sulochana Jain

Jyoti Jain

lnter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd.

As at

31.03.2023

No. of

Shares

% of

total

shares

As at

31.03.2022 % Change

No.of

Shares

% of during

total the year

shares

639995 12.82% 563806 11.29% 1.53%

279029 5.59% 279029 5.59% 0.00%

112748 2.26% 112748 2.26% 0.00%

112045 2.24% 112045 2.24% 0.00%

0 0.00% 66200 1.33% -1.33%

57200 1.15% 57200 1.15% 0.00%

43923 0.88% 43923 0.88% 0.00%

700 0.01% 40700 0.82% -0.80%

32001 0.64% 32001 0.64% 0.00%

30000 0.60% 30000 0.60% 0.00%

10000 0.20% 10000 0.20% 0.00%

0 0.00% 3300 0.07% -0.07%

1000 0.02% 1000 0.02% 0.00%

500 0.01% 500 0.01% 0.00%

500 0.01% 500 0.01% 0.00%

745190 14.93% 745190 14.93% 0.00%
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 Sanjay Jain 639995 12.82% 563806 11.29% 1.53%

 Shan� Lal Jain 279029 5.59% 279029 5.59% 0.00%

 Sunita Jain 112748 2.26% 112748 2.26% 0.00%

 Gunmala Devi Jain 112045 2.24% 112045 2.24% 0.00%

 Rajesh Jain 0 0.00% 66200 1.33% -1.33%

 Santosh Devi Jain 57200 1.15% 57200 1.15% 0.00%

 Sanjay Jain (HUF) 43923 0.88% 43923 0.88% 0.00%

 Pankaj Jain 700 0.01% 40700 0.82% -0.80%

 Shan� Lal Jain (HUF) 32001 0.64% 32001 0.64% 0.00%

 Rikhab Chand Jain (HUF) 30000 0.60% 30000 0.60% 0.00%

 Rikhab Chand Jain 10000 0.20% 10000 0.20% 0.00%

 Varsha Jain 0 0.00% 3300 0.07% -0.07%

 Virendra Jain 1000 0.02% 1000 0.02% 0.00%

 Sulochana Jain 500 0.01% 500 0.01% 0.00%

 Jyo� Jain 500 0.01% 500 0.01% 0.00%

 Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd. 745190 14.93% 745190 14.93% 0.00%

Promoter Name

As at
 31.03.2023

As at
 31.03.2022

No. of
Shares

No. of
Shares

% of
total

shares

% of
total

shares

% Change
during

 the year

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March, 2023 is as follows :   
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

14. Other Equity

a. Capital Reserve

Balance atthe beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Balance atthe end of the year

b. Reserve Fund

Balance atthe beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Balance atthe end of the year

C. Other Comprehensive Income

Balance atthe beginning of the year

Other Comprehensive Income fortheyear

Balance atthe end of the year

d. Retained Earnings

Balance atthe beginning of the year

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Balance atthe end of the year

Total Other Equity (a+b+c+d)

15. Non-Current Liabilities - Borrowings

At amortised cost

Term Loans From Banks (Secured)

Other than Term Loans From Banks (Secured)

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(7Lakhs) (7 Lakhs)

0.36

0.36

223.83

223.83

1.60

(0.10)

1.50

1,005.95

86.24

1,092.19

1,317.88

478.56

478.56

0.36

0.36

223.83

223.83

1.97

(0.37)

1.60

1,048.53

(42.58)

1,005.95

1,231.74

939.48

939.48

15.1. Nature of Security and terms of repayment forLong Term Secured Borrowings have been given in

Note No.43.

15.2. Installments falling due in respect of all the above loans upto 31.03.2025 have been grouped under

"Current Maturities of LongTerm Debts" (Refer Note No. 16).

15.3. Maturity Profile of Borrowings - Term Loan

In the first year (Refer Note No. 16)

Current maturities of long-term debt

In the second year

In the third to fifth year

After five years

Non-current borrowings
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502.07

502.07

290.64

187.92

478.56

471.04

471.04

501.11

438.37
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

14. Other Equity
a. Capital Reserve
 Balance at the beginning of the year   0.36  0.36
 Addi�on during the year    -  -
 Balance at the end of the year   0.36  0.36

b. Reserve Fund
 Balance at the beginning of the year   223.83  223.83
 Addi�on during the year   -  -
 Balance at the end of the year   223.83  223.83

c. Other Comprehensive Income
 Balance at the beginning of the year   1.60  1.97
 Other Comprehensive Income for the year    (0.10)  (0.37)
 Balance at the end of the year    1.50  1.60

d. Retained Earnings
 Balance at the beginning of the year   1,005.95  1,048.53
 Profit / (Loss) for the year   86.24  (42.58)
 Balance at the end of the year   1,092.19  1,005.95

  Total Other Equity (a+b+c+d)  1,317.88  1,231.74

15. Non-Current Liabili�es - Borrowings
 At amor�sed cost
 Term Loans From Banks (Secured)   478.56  939.48
 Other than Term Loans From Banks (Secured)   -      -
    478.56  939.48

15.1. Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Long Term Secured Borrowings have been given in 
Note No. 43.

15.2. Installments falling due in respect of all the above loans upto 31.03.2025 have been grouped under 
"Current Maturi�es of Long Term Debts" (Refer Note No. 16).

15.3. Maturity Profile of Borrowings - Term Loan
 In the first year (Refer Note No. 16)   502.07  471.04
 Current maturi�es of long-term debt   502.07  471.04
 In the second year   290.64  501.11
 In the third to fi�h year   187.92  438.37
 A�er five years   -  -
 Non-current borrowings   478.56  939.48
 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

Maturity Profile of Borrowings - Other than Term Loan

In the first year (Refer Note No. 16)

Current maturities of long-term debt

In the second year

In the third to fifth year

After five years

Non-current borrowings

16. Current Liabilities - Borrowings

At amortised cost

Current Maturities of long term borrowings

Loan reoavable on demand

From Banks (Secured)

From Others (Secured)

From Others (Unsecured)

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(7Lakhs) (7 Lakhs)

502.07

942.24

1,444.31

69.83

69.83

540.87

453.93

127.30

50.00

1,172.10

16.1. The Company hasavailed cash credit facility, working capital term loan - NCGTC (under GECL

scheme) and Bank Guarantee Limit with Induslnd Bank Ltd. and created first charge on all current

assets of the company comprising of stock of raw material, WIP, Finished Goods, receivables, book

debts and other current assets, on movable fixed assets of the company both present and future

except other assets exclusively financed by other banks, and equitable mortgage value of office

premises of the Company, office premises of Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd (enterprise over

which Directors and relatives of Directors having significant influence), and Fixed Deposit Receipt of

R 15.04 Lakhs has been pledged with Induslnd Bank Ltd. and also the personal guarantee of Mr.

SanjayJain, Director of the Company.

16.2. Loan taken from Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. is secured against pledge of equity shares as

given in Note No.4.1.

17. Current Financial Liabilities -Trade Payables

At amortised cost

Total outstanding dues ofcreditors to micro enterprises

& small enterprises

Total outstanding dues ofcreditor to other than micro

enterprises& small enterprises

From Related Parties

From Others
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61.66

306.11

400.20
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 Maturity Profile of Borrowings - Other than Term Loan
 In the first year (Refer Note No. 16)   -  69.83  
 Current maturi�es of long-term debt   -  69.83
 In the second year   -  -
 In the third to fi�h year   -  -
 A�er five years   -  -
 Non-current borrowings   -  -

16. Current Liabili�es - Borrowings
 At amor�sed cost
 Current Maturi�es of long term borrowings   502.07  540.87
 Loan repayable on demand
 From Banks (Secured)   942.24  453.93
 From Others (Secured)   -  127.30
 From Others (Unsecured)   -   50.00
    1,444.31  1,172.10

16.1. The Company has availed cash credit facility, working capital term loan - NCGTC (under GECL 
scheme) and Bank Guarantee Limit with IndusInd Bank Ltd. and created first charge on all current 
assets of the company comprising of stock of raw material, WIP, Finished Goods, receivables, book 
debts and other current assets, on movable fixed assets of the company both present and future 
except other assets  exclusively financed by other banks, and equitable mortgage value of office 
premises  of the Company, office premises of Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd (enterprise over 
which Directors and rela�ves of Directors having significant influence), and Fixed Deposit Receipt of 
₹ 15.04 Lakhs has been pledged with IndusInd Bank Ltd. and also the personal guarantee of Mr. 
Sanjay Jain, Director of the Company.

16.2. Loan taken from Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. is secured against pledge of equity shares as 
given in Note No. 4.1.

17. Current Financial Liabili�es - Trade Payables
 At amor�sed cost
 Total outstanding dues of creditors to micro enterprises      32.43  -
 & small enterprises
 Total outstanding dues of creditor to other than micro 
 enterprises & small enterprises
      From Related Par�es   61.66  41.12
      From Others   306.11  225.96
             400.20  267.08

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

17.1. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006(MSMED, 2006) have

a. Principal amountoutstanding:R 32.43 Lakhs(As at31.03.2023:R Nil)

b. Interest due thereon:R Nil (As at 31.03.2023:R Nil)

c. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED 2006 alongwith amount ofthe

payment madetothesuppliers beyond theappointed day during the year:R Nil (As at 31.03.2023:R

Nil)

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but

beyond theappointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED

2006:R Nil (As at 31.03.2023:R Nil)

e. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid:R Nil (As at 31.03.2023:R Nil)

f. Further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years:R Nil (As at 31.03.2023:R Nil)

17.2. Trade Payables ageing Schedule(Refer Note No.34)

18. Other Current Financial Liabilities

At amortised cost

Interest accrued

19. Other Current Liabilities

Liabilities for purchase of Property, Plant& Equipments

Payable to Key Managerial Personnel

Payable to Staffs

Other Pavables

To Relatives of Directors

To Others

Advance received from Customers

From Related Parties

From Others

Statutory Dues Payables

20. Revenue from Operations

Sale of Services

Freight Income

Other Operating Income

Shortage and Damage Recovered

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

3.75

3.75

138.18

1.09

5.04

5.95

1.23

120.80

272.29

8,452.79

20.80

8,473.59

4.79

4.79

7.16

4.02

0.36

5.01

0.60

21.16

38.31

5,351.64

30.54

5,382.18

20.1. Freight Income includes income accrued but bill not raised ofR 200.75 Lakhs (P.Y.R 142.38 Lakhs)

20.2. Freight Income includes income from export services ofR 54.92 Lakhs (P.Y.R 44.04 Lakhs)
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17.1. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (MSMED, 2006) have
a. Principal amount outstanding: ₹ 32.43 Lakhs (As at 31.03.2023: ₹ Nil)
b. Interest due thereon: ₹ Nil (As at 31.03.2023: ₹ Nil)
c. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Sec�on 16 of MSMED 2006 alongwith amount of the 

payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year: ₹ Nil (As at 31.03.2023: ₹ 

Nil)
d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but 

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED 

2006: ₹ Nil (As at 31.03.2023: ₹ Nil)
e. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid: ₹ Nil (As at 31.03.2023: ₹ Nil)
f. Further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years: ₹ Nil (As at 31.03.2023: ₹ Nil)

17.2. Trade Payables ageing Schedule (Refer Note No. 34)

18. Other Current Financial Liabili�es
 At amor�sed cost
 Interest accrued   3.75  4.79
    3.75  4.79  

19. Other Current Liabili�es
 Liabili�es for purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments  138.18  -
 Payable to Key Managerial Personnel   1.09  7.16
 Payable to Staffs   5.04  4.02
 Other Payables
 To Rela�ves of Directors   -  0.36
 To Others   5.95  5.01
 Advance received from Customers
 From Related Par�es   -  -
 From Others   1.23  0.60
 Statutory Dues Payables   120.80  21.16
    272.29  38.31

20. Revenue from Opera�ons
 Sale of Services
      Freight Income   8,452.79  5,351.64
 Other Opera�ng Income
      Shortage and Damage Recovered   20.80  30.54
    8,473.59  5,382.18

20.1. Freight Income includes income accrued but bill not raised of ₹ 200.75 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ 142.38 Lakhs)
20.2. Freight Income includes income from export services of ₹ 54.92 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ 44.04 Lakhs)

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

21. Other Income

Interest Income

on Fixed Deposits

on Other Deposits

on Income Tax Refund

on Non-Current Investments

Dividend Income from Non-Current Investments

Net gain on Fair Value Changes ofInvestments

Profit in trading in Future& Option segment

Profit on sale of Property, Plant& Equipments

Provision for Doubtful Debts Written Back

Other Non-Operating Income

Prior Period Income

Miscellaneous Income

22. Operating Expenses

Freight Paid

Running, Tyres& Taxes Expenses

23. Employee Benefits Expense

Salary& Bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

24. Finance Costs

(Atamortised cost)

Interest Expenses

on Bank Overdraft/ Term Loan

on Loan from Bank

on Loan from Others

on Others

Other Borrowing Costs

Loan Processing Fees

Bank Guarantee Commission

25. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation of Tangible Assets

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(7Lakhs) (7 Lakhs)
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2.92

3.97

7.48

1.57

27.01

2.43

5.74

51.12

4,901.24

2,552.12

7,453.36

120.96

7.45

14.00

142.41

68.06

93.69

3.62

1.36

3.58

2.21

172.52

405.46

1.84

407.30

1.91

3.69

6.21

3.52

3.08

0.94

7.08

26.43

2,390.83

2,285.66

4,676.49

108.28

6.37

9.16

123.81

48.63

99.67

15.14

0.26

0.96

1.23

165.89

375.67

1.26

376.93
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21. Other Income
 Interest Income
      on Fixed Deposits   2.92  1.91
      on Other Deposits   3.97  3.69
      on Income Tax Refund   7.48  6.21
      on Non-Current Investments   -  -
 Dividend Income from Non-Current Investments   1.57  3.52
 Net gain on Fair Value Changes of Investments   27.01  -
 Profit in trading in Future & Op�on segment   2.43  -
 Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipments   -  3.08
 Provision for Doub�ul Debts Wri�en Back   -  -
 Other Non-Opera�ng Income
 Prior Period Income   -  0.94
 Miscellaneous Income   5.74  7.08
    51.12  26.43

22. Opera�ng Expenses
 Freight Paid   4,901.24  2,390.83
 Running, Tyres & Taxes Expenses   2,552.12  2,285.66  
    7,453.36  4,676.49  

23. Employee Benefits Expense
 Salary & Bonus   120.96  108.28
 Contribu�on to provident and other funds   7.45  6.37  
 Staff Welfare Expenses   14.00  9.16  
    142.41  123.81  

24. Finance Costs
 (At amor�sed cost)
 Interest Expenses
      on Bank Overdra� / Term Loan   68.06  48.63  
      on Loan from Bank   93.69  99.67  
      on Loan from Others   3.62  15.14  
      on Others   1.36  0.26  
 Other Borrowing Costs
      Loan Processing Fees   3.58  0.96  
      Bank Guarantee Commission   2.21  1.23  
    172.52  165.89 
25. Deprecia�on and Amor�sa�on Expense
 Deprecia�on of Tangible Assets   405.46  375.67 
 Amor�sa�on of Intangible Assets   1.84  1.26 
    407.30  376.93  

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

26. Other Expenses

Rent Expenses

Insurance Expenses

Rates& Taxes

Bad Debts

Donation

Net Loss on Fair Value Changes ofInvestments

Loss on discard of Property, Plant& Equipments

Loss on sale of Property, Plant& Equipments

Provision for Bad& Doubtful Debts

Speculation Loss

Miscellaneous Expenses

Director's Sitting Fees

Pavment to Auditor

For Statutory Audit Fees

For Tax Audit Fees

In Other Capacity

27. Tax Expense

Current Tax

Provision for Income Tax

Income TaxforEarlier Year

27.1. The income taxexpenses forthevear can be reconciled to the

accounting profit as follows:

Profit/ (Loss) before tax

Applicable Tax Rate

Expected Tax Expense (A)

Tax effect of amounts which arenot deductible/ not

taxable in calculating taxable income

Adjustment ofunrealised gain/loss

Expenses disallowed/ Non-deductible Expenses

Others

Computed TaxExpense

Income TaxforEarlier Year

Current Tax Provision (A)

Incremental Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets)

On account of Property, Plant& Equipment and

Other Intangible Assets

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(7Lakhs) (7 Lakhs)
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3.49

1.23

36.58

14.67

1.51

20.68

8.89

93.46

0.75

0.45

0.15

1.67

183.53

20.90

10.04

30.94

165.59

16.69%

27.64

(8.25)

1.51

20.90

10.04

30.94

11.18

4.49

1.25

2.73

0.70

0.18

25.02

0.02

15.39

86.65

0.75

0.45

0.15

0.30

138.08

0.07

0.07

(72.59)

16.69%

(2.58)

2.58

0.07

0.07

0.07

53.17
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

26. Other Expenses
 Rent Expenses   3.49  4.49
 Insurance Expenses   1.23  1.25
 Rates & Taxes   36.58  2.73
 Bad Debts   14.67  0.70
 Dona�on   1.51  0.18
 Net Loss on Fair Value Changes of Investments   -  25.02
 Loss on discard of Property, Plant & Equipments   -  0.02
 Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipments   20.68  -
 Provision for Bad & Doub�ul Debts   8.89  15.39
 Specula�on Loss   -  -
 Miscellaneous Expenses   93.46  86.65
 Director's Si�ng Fees   0.75  0.75
 Payment to Auditor
 For Statutory Audit Fees   0.45  0.45
 For Tax Audit Fees   0.15  0.15
 In Other Capacity   1.67  0.30
    183.53  138.08

27. Tax Expense
 Current Tax
 Provision for Income Tax   20.90  0.07
 Income Tax for Earlier Year   10.04  -
    30.94  0.07

27.1. The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the 
 accoun�ng profit as follows:
 Profit / (Loss) before tax   165.59  (72.59)
 Applicable Tax Rate   16.69%  16.69%
 Expected Tax Expense (A)   27.64  -
 Tax effect of amounts which are not deduc�ble / not 
 taxable in calcula�ng taxable income
 Adjustment of unrealised gain/loss   (8.25)        (2.58)
 Expenses disallowed  / Non-deduc�ble Expenses   1.51  2.58
 Others   -  0.07
 Computed Tax Expense   20.90  0.07
 Income Tax for Earlier Year   10.04  -
 Current Tax Provision (A)   30.94  0.07
 Incremental Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets)
 On account of Property, Plant & Equipment and 
 Other Intangible Assets   11.18  53.17

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

On account of Carry Forward Losses

On account of Financial Assets and Other Items

On account of MAT Credit Entitlement

Deferred tax Provision (B)

Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit& Loss (A+B)

Effective Tax Rate

28. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

a. Remeasurement ofdefined employee benefit plans

Income taxrelating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

a. Remeasurement ofdefined employee benefit plans

29. Earnings per Share

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Z)

Profit/(Loss) attributed to the Equity shareholders of the

Company (ZLakhs)

Weighted average number ofequity shares

Basic and diluted earnings per shares (T)

There are no dilutive equity shares in the Company.

30. Disclosures as eer Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

79.25 (61.32)

(21.13) (7.19)

(20.89) (14.74)

48.41 (30.08)

79.35 (30.01)

47.92% -41.34%

(0.12)

(0.12)

0.02

0.02

10.00

86.24

4992300

1.73

(0.44)

(0.44)

0.07

0.07

10.00

(42.58)

4992300

(0.85)

Details of Investments madearegiven undertherespective heads.

During the year, the Company hasnotgranted any loans and advances(in the nature of loan).

31. Based on the information available with the company, the balance due to Micro and Small

enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(MSMEDAct, 2006) isR 32.43 Lakhs (P.Y.R Nil). Further, no interest during the year has been paid or

payable under the terms ofthe MSMED Act, 2006. The above information regarding Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on

the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon bytheAuditors.
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 On account of Carry Forward Losses   79.25  (61.32)
 On account of Financial Assets and Other Items   (21.13)  (7.19)
 On account of MAT Credit En�tlement   (20.89)  (14.74)
 Deferred tax Provision (B)   48.41  (30.08)
 Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss (A+B)  79.35  (30.01)
 Effec�ve Tax Rate   47.92%  -41.34%

28. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans  (0.12)  (0.44)
    (0.12)  (0.44)

 Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be
 reclassified to profit or loss

a. Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans  0.02  0.07

    0.02  0.07

29. Earnings per Share
 Nominal Value of Equity Shares (`)   10.00  10.00
 Profit/(Loss) a�ributed to the Equity shareholders of the   86.24  (42.58)  
 Company (` Lakhs)
 Weighted average number of equity shares   4992300  4992300
 Basic and diluted earnings per shares (`)   1.73  (0.85)

 There are no dilu�ve equity shares in the Company.

30. Disclosures as per Sec�on 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

 Details of Investments made are given under the respec�ve heads.
 During the year, the Company has not granted any loans and advances (in the nature of loan).

31. Based on the informa�on available with the company, the balance due to Micro and Small 

enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

(MSMED Act, 2006) is ₹ 32.43 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ Nil). Further, no interest during the year has been paid or 

payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006. The above informa�on regarding Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such par�es have been iden�fied on 

the basis of informa�on available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.
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As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)
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CIN: L15142WB1984PLC037472

Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

32.SEGMENT REPORTING

TheCompany's operations predominantly consist of Transportation and Investing in Shares& Securities:

Sr.

No.

1

i)

ii)

Less:

i)

ii)

Less:

3

i)

ii)

iii)

4

i)

ii)

iii)

5

i)

ii)

iii)

Particulars

Segment Revenue

(Net Sale/ Income ofeach segment)

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Total

Inter Segment Revenue

Net Sales/ Income from Operations

Segment Results

(Profit and Loss before Tax& Interest from each segment)

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Total

I. Unallocable Finance Costs

II. Other unallocable expenditure net off unallocable income

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Segment Assets

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Unallocable Assets

Total Segment Assets

Segment Liabilities

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Unallocable Liabilities

Total Segment Liabilities

Capital Employed (i.e. Segment Assets less Segment Liabilities)

Transportation Activities

Investing in Shares& Securities Activities

Other Unallocable Assets net of Liabilities

Total Capital Employed

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

8,480.48 5,390.86

28.83 3.52

8,509.31 5,394.38

8,509.31 5,394.38

480.69 204.38

28.36 (21.63)

509.05 182.75

66.78 40.54

276.68 214.80

165.59 (72.59)

3,908.06 3,444.54

26.82 266.93

496.56 441.26

4,431.44 4,152.73

1,523.64 1,927.74

0.25

1,090.69 493.77

2,614.33 2,421.76

2,384.42 1,516.80

26.82 266.68

(594.13) (52.51)

1,817.11 1,730.97

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

INTER STATE OIL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L15142WB1984PLC037472  

79

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

 1 Segment Revenue
  (Net Sale / Income of each segment)
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  8,480.48 5,390.86 
 ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  28.83 3.52 
   Total 8,509.31 5,394.38 
 Less: Inter Segment Revenue  - -

  Net Sales / Income from Opera�ons  8,509.31 5,394.38 

 2 Segment Results
   (Profit and Loss before Tax & Interest from each segment)
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  480.69 204.38 
 ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  28.36 (21.63) 
   Total 509.05 182.75 
    I. Unallocable Finance Costs  66.78 40.54 
  II.  Other unallocable expenditure net off unallocable income 276.68 214.80 
  Profit / (Loss) before Tax  165.59 (72.59)

 3 Segment Assets
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  3,908.06 3,444.54 
  ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  26.82 266.93 
  iii) Unallocable Assets  496.56 441.26 
  Total Segment Assets  4,431.44 4,152.73 

 4 Segment Liabili�es
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  1,523.64 1,927.74 
  ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  -  0.25
  iii) Unallocable Liabili�es  1,090.69 493.77 
  Total Segment Liabili�es  2,614.33 2,421.76 

 5 Capital Employed (i.e. Segment Assets less Segment Liabili�es)
 i) Transporta�on Ac�vi�es  2,384.42 1,516.80 
  ii) Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es Ac�vi�es  26.82 266.68 
  iii) Other Unallocable Assets net of Liabili�es  (594.13) (52.51) 
  Total Capital Employed  1,817.11 1,730.97 

32. SEGMENT REPORTING

 The Company’s opera�ons predominantly consist of Transporta�on and Inves�ng in Shares & Securi�es:

Sr.
No.

Particulars
2022-23

Amount
(` Lakhs)

2023-24
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Less:
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NOTE - 33

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

As atMarch 31,2024

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtfu

iii) Disputed Trade Receivable -Considered good

iv) Disputed Trade Receivable -Considered doubtful

As at March 31,2023

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtfu

iii) Disputed Trade Receivable -Considered good

iv) Disputed Trade Receivable -Considered doubtful

Amount (7Lakhs)

Outstanding forfollowing periods from due date of payment

Less than6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than3 years

1612.34 39.44

28.08 14.60

Outstanding forfollowing periods from due date of payment

Less than6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than3

891.35 11.41 - -

- - 22.77 3.54

Total

1651.78

42.68

- 902.76

7.48 33.79
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NOTE - 33
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
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Amount (` Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2  years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2  years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total

i) Undisputed  Trade Receivables - Considered good 1612.34 39.44 - - - 1651.78
ii) Undisputed  Trade Receivables - Considered doub�ul - - 28.08 14.60 - 42.68
iii) Disputed Trade Receivable -Considered good - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivable -Considered doub�ul - - - - - - 
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NOTE - 34

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31,2024

i) MSME

ii) Others

iii) Disputed dues -MSME

iv) Disputed dues- Others

As atMarch 31,2023

i) MSME

ii) Others

iii) Disputed dues -MSME

iv) Disputed dues- Others

367.53 0.24

Amount (¢Lakhs)

Outstanding forfollowing periods from due date of payment

Less than1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than3 years

32.43

Outstanding forfollowing periods from due date of payment

Less than1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than3 years

264.89 1.56

NOTE - 35

Balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payables are subject to confirmation by the respective parties.

Total

32.43

367.77

Total

0.63 267.08
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NOTE - 34
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Amount (` Lakhs)

NOTE - 35
Balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payables are subject to confirma�on by the respec�ve par�es.

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2  years More than 3 years Total

i) MSME - - -  - -
ii) Others 264.89 1.56 -  0.63 267.08
iii) Disputed dues -MSME - - -  - -
iv) Disputed dues- Others - - -  - -  

2-3 years

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2  years More than 3 years Total

i) MSME 32.43 - -  - 32.43
ii) Others 367.53 0.24 -  - 367.77
iii) Disputed dues -MSME - - -  - -
iv) Disputed dues- Others - - -  - - 

2-3 years
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36. AdditionalRegulatoryInformation

a The Company hasused the funds borrowed from banks forthe specific purpose forwhich it was taken atthe balance sheet

date.

b. All the Title deedsofimmovable properties are held in the nameofthecompanyduring the year.

C. The Companydonothave any investment property during the year.

d. The companyhasnotrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipments during the year.

e. The companyhasnotrevalued its intangible assets during the year.

f. The company hasnotgranted any loans or advances (in the nature of loans) to Promoters, Directors, KMPs andtherelated

parties during the year.

g. The Companydonothave any CapitaIWork-in-Progressduring the year.

h. The Companydonothave any Intangible Asset under Development during the year.

The Company hasneither any Benami property during the year nor any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the

Companyforholding any Benami property during the year.

The quarterly returns or statements ofcurrent assets filed by the Company with banks arenot in agreement with the books of

accounts. The reconciliation statement alongwith the reasons is as follows:

Particulars

Receivables - April, 2023

Receivables - May, 2023

Receivables - June, 2023

Receivables - July, 2023

Receivables - August, 2023

Receivables - September, 2023

Receivables - October, 2023

Receivables - November, 2023

Receivables - December, 2023

Amount submitted Amount as per

with banks or financial books of

institutions (¢ Lakhs) accounts (¢ Lakhs)

Difference

(T Lakhs)

805.61 890.98 -85.37

979.24 988.65 -9.41

936.14 1,040.15 -104.01

1,452.68 797.92 654.76

1,597.63 880.84 716.79

1,584.42 1,735.59 -151.17

1,474.08 1,036.33 437.75

1,513.78 974.42 539.36

1,381.61 1,545.91 -164.30

Reasons

The variance is mainly due to inclusion of “""

unbilled revenue in the statements filed

with the bank, and certain month end

adjustments made after the date offiling of

Statements with the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Par�culars
Amount submi�ed

with banks or financial
ins�tu�ons (` Lakhs)

Amount as per
books of 

accounts (` Lakhs)

Difference
(` Lakhs) Reasons

Trade Receivables - April, 2023 805.61 890.98 -85.37
Trade Receivables - May, 2023 979.24 988.65 -9.41
Trade Receivables - June, 2023 936.14 1,040.15 -104.01
Trade Receivables - July, 2023 1,452.68 797.92 654.76
Trade Receivables - August, 2023 1,597.63 880.84 716.79
Trade Receivables - September, 2023 1,584.42 1,735.59 -151.17
Trade Receivables - October, 2023 1,474.08 1,036.33 437.75
Trade Receivables - November, 2023 1,513.78 974.42 539.36
Trade Receivables - December, 2023 1,381.61 1,545.91 -164.30

The variance is mainly due to inclusion of 
unbilled revenue in the statements filed 
with the bank, and certain month end 
adjustments made a�er the date of filing of 
Statements with the Bank.
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Particulars

Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe vear ended 31st March,

Trade Receivables - January, 2024

Trade Receivables - February, 2024

Trade Receivables - March, 2024

Trade Payables - April, 2023

Trade Payables - May, 2023

Trade Payables - June, 2023

Trade Payables - July, 2023

Trade Payables - August, 2023

Trade Payables - September, 2023

Trade Payables - October, 2023

Trade Payables - November, 2023

Trade Payables - December, 2023

Trade Payables - January, 2024

Trade Payables - February, 2024

Trade Payables - March, 2024

Amount submitted Amount as per

with banks or financial books of

institutions (¢ Lakhs) accounts (¢ Lakhs)

Difference

(¢ Lakhs)

1,545.95 856.82 689.13

1,951.26 1,782.75 168.51

1,840.28

101.59

148.01

181.73

368.34

369.90

373.39

268.61

270.73

210.21

323.55

435.75

355.28

1,694.46 145.82

248.03 -146.44

288.15 -140.14

402.44 -220.71

181.06 187.28

180.20 189.70

523.96 -150.57

166.66 101.95

118.08 152.65

443.26 -233.05

103.13 220.42

596.77 -161.02

400.21 -44.93

2024

Reasons

The variance is mainly due to inclusion of unbilled

revenue in the statements filed with the bank, and

certain month end adjustments made after the

date offiling of Statements with the Bank.

The variance is on certain year end adjustments made

after the date offiling of statements with the bank.

The variance is due to bills received and certain
month end adjustments made after the date of

filing of statements with the bank.

k. The Company is not declareda wilful defaulter by any borrowings from bank orfinancial institution or other lender during the

year.

l. Relationship with Struck offCompanies

The Company do nothave any transactions with struck offcompanies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 orsection

560 of Companies Act, 1956.

m. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

Induslnd Bank Ltdhasnotyetprovided the signed copy ofForm CHG1 forcreation of charge on Fixed Deposits amounting toR

44.61 Lakhs (ason 31.03.2024) against the Bank Guarantees amounting toR 262.88 Lakhs (ason 31.03.2024) issued to various

parties. Therefore, the Company is unable to file the said form with Registrar of Companies forcreation of charges on above

assets.

ii. The Company hastaken continuous action for filing of satisfactions of charges in respect of which borrowings has been repaid.

Details of satisfactions of charges yetto be file with Registrar of Companies beyond thestatutory period are mentioned asbelow:
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Trade Receivables - January, 2024 1,545.95 856.82 689.13
Trade Receivables - February, 2024 1,951.26 1,782.75 168.51

Trade Receivables - March, 2024 1,840.28 1,694.46 145.82

Trade Payables - April, 2023 101.59 248.03 -146.44
Trade Payables - May, 2023 148.01 288.15 -140.14
Trade Payables - June, 2023 181.73 402.44 -220.71
Trade Payables - July, 2023 368.34 181.06 187.28
Trade Payables - August, 2023 369.90 180.20 189.70
Trade Payables - September, 2023 373.39 523.96 -150.57
Trade Payables - October, 2023 268.61 166.66 101.95
Trade Payables - November, 2023 270.73 118.08 152.65
Trade Payables - December, 2023 210.21 443.26 -233.05
Trade Payables - January, 2024 323.55 103.13 220.42
Trade Payables - February, 2024 435.75 596.77 -161.02
Trade Payables - March, 2024 355.28 400.21 -44.93

Par�culars
Amount submi�ed

with banks or financial
ins�tu�ons (` Lakhs)

Amount as per
books of 

accounts (` Lakhs)

Difference
(` Lakhs) Reasons

The variance is on certain year end adjustments made 
a�er the date of filing of statements with the bank.

The variance is mainly due to inclusion of unbilled 
revenue in the statements filed with the bank, and 
certain month end adjustments made a�er the 
date of filing of Statements with the Bank.

The variance is due to bills received and certain 
month end adjustments made a�er the date of 
filing of statements with the bank.
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Name ofCharge Holder

Citicorp Finance (India) Ltd

GE Capital IFS Ltd

Yes Bank Ltd

Amount (¢Lakhs)

40.64

43.12

142.66

n. Compliance with numberoflaver of companies

The companydo nothave any subsidiaries as per 2(87) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Therefore, the said disclosure is

not applicable.

o. No Scheme ofArrangements hasbeen approved bytheCompetent Authority in terms ofsections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,

2013.

p. Undisclosed Income

The Company donothave any transactions which is not recorded in the books ofaccounts that has been surrendered or disclosed

as income during the year in the tax assessments undertheIncomeTaxAct, 1961.

q. Corporate Social Responsibility

The company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, disclosure in respect of Corporate Social

Responsibilityactivities is not applicable.

r. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

i. The Company hasnotadvanced orloaned or invested funds(either borrowed funds orshare premium oranyother sources or kind

of funds) to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons/entices idenfified

in any manner whatsoever by oron behalf of the Company (‘ultimate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like

on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Company hasnotreceived any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities(Funding Party) during the year, with

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or provide

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

s. Details of Crvoto Currency orVirtualCurrency

The Company hasneithertraded nor invested in Crypto currency orVirtualCurrencyduringthe year.
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 Name of Charge Holder Amount (` Lakhs)

 Ci�corp Finance (India) Ltd 40.64

 GE Capital IFS Ltd 43.12

 Yes Bank Ltd 142.66

n. Compliance with number of layer of companies
 The company do not have any subsidiaries as per 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Therefore, the said disclosure is 

not applicable.
o. No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sec�ons 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 

2013.
p. Undisclosed Income
 The Company do not have any transac�ons which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
q. Corporate Social Responsibility
 The company is not covered under sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, disclosure in respect of Corporate Social 

Responsibility ac�vi�es is not applicable.
r. U�lisa�on of Borrowed funds and share premium:
i. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 

of funds) to any other person or en�ty, including foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons/en��es iden�fied 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘ul�mate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Company has not received any fund from any persons or en��es, including foreign en��es (Funding Party) during the year, with 
the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries); or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

s. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
 The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.
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37.Ratios Analysis and its elements

As perthe Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 requirements, following ratios are to be disclosed along

with explanation forthose ratios having variance ofmorethan 25% ascompared topreceding year.

Particulars

Current Ratio (Current Assets/ Current Liabilities]

Debt-Equity Ratio [Total Debt/Total Equity]

(Total Debt: Non-current borrowings+ Current

borrowings+ Non-current and current lease

liabilities)

(Total Equity: Equity share capital+ Otherequity)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio [Earning for Debt

Service/{Finance costs+ Scheduled principal

repayments of non-current borrowings and lease

obligations (excluding prepayments) during the

year}]

(Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes+

Depreciation and other amortizations+ Finance

costs - Provisions for Bad& Doubtful Debtswritten

back+ Provisions for Bad& Doubtful Debts)

Return on Equity Ratio [Net Profit after tax /

Average Equity]

(Average Equity= (Opening+ Closing total equity)

/2)

(Total Equity: Equity share capital+ Other equity)

Inventory Turnover Ratio [Revenue from

Operations/ Average Inventory]

(Average Inventory = (Opening+ Closing

Inventory)/2)

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio [Revenue from

Operations/ Average Trade Receivables]

(Average Trade Receivables = (Opening+ Closing

Trade Receivables)/2)

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio [Operating

Expenses/ Average Trade Payables]

(Average Trade Payables = (Opening+ Closing

Trade Payables)/2)

As at As at %

31.03.24 31.03.23 change

1.09 0.97 12.37%

1.06 1.22 -13.11% .

0.95 0.86 10.47%

Reasons forvariance

Due to increase in net

0.o5 -0.02 -350.oo% profit after the tax

during the year.

N.A.N.A.N.A.

6.63 5.83 13.72%

22.34 15.67 42.57%
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37. Ra�os Analysis and its elements

 As per the Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 requirements, following ra�os are to be disclosed along 
with explana�on for those ra�os having variance of more than 25% as compared to preceding year.

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Par�culars
As at

31.03.24
As at

31.03.23
%

change Reasons for variance

Current Ra�o [Current Assets / Current Liabili�es]  1.09 0.97 12.37%

Debt-Equity Ra�o [Total Debt / Total Equity]
(Total Debt: Non-current borrowings + Current 
borrowings + Non-current and current lease 
liabili�es)
(Total Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity)

 1.06 1.22 -13.11%

Debt Service Coverage Ra�o [Earning for Debt 
Service/{Finance costs + Scheduled principal 
repayments of non-current borrowings and lease 
obliga�ons (excluding prepayments) during the 
year}]
(Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit a�er taxes + 
Deprecia�on and other amor�za�ons + Finance 
costs - Provisions for Bad & Doub�ul Debts wri�en 
back + Provisions for Bad & Doub�ul Debts)

Return on Equity Ra�o [Net Profit a�er tax / 
Average Equity]
(Average Equity = (Opening + Closing total equity) 
/ 2)
(Total Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity)

Inventory Turnover Ra�o [Revenue from 
Opera�ons / Average Inventory]
(Average Inventory = (Opening + Closing 
Inventory)/2)

Trade Receivables Turnover Ra�o [Revenue from 
Opera�ons / Average Trade Receivables]
(Average Trade Receivables = (Opening + Closing 
Trade Receivables)/2)

Trade Payables Turnover Ra�o [Opera�ng 
Expenses / Average Trade Payables]
(Average Trade Payables = (Opening + Closing 
Trade Payables)/2)

 0.95 0.86 10.47%

  0.05 -0.02   -350.00%

    6.63 5.83  13.72%

  22.34 15.67 42.57%

-

Due to increase in net 
profit a�er the tax 
during the year.

Due to increase in 
opera�ng expenses 
during the year.

N.A.   N.A.   N.A.

-

-

-

-
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NetCapital Turnover Ratio [Revenue from

Operations/ Working Capital]

(Working Capital = Current Assets - Current

Liabilities)

Net Profit Ratio [Net profit after tax/

from Operations]

43.26 -105.51 -141.00%

Revenue
0.01 -0.01 -200.00%

Return on Capital Employed [Earnings before

interest and taxes/ Capital Employed]

(Capital Employed: Tangible Net Worth+ Total

Debts+ Deferred Tax Liabilities)

Return on Investment [Income generated from

invested funds/ Average investment funds in

investments]

Average investment funds in investments =

(Opening+ Closing Investments)/2)

38. CAPITALMANAGEMENT

0.09 0.02 350.00%

0.18 0.01 1700.00%

Due to increase in
revenue from opera-
tions and wo rking
cap ita I d uring the
year.

Due to increase in net
proht after tax during
the year.

Due to increase in ea-
rnings before interest

and taxes during the

year.

Due to increase in inco-
me generated from
invested funds and
decrease in average
investment funds in
investments during the
year.

For the purpose ofthe Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other

equity reserves attributable to the equity holders ofthe Company.The primary objective of the Company's

capital management is to maximise theshareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic

conditions and the requirements ofthe financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Company may adjust the dividend payment toshareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new

shares. The Company monitors capital usinga gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus

net debt.

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows:

Particulars

Gross Debt

Cash and Marketable Securities

Net Debt (A)

Total Equity (As per Balance Sheet) (B)

Net Gearing (A/B)

Amount (7Lakhs)

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

1,922.87 2,111.58

183.80 317.75

1,739.07 1,793.83

1,817.11 1,730.97

0.96 1.04
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Net Capital Turnover Ra�o [Revenue from 
Opera�ons / Working Capital]
(Working Capital = Current Assets - Current 
Liabili�es)

Net Profit Ra�o [Net profit a�er tax / Revenue 
from Opera�ons]

Return on Capital Employed [Earnings before 
interest and taxes / Capital Employed]
(Capital Employed: Tangible Net Worth + Total 
Debts + Deferred Tax Liabili�es)

Return on Investment [Income generated from 
invested funds / Average investment funds in 
investments]
Average investment funds in investments = 
(Opening + Closing Investments)/2)

     43.26 -105.51 -141.00%

 0.01 -0.01 -200.00%

      0.09 0.02 350.00%

  0.18 0.01 1700.00%

Due to increase in 
revenue from opera-
�ons and working 
capital  during the 
year.

Due to increase in net 
profit a�er tax during 
the year.

Due to increase in ea-
rnings before interest 
and taxes during the 
year.

Due to increase in inco-
me generated from 
invested funds and 
decrease in average 
investment funds in 
investments during the 
year.

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other 
equity reserves a�ributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objec�ve of the Company’s 
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. 

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic 
condi�ons and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new 
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ra�o, which is net debt divided by total capital plus 
net debt.

 The gearing ra�o at end of the repor�ng period was as follows:

Par�culars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Gross Debt 1,922.87 2,111.58 

Cash and Marketable Securi�es 183.80 317.75 

Net Debt (A) 1,739.07 1,793.83 

Total Equity (As per Balance Sheet) (B) 1,817.11 1,730.97 

Net Gearing (A/B) 0.96 1.04 

Amount (` Lakhs)
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39. FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

i. Valuation

All financial instruments are initially recognized and subsequently re-measured at fair value as

described below:

a) The fair value of investment in quoted Equity Shares is measured atquoted price or NAV or cost as

available with the management.

b) The fair value of investment in unquoted Equity Shares is measured at rate reflecting in demat

statement as available with the management oratcost as no information is available with the

management.

c) The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow

analysis.

Fair Valuation Measurement Hierarchy

Particulars

Amount (¢Lakhs)

As at31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Carrying Level of input used in Carrying Level of input used in

Amount Level1 Level2 Amount Level1 Level2

Financial Assets

At Amortised Cost

Trade Receivables 1651.78

Cash and Cash Equivalents 115.72

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 59.65

Other Financial Assets 59.19

At FVTPL

Investments

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Note:

1,922.87

400.20

3.75

902.76

16.36

31.27

55.78

24.22 8.43 15.79 285.46 270.12 15.34

2,111.58

267.08

4.79

Level 1: Level1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed

equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which aretraded in the

stock exchanges is valued usingthe closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market arevalued at rate

reflecting in demat statement as available with the management oratcost as no information is available

with the management.

ii. Foreign Currency Risk: N.A.

iii. Interest Rate Risk:

The following table shows exposure ofthe Company's borrowings to interest rate changes atthe end of

the reporting period:
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Par�culars
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Carrying
Amount

Carrying
Amount

Level of input used in Level of input used in
Level 1 Level 1Level 2 Level 2

Financial Assets
At Amor�sed Cost
Trade Receivables 1651.78 - - 902.76 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 115.72 - - 16.36 - -
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 59.65- - - 31.27 - -
Other Financial Assets 59.19 - - 55.78 - -
At FVTPL
Investments 24.22 8.43 15.79 285.46 270.12 15.34 
Financial Liabili�es
At Amor�sed Cost
Borrowings 1,922.87 - - 2,111.58 - -
Trade Payables 400.20 - - 267.08 - -
Other Financial Liabili�es 3.75 - - 4.79 - -

Fair Valua�on Measurement Hierarchy Amount (` Lakhs)

Note:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed 
equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the 
stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the repor�ng period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market are valued at rate 
reflec�ng in demat statement as available with the management or at cost as no informa�on is available 
with the management. 

ii. Foreign Currency Risk : N.A.

iii. Interest Rate Risk:

The following table shows exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of 
the repor�ng period:
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Particulars

Amount (¢Lakhs)

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Borrowings

Long Term Borrowings 980.63

Short term Borrowings 942.24

Total 1,922.87

Loans arehaving interest rate from 7.16% p.a. to 11% p.a. (F.Y. 2022-23: 7.16% p.a. to 11% p.a.)

v. Credit Risk:

i.

1,480.35

631.23

2,111.58

Credit risk is the risk thata customer or counterparty toa hnancial instrument fails to perform or

pay the amounts due, causing financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises from company's

activities in investments and outstanding receivables from customers.

The Company hasa prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the

course of its business activities. Dues from customers to whom sales are made on credit are

generally recovered within credit daysallowed tothe customer.

V. Liquiditv Risk:

Liquidity risk arises from the Company's inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient stock of cash and marketable

securities (R 186.29 Lakhs ason 31st March 2024;R 320.24 Lakhs ason 31st March 2023). Company

accesses financial markets tomeet its liquidity requirements.

The Company's liquidity is managed centrally with operating units forecasting their cash and

liquidity requirements. Treasury pools the cash surpluses from across the different operating units

and then arranges to eitherfund the netdeficit or invest the net surplus in the market.

40. Related Party Transaction

Related party disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Accounting

Standard(AS) 18 on "Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:

A. Related party relationship

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

a. Shanti Lal Jain, Whole Time Director

b. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director

c. Pooja Sarda, Independent Director

d. Nand Kumar Bhatter, Independent Director

e. Sunil Shah, Independent Director

f. Malay Das, Chief Financial Officer

g. Nikita Mohta, Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 31.01.2023)

h. Rashmi Sharma, Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 01.02.2023)

ii. Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

a. Gunmala Devi Jain

b. Amann Jain

C. Siddhant Jain

iii. Enterprises over which KMP or relatives of KMP exercise significant influence:

a. Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd

b. Inter State Liquid Logistics Ltd

C. Fluid Truckage (P) Ltd (Seized toa related party w.e.f 8“ June, 2023).
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Loans are having interest rate from 7.16% p.a. to 11% p.a. (F.Y. 2022-23: 7.16% p.a. to 11% p.a.)

v. Credit Risk:

 Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or 
pay the amounts due, causing financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises from company’s 
ac�vi�es in investments and outstanding receivables from customers.

 The Company has a prudent and conserva�ve process for managing its credit risk arising in the 
course of its business ac�vi�es. Dues from customers to whom sales are made on credit are 
generally recovered within credit days allowed to the customer.

v. Liquidity Risk:

 Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on �me. 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient stock of cash and marketable 
securi�es (₹ 186.29 Lakhs as on 31st March 2024; ₹ 320.24 Lakhs as on 31st March 2023). Company 
accesses financial markets to meet its liquidity requirements.

 The Company's liquidity is managed centrally with opera�ng units forecas�ng their cash and 
liquidity requirements. Treasury pools the cash surpluses from across the different opera�ng units 
and then arranges to either fund the net deficit or invest the net surplus in the market.

                                        Par�culars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

  Borrowings

  Long Term Borrowings 980.63 1,480.35 

  Short term Borrowings 942.24 631.23 

  Total 1,922.87 2,111.58 

Amount (` Lakhs)

40. Related Party Transac�on
 Related party disclosure as iden�fied by the management in accordance with  the Accoun�ng 

Standard(AS) 18 on "Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:

A. Related party rela�onship
i. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
a. Shan� Lal Jain, Whole Time Director
b. Sanjay Jain, Managing Director
c. Pooja Sarda, Independent Director
d. Nand Kumar Bha�er, Independent Director
e. Sunil Shah, Independent Director
f. Malay Das, Chief Financial Officer
g. Nikita Mohta, Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 31.01.2023)
h. Rashmi Sharma, Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 01.02.2023)

ii. Rela�ves of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
a. Gunmala Devi Jain
b. Amann Jain
c. Siddhant Jain

iii. Enterprises over which KMP or rela�ves of KMP exercise significant influence:
a. Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd
b. Inter State Liquid Logis�cs Ltd

thc. Fluid Truckage (P) Ltd (Seized to a related party w.e.f 8  June, 2023).
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B.Transactions with Related Parties:

Name ofRelated Party

Shanti Lal Jain

Sanjay Jain

Nand Kumar Bhatter

Pooja Sarda

Sunil Shah

Malay Das

Nikita Mohta

Rashmi Sharma

Gunmala Devi Jain

Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd

Inter State Liquid Logistics Ltd

Fluid Truckage (P) Ltd

2023-24 2022-23

Nature ofTransactions Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

Director Remuneration

Director Remuneration

Director Sitting Fees

Director Sitting Fees

Director Sitting Fees

Salary& Bonus

Salary& Bonus

Salary& Bonus

Rent Paid

Freight Income

Freight Paid

Freight Income

Freight Paid

C.i Amount duetoKev Managerial Personnel:

Shanti Lal Jain

Saniav Jain

Malay Das

Rashmi Sharma

Name oftheParty

ii Amount duetorelatives of Kev Managerial Personnel:

Gunmala Devi Jain

Name oftheParty

19.64 19.60

31.29 29.30

0.25 0.25

0.25 0.25

0.25 0.25

7.43 6.94

3.38

5.42

2.40

1.33

2.40

859.82

625.29 507.45

39.91 65.53

8.41 187.99

As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

0.60

0.49

1.27

4.89

0.55

0.45

As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

0.36

iii Amount duetoenterprises over which KMP or relatives of KMP exercise significant influence:

Name oftheParty

Inter State Liquid Logistics Ltd.

Fluid Truckage Pvt. Ltd.
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As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

61.66 37.35

3.77
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Name of Related Party Nature of Transac�ons
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Shan� Lal Jain Director Remunera�on 19.64 19.60
Sanjay Jain Director Remunera�on 31.29 29.30
Nand Kumar Bha�er Director Si�ng Fees 0.25 0.25
Pooja Sarda Director Si�ng Fees 0.25 0.25
Sunil Shah Director Si�ng Fees 0.25 0.25
Malay Das Salary & Bonus 7.43 6.94
Nikita Mohta Salary & Bonus - 3.38
Rashmi Sharma Salary & Bonus 5.42 1.33
Gunmala Devi Jain Rent Paid 2.40 2.40
Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd Freight Income 859.82 -
Inter State Liquid Logis�cs Ltd Freight Paid 625.29 507.45
 Freight Income 39.91 65.53
Fluid Truckage (P) Ltd Freight Paid 8.41 187.99

Inter State Liquid Logis�cs Ltd.  61.66 37.35
Fluid Truckage Pvt. Ltd.  - 3.77 

Name of the Party
As at 31.03.24

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Shan� Lal Jain  - 1.27
Sanjay Jain  - 4.89
Malay Das  0.60 0.55
Rashmi Sharma  0.49 0.45

C.i    Amount due to Key Managerial Personnel:

ii    Amount due to rela�ves of Key Managerial Personnel:

Name of the Party
As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Gunmala Devi Jain  - 0.36 

iii    Amount due to enterprises over which KMP or rela�ves of KMP exercise significant influence:

Name of the Party
As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

As at 31.03.23

B.  Transac�ons with Related Par�es:
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iv Amount duefrom enterprises over which KMP or relatives of KMP exercise significant influence:

Name oftheParty

Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd

Inter State Liquid Logistics Ltd

D. Provision to be made with regard to Outstanding Amount:¢ Nil

41. Disclosures under IndAS 19 (Employee Benefits)

A. Defined Contribution Plan

SI
No.

Particulars

1 Contribution to Provident Fund

2 Contribution to Employee State Insurance

As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount Amount

(ZLakhs) (Z Lakhs)

161.55

3.62

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

5.59 4.98

0.20 0.20

B. The company hasadopted Projected Unit Credit Method forGratuity. Every employee who has

completed five years or more ofservices gets Gratuity on terms not lower than the amount

payable under the Payment ofGratuity Act ,1972. The aforesaid scheme is funded with LIC. The

liability of Gratuity is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by Dr. R. Kannan.

The following table summarizes thecomponents ofnetbenefit expenses recognised in Statement

ofProfit& Loss, etc:

Changes in Present Value ofObligation

SI

No.
Particulars

1 Present value of obligation as on last valuation

2 Current Service Cost

3 Interest Cost

4 Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to

Change in Financial Assumption

5 Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to

Change in Demographic

6 Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Unexpected Experience

7 Benefits Paid

8 Present value of obligation as on valuation date
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2023-24 202223

Amount Amount

(ZLakhs) (Z Lakhs)

13.32 10.76

1.76 1.42

0.93 0.78

0.59 0.15

0.02

(0.28) 0.21

16.34 13.32
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iv    Amount due from enterprises over which KMP or rela�ves of KMP exercise significant influence:

Inter State Capital Markets (P) Ltd  161.55 -
Inter State Liquid Logis�cs Ltd  3.62 -

Name of the Party
As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

D.    Provision to be made with regard to Outstanding Amount : ` Nil

41.    Disclosures under Ind AS 19 (Employee Benefits)

         A.  Defined Contribu�on Plan

1 Contribu�on to Provident Fund  5.59 4.98 
2 Contribu�on to Employee State Insurance  0.20 0.20 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl
No.

  B. The company has adopted Projected Unit Credit Method for Gratuity. Every employee who has 
completed five years or more of services gets Gratuity on terms not lower than the amount 
payable under the Payment of Gratuity Act ,1972. The aforesaid scheme is funded with LIC. The 
liability of Gratuity is recognised on the basis of actuarial valua�on carried out by Dr. R. Kannan. 
The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognised in Statement 
of Profit & Loss, etc:

 I Changes in Present Value of Obliga�on

    1 Present value of obliga�on as on last valua�on  13.32 10.76 

    2 Current Service Cost  1.76 1.42 

    3 Interest Cost  0.93 0.78 

    4 Actuarial gain/loss on obliga�ons due to  0.59 0.15 

 Change in Financial Assump�on

    5 Actuarial gain/loss on obliga�ons due to  0.02 -

 Change in Demographic

    6 Actuarial gain/loss on obliga�ons due to Unexpected Experience (0.28) 0.21 

    7 Benefits Paid  - - 

    8 Present value of obliga�on as on valua�on date 16.34 13.32 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl
No.
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Notes tothe Financial Statement forthe vear ended 31st March, 2024

II Changes in Fair Value ofPlan Assets

SI.

No.
Particulars

1 Fair value of Plan Assets at Beginning of period

2 Interest Income

3 Employer Contributions

4 Benefits Paid

5 Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income

6 Present value of obligation as on valuation date

III Reconciliation to Balance Sheet

SI.

No.

1 Fund Assets

2 Fund Liability

3 Funded Status

IV Plan Assumption

SI.
No.

1 Discount Rate

Particulars

Particulars

2 Expected Return on Plan Asset

3 Rate of Compensation Increase (Salary Inflation)

4 Average expected future service (Remaining working Life)

5 Average Duration of Liabilities

6 Mortality Table

7 Superannuation atage-Male

8 Superannuation atage-Female

9 Early Retirement& Disablement (All Causes Combined)

V Expense recognised in Statement ofProfit and Loss

SI.

No.
Particulars

1 Current Service Cost

2 Past Service Cost

3 Net Interest Cost

4 Benefit Cost (Expense recognized in Statement of Profit& Loss)

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

14.89 13.96

1.04 1.01

4.55

0.21 (0.08)

20.69 14.89

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(TLakhs) (T Lakhs)

20.69 14.89

16.34 13.32

4.35 1.57

2023-24 2022-23

6.97% 7.25%

6.97% 7.25%

7.00% 7.00%

19 20

19 20

IALM 2012-15 IALM 2012-14

Ultimate Ultimate

60 60

60 60

1% - 3% 1% - 3%

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

1.76 1.42

(0.11) (0.23)

1.65 1.19
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II    Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets

   1 Fair value of Plan Assets at Beginning of period  14.89 13.96 

   2 Interest Income  1.04 1.01 

   3 Employer Contribu�ons  4.55 - 

   4 Benefits Paid  - - 

   5 Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income 0.21 (0.08) 

   6 Present value of obliga�on as on valua�on date 20.69 14.89 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

III     Reconcilia�on to Balance Sheet

   1 Fund Assets  20.69 14.89 

   2 Fund Liability  16.34 13.32 

   3 Funded Status  4.35 1.57 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

IV     Plan Assump�on

   1 Discount Rate  6.97% 7.25% 

   2 Expected Return on Plan Asset  6.97% 7.25% 

   3 Rate of Compensa�on Increase (Salary Infla�on) 7.00% 7.00%

   4 Average expected future service (Remaining working Life) 19 20 

   5 Average Dura�on of Liabili�es  19 20 

   6 Mortality Table  IALM 2012-15 IALM 2012-14

   Ul�mate Ul�mate 

   7 Superannua�on at age-Male  60 60

   8 Superannua�on at age-Female  60 60

   9 Early Re�rement & Disablement (All Causes Combined) 1% - 3% 1% - 3%

Par�culars 2023-24 2022-23Sl.
No.

V     Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

   1 Current Service Cost  1.76 1.42 

   2 Past Service Cost  - -

   3 Net Interest Cost  (0.11) (0.23) 

   4 Benefit Cost (Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss) 1.65 1.19 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.
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VI Expense recognised in OtherComprehensive Income

SI.

No.
Particulars

1 Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Change in

Financial Assumpfion

2 Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Change in Demographic

3 Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Unexpected Experience

4 Total Actuarial (gain)/losses

5 Return on Plan Asset, Excluding Interest Income

6 Balance atthe end of the Period

7 Net(Income)/Expense forthe Period Recognized in OCI

VII MortalitvTable

Age

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

VIII Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

SI.

No.
Particulars

1 Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%)

2 %Change Compared tobase due to

3 Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%)

4 %Change Compared tobase due to

5 Attrition Rate (-/+ 10%)

6 %Change Compared tobase due to

7 Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%)

8 %Change Compared tobase due to

+“ [ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 j

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(¢Lakhs) (Z Lakhs)

0.59 0.15

0.02

(0.28) 0.21

0.33 0.36

0.21 (0.08)

0.12 0.44

0.12 0.44

Mortality (Per Annum)

0.000407

0.000586

0.000847

0.001234

0.001815

0.002705

0.004101

0.006349

0.009163

0.016393

202223

Increase Decrease

Amount Amount

(ZLakhs) (T Lakhs)

12.50 14.22

-6.156% 6.724%

14.21 12.50

6.673% -6.165%

13.32 13.33

-0.067% 0.067%

13.32 13.33

-0.012% 0.012%
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VI     Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

   1 Actuarial gain/loss on obliga�ons due to Change in  0.59 0.15 

 Financial Assump�on

   2 Actuarial gain/loss on obliga�ons due to Change in Demographic 0.02 -

   3 Actuarial gain/loss on obliga�ons due to Unexpected Experience (0.28) 0.21 

   4 Total Actuarial (gain)/losses  0.33 0.36 

   5 Return on Plan Asset, Excluding Interest Income 0.21 (0.08) 

   6 Balance at the end of the Period  0.12 0.44 

   7 Net(Income)/Expense for the Period Recognized in OCI 0.12 0.44 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

VII    Mortality Table

 25  0.000407

 30  0.000586

 35  0.000847

 40  0.001234

 45  0.001815

 50  0.002705

 55  0.004101

 60  0.006349

 65  0.009163

 70  0.016393

Mortality (Per Annum) Age

VIII   Sensi�vity Analysis - Gratuity

 1 Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%)  12.50 14.22

 2 %Change Compared to base due to  -6.156% 6.724%

 3 Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%)  14.21 12.50

 4 %Change Compared to base due to  6.673% -6.165%

 5 A�ri�on Rate (-/+ 10%)  13.32 13.33

 6 %Change Compared to base due to  -0.067% 0.067%

 7 Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%)  13.32 13.33

 8 %Change Compared to base due to  -0.012% 0.012%

Par�culars Increase Decrease
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

2022-23



SI.

No.
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Particulars

1 Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%)

2 %Change Compared tobase due to

3 Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%)

4 %Change Compared tobase due to

5 Attrition Rate (-/+ 10%)

6 %Change Compared tobase due to

7 Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%)

8 %Change Compared tobase due to

IX Cash Flow Information

SI.

No.

1 Next Period Total (Expected)

2 Minimum Funding Requirements

3 Company's Discretion

Particulars

X Beneht Information Estimated Future pavments (Past Service)

SI.

No.
Particulars

1 Period1

2 Period2

3 Period3

4 Period4

5 Period5

6 Period6 to 10

7 More than 10 periods

8 Total Undiscounted Payments Past and Future Service

9 Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service

10 Less Discount For Interest

11 Benefit Obligation

XI Outlook NextYearComponents ofNetPeriodic benefit Cost Next Period

SI.

No.
Particulars

1 Current service Cost (Employer portion Only) Next period

2 Interest Cost next period

3 Expected Return on Plan Asset

4 Net Period Benefit Cost
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2023-24

Increase Decrease

Amount Amount

(TLakhs) (T Lakhs)

15.31 17.47%

-6.326% 6.936%

17.46 15.31

6.873% -6.328%

16.33 16.35

-0.078% 0.079%

16.34 16.34

-0.013% 0.013%

Amount

(¢Lakhs)

19.49

Amount

(¢Lakhs)

0.16

0.16

0.15

0.15

0.13

4.28

45.13

50.15

33.81

16.34

Amount

(¢Lakhs)

1.99

1.13

1.44

1.68
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IX     Cash Flow Informa�on

   1 Next Period Total (Expected)   19.49

   2 Minimum Funding Requirements   -

   3 Company's Discre�on   -

Par�culars
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

X     Benefit Informa�on Es�mated Future payments (Past Service)

   1 Period 1   0.16

   2 Period 2   0.16

   3 Period 3   0.15

   4 Period 4   0.15

   5 Period 5   0.13

   6 Period 6 to 10   4.28

   7 More than 10 periods   45.13

   8 Total Undiscounted Payments Past and Future Service    -

   9 Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service  50.15

  10 Less Discount For Interest   33.81

  11 Benefit Obliga�on   16.34

Par�culars
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

XI     Outlook Next Year Components of Net Periodic benefit Cost Next Period

   1 Current service Cost (Employer por�on Only) Next period  1.99

   2 Interest Cost next period   1.13

   3 Expected Return on Plan Asset   1.44

   4 Net Period Benefit Cost   1.68

Par�culars
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

 1 Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%)  15.31 17.47 %

 2 %Change Compared to base due to  -6.326% 6.936%

 3 Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%)  17.46 15.31

 4 %Change Compared to base due to  6.873% -6.328%

 5 A�ri�on Rate (-/+ 10%)  16.33 16.35

 6 %Change Compared to base due to  -0.078% 0.079%

 7 Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%)  16.34 16.34

  8 %Change Compared to base due to  -0.013% 0.013%

Par�culars Increase Decrease
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

2023-24
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XII Bifurcation of Net liabilitv

SI.

No.

1 Current Liability

2 Non Current Liability

3 Net Liability

Particulars

2023-24 2022-23

Amount Amount

(ZLakhs) (¢ Lakhs)

0.15 0.14

16.19 13.18

16.34 13.32

42. Contingent Liabilities(tothe extent not provided for)

i) BankGuarantee

a. The Companyhastaken Bank Guarantee off 83.22 Lakhsfrom Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off 18.76 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favour of Brahmaputra Cracker& Polymer Ltd.

b. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 55 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts ofR8.78 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favourofJK Tyre& Industries Ltd.

C. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 10 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off2 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favour of Deepak Phenolics Ltd.

d. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 15 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts ofR0.58 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favour of HPCL Mittal Energy Ltd.

e. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 5 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts ofR 1 Lakh which has been given in favour of Commissioner, Excise, Department of

Prohibition, Excise and Registration, Government ofBihar.

f. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 10 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off2 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favour ofQwikSupply Chain (P) Ltd.

g. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 2 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off 0.40 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favour of Laxmi Organic Industries Ltd.

h. The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 15 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off3 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favour of HMELOrganics(P) Ltd.

The Company hastaken Bank Guarantee ofR 5 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off1 Lakh which hasbeen given in favour of Marico Ltd.

j. The Companyhastaken Bank Guarantee off 18.05 Lakhsfrom Induslnd Bank Ltd against pledge of Fixed

Deposit receipts off 7.09 Lakhs which hasbeen given in favourofAssam Petro Chemicals Ltd.

k. The Company hastaken BankGuarantee off 7.50 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd which hasbeen given in

favour of Indian OilCorporation Ltd.

l. The Company hastaken BankGuarantee off 7.50 Lakhs from Induslnd Bank Ltd which hasbeen given in

favour of Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd.

ii) IncomeTax

a. The Company hasreceived demand amountingtoTO.02 Lakhs from Income TaxDepartment relating to

assessment of T.D.S from F.Y. 2008-09, and F.Y. 2023-24 against which Company will hle necessary

rectification within appropriate time.

b. The company hasreceived demand amounting toR 95.42 Lakhs from Income TaxDepartment relating

to A.Y. 2017-18 u/s143(3) of the Income TaxAct, 1961 against which Company hasfiled an appeal with

CIT (Appeal — 3), Kolkata. However,R 96.95 Lakhs has been paid by the company against the said

demand. The Companyexpects to sustain its position on ultimate resolution of the appeals.
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XII     Bifurca�on of Net liability

   1 Current Liability  0.15 0.14 

   2 Non Current Liability  16.19 13.18 

   3 Net Liability  16.34 13.32 

Par�culars
2023-24 2022-23
Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Sl.
No.
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43. Nature ofSecurity and TermsofRepaymentforLongTermSecured Borrowings:

Nature ofSecurity

Term Loan From Axis Bank Ltd.

Loan amountingR 38.81 Lakhs (P.Y.R 100.66 Lakhs)

from Axis Bank Ltd. is secured against

hypothecation of Trucks.

Term Loan From ICICI Bank Ltd.

Loan amountingR 399.40 Lakhs (P.Y. R 579.49

Lakhs) from ICICI Bank Ltd. is secured against

hypothecation ofTrucks.

Term Loan From KotakMahindra BankLtd.

Loan amountingR Nil (P.Y.R 0.35 Lakhs) from Kotak

Ma hin d ra B a n k Ltd. is sec u red a gain st

hypothecation ofCar.

Term Loan FromYesBankLtd.

Loan amountingR 15.35 Lakhs (P.Y.R 205.51 Lakhs)

fro m Yes B a n k Ltd. is se c u red a gain st

hypothecation ofTrucks.

Term Loan FromYesBank Ltd.

Loan amountingR 25 Lakhs (P.Y.R 39.08 Lakhs)

from Yes Bank Ltd. is secured against creation of

second charge on all existing security in favour of

National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd.

Term Loan From Induslnd Bank Ltd.

Loan amountingR Nil (P.Y.R 14.39 Lakhs) from

In d u s In d B a n k Ltd . is sec u red a ga in st

hypothecation ofassets as refer in Note 16.1.

OtherLoan From ICICI Bank Ltd.

Loan amountingR Nil (P.Y.R Nil) from ICICI Bank Ltd.

is secured against hypothecation ofTrucks.

OtherLoan FromYesBankLtd.

Loan amountingR Nil (P.Y.R Nil) from YesBank Ltd.

is secured against hypothecation ofTrucks.

Terms ofRepayment

Repayable in 47 to 48 monthly installments

co mme ncing from N ovember' 202 1. Last

installment due on December' 2025.

Repayable in 47 to 58 monthly installments

co mme ncing from December’ 202 1. Last

Installment due on April' 2028.

Rep aya ble in 60 mo n th Iy in sta II m e n t s

commencingfromJune' 2019. Last installment due

on May' 2024.

Repayable in 46 to 47 monthly installments

commencing from May' 2021. Last installment due

on May' 2025.

Repayable in 48 to 60 monthly installments

co mme ncing from Se ptember' 2020. Last

installment due on June' 2027.

R e p ayab Ie in4 7 mo n Ih Iy in stalI m e n t s

co mme n cing from N ovembe r' 2020. Last

installment due on 31.10.2024.

R e p a yab Ie in 23 m o n t h Iy in stalI m e n t s

co mme ncing from December' 202 1. La st

installment due on October' 2023.

R e p a yab Ie in 25 m o n I h Iy in stalI m e n t s

co m me nc ing fro m Feb rua ry’ 2022. Last

installment due on February' 2024.
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Nature of Security

Term Loan From Axis Bank Ltd.

Loan amoun�ng ₹ 38.81 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ 100.66 Lakhs) 
from Axis Bank Ltd. is secured against 
hypotheca�on of Trucks.

Terms of Repayment

Repayable in 47 to 48 monthly installments 
commencing from November'  2021. Last 
installment due on December' 2025.

Term Loan From ICICI Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ 399.40 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ 579.49 
Lakhs) from ICICI Bank Ltd. is secured against 
hypotheca�on of Trucks.

Term Loan From Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ Nil (P.Y. ₹ 0.35 Lakhs) from Kotak 
M a h i n d ra  B a n k  Ltd .  i s  s e c u re d  a ga i n st 
hypotheca�on of Car.

Term Loan From Yes Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ 15.35 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ 205.51 Lakhs) 
f ro m  Ye s  B a n k  Lt d .  i s  s e c u re d  a ga i n s t 
hypotheca�on of Trucks.

Term Loan From Yes Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ 25 Lakhs (P.Y. ₹ 39.08 Lakhs) 
from Yes Bank Ltd. is secured against crea�on of 
second charge on all exis�ng security in favour of 
Na�onal Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd.

Term Loan From IndusInd Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ Nil (P.Y. ₹ 14.39 Lakhs) from 
I n d u s I n d  B a n k  L t d .  i s  s e c u r e d  a ga i n s t 
hypotheca�on of assets as refer in Note 16.1.

Other Loan From ICICI Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ Nil (P.Y. ₹ Nil) from ICICI Bank Ltd. 
is secured against hypotheca�on of Trucks.

Other Loan From Yes Bank Ltd.
Loan amoun�ng ₹ Nil (P.Y. ₹ Nil) from Yes Bank Ltd. 
is secured against hypotheca�on of Trucks.

Repayable in 47 to 58 monthly installments 
commencing from December'  2021. Last 
Installment due on April' 2028.

Re p aya b l e  i n  6 0  m o n t h l y  i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commencing from June' 2019. Last installment due 
on May' 2024.

Repayable in 46 to 47 monthly installments 
commencing from May' 2021. Last installment due 
on May' 2025.

Repayable in 48 to 60 monthly installments 
commencing from September' 2020. Last 
installment due on June' 2027.

Re p aya b l e  i n  4 7  m o n t h l y  i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commencing from November'  2020. Last 
installment due on 31.10.2024.

Re p aya b l e  i n  2 3  m o n t h l y  i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commencing from December'  2021. Last 
installment due on October' 2023.

Re p aya b l e  i n  2 5  m o n t h l y  i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commencing  f rom February '  2022.  Last 
installment due on February' 2024.

    43. Nature of Security and Terms of Repayment for Long Term Secured Borrowings:
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44.Thefigures for the previous year have been rearranged and/or regrouped wherever considered necessary.

Signature to Note1 to44

ForPatni& Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria

(Partner)

Membership No.300004

UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060

Place: Kolkata

Dated: The 23" day of May, 2024

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors
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Managing Director
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Whole Time Director
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Rashmi Sharma

Company Secretary
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(Firm Reg. No. 320304E)

A. Rajgaria
    (Partner)
    Membership No. 300004
    UDIN: 24300004BKDVGS2060
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rdDated: The 23  day of May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

________________________
Sanjay Jain (DIN: 00167765)

Managing Director

___________________________
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Whole Time Director

_________________________
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________________________
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    44. The figures for the previous year have been rearranged and/or regrouped wherever considered necessary.

Signature to Note 1 to 44
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